Invesco Ltd. Form 10-Q April 30, 2013 Table of Contents

### UNITED STATES SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

Washington, D.C. 20549

Form 10-Q (Mark One)

QUARTERLY REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES

**EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934** 

For the quarterly period ended March 31, 2013

OR

þ

TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES

EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

For the transition period from to

Commission file number 1-13908

Invesco Ltd.

(Exact Name of Registrant as Specified in Its Charter)

Bermuda 98-0557567 (State or Other Jurisdiction of (I.R.S. Employer Incorporation or Organization) Identification No.)

1555 Peachtree Street, N.E., Suite 1800, Atlanta, GA 30309 (Address of Principal Executive Offices) (Zip Code)

(404) 892-0896

(Registrant's telephone number, including area code)

### N/A

(Former name, former address and former fiscal year, if changed since last report)

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant: (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to file such reports), and (2) has been subject to such filing requirements for the past 90 days. Yes  $\beta$  No o Indicate by check mark whether the registrant has submitted electronically and posted on its corporate Web site, if any, every Interactive Data File required to be submitted and posted pursuant to Rule 405 of Regulation S-T during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to submit and post such files). Yes  $\beta$  No o

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a large accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, a non-accelerated filer, or a smaller reporting company. See the definitions of "large accelerated filer," "accelerated filer" and "smaller reporting company" in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act. (Check one):

Large accelerated filer b

Accelerated filer o

Accelerated filer o

Non-accelerated filer o(Do not check if a smaller reporting company)

Smaller reporting company

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a shell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act.) Yes o No b

As of March 31, 2013, the most recent practicable date, 444,646,972 of the company's common shares par value \$0.20 per share, were outstanding.

## Table of Contents

### TABLE OF CONTENTS

We include cross references to captions elsewhere in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q, which we refer to as this "Report," where you can find related additional information. The following table of contents tells you where to find these captions.

	Page
TABLE OF CONTENTS	
PART I — Financial Information	
<u>Item 1. Financial Statements (unaudited)</u>	
<u>Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheets</u>	<u>3</u>
Condensed Consolidated Statements of Income	4 5 6 7 9
Condensed Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income	<u>5</u>
Condensed Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows	<u>6</u>
Condensed Consolidated Statements of Changes in Equity	7
Notes to the Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements	9
Item 2. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations	<u>36</u>
Item 3. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk	<u>66</u>
Item 4. Controls and Procedures	<u>67</u>
PART II — Other Information	
<u>Item 1. Legal Proceedings</u>	<u>67</u>
Item 1A. Risk Factors	<u>67</u>
<u>Item 2. Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities and Use of Proceeds</u>	<u>67</u>
<u>Item 4. Mine Safety Disclosures</u>	<u>68</u>
<u>Item 5. Other Information</u>	<u>68</u>
<u>Item 6. Exhibits</u>	<u>69</u>
<u>Signatures</u>	<u>70</u>
EX-10.1	
EX-31.1	
EX-31.2	
EX-32.1	
EX-32.2	
EX-101 INSTANCE DOCUMENT	
EX-101 SCHEMA DOCUMENT	
EX-101 CALCULATION LINKBASE DOCUMENT	
EX-101 LABELS LINKBASE DOCUMENT	
EX-101 PRESENTATION LINKBASE DOCUMENT	
EX-101 DEFINITION LINKBASE DOCUMENT	
2	

## PART I. FINANCIAL INFORMATION

## Item 1. Financial Statements

Inv			
$\sim$	1	1.0	

Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheets

(Unaudited)

(Character)	As of	
\$ in millions, except share data	March 31, 2013	December 31, 2012
ASSETS		
Current assets:		
Cash and cash equivalents	884.7	835.5
Cash and cash equivalents of consolidated investment products	764.3	287.8
Unsettled fund receivables	941.8	550.1
Accounts receivable	517.1	449.4
Accounts receivable of consolidated investment products	61.5	84.1
Investments	359.9	363.9
Prepaid assets	55.6	50.3
Other current assets	78.7	94.5
Deferred tax asset, net	34.6	38.4
Assets held for policyholders	1,205.3	1,153.6
Total current assets	4,903.5	3,907.6
Non-current assets:		
Investments	361.7	246.8
Investments of consolidated investment products	4,661.2	4,550.6
Security deposit assets and receivables	22.8	27.4
Other non-current assets	27.8	26.8
Deferred sales commissions	50.1	47.7
Property and equipment, net	337.2	349.6
Intangible assets, net	1,278.5	1,287.7
Goodwill	6,891.7	7,048.2
Total non-current assets	13,631.0	13,584.8
Total assets	18,534.5	17,492.4
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY		
Current liabilities:		
Unsettled fund payables	941.7	552.5
Income taxes payable	68.1	77.9
Other current liabilities	626.7	824.7
Other current liabilities of consolidated investment products	445.8	104.3
Policyholder payables	1,205.3	1,153.6
Total current liabilities	3,287.6	2,713.0
Non-current liabilities:		
Long-term debt	1,514.5	1,186.0
Long-term debt of consolidated investment products	4,221.4	3,899.4
Deferred tax liabilities, net	346.8	311.4
Security deposits payable	22.8	27.4
Other non-current liabilities	302.2	306.2
Total non-current liabilities	6,407.7	5,730.4

Total liabilities	9,695.3	8,443.4	
Commitments and contingencies (See Note11)			
Equity:			
Equity attributable to common shareholders:			
Common shares (\$0.20 par value; 1,050.0 million authorized; 490.4 million shares issued as of March 31, 2013 and December 31, 2012)	98.1	98.1	
Additional paid-in-capital	6,024.3	6,141.0	
Treasury shares	(1,314.7	) (1,382.9	)
Retained earnings	2,946.3	2,801.3	
Retained earnings appropriated for investors in consolidated investment products	107.7	128.8	
Accumulated other comprehensive income, net of tax	334.5	530.5	
Total equity attributable to common shareholders	8,196.2	8,316.8	
Equity attributable to noncontrolling interests in consolidated entities	643.0	732.2	
Total equity	8,839.2	9,049.0	
Total liabilities and equity	18,534.5	17,492.4	
See accompanying notes.			
3			

# Table of Contents

Invesco Ltd.

Condensed Consolidated Statements of Income (Unaudited)

(Onaudica)	Three months ended March 31,						
\$ in millions, except per share data	2013	2012					
Operating revenues:							
Investment management fees	874.2	791.4					
Service and distribution fees	206.3	189.0					
Performance fees	36.1	20.5					
Other	25.2	32.8					
Total operating revenues	1,141.8	1,033.7					
Operating expenses:							
Employee compensation	358.0	318.5					
Third-party distribution, service and advisory	347.2	317.1					
Marketing	22.4	26.7					
Property, office and technology	69.8	66.8					
General and administrative	69.6	73.3					
Transaction and integration	1.4	1.5					
Total operating expenses	868.4	803.9					
Operating income	273.4	229.8					
Other income/(expense):							
Equity in earnings of unconsolidated affiliates	8.1	9.7					
Interest and dividend income	2.2	2.4					
Interest income of consolidated investment products	50.3	69.0					
Other gains/(losses) of consolidated investment products, net	(21.1	) (121.9	)				
Interest expense	(9.7	) (13.6	)				
Interest expense of consolidated investment products	(32.7	) (45.6	)				
Other gains and losses, net	17.7	18.6					
Income before income taxes	288.2	148.4					
Income tax provision	(88.6	) (73.6	)				
Net income	199.6	74.8					
Net (income)/loss attributable to noncontrolling interests in consolidated entities, net	22.6	119.1					
Net income attributable to common shareholders	222.2	193.9					
Earnings per share:							
— basic	\$0.50	\$0.43					
— diluted	\$0.49	\$0.43					
Dividends declared per share	\$0.1725	\$0.1225					
See accompanying notes.							

# Table of Contents

Invesco Ltd.

Condensed Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income (Unaudited)

	Three months ended		
	March 31,		
\$ in millions	2013	2012	
Net income	199.6	74.8	
Other comprehensive income/(loss), before tax:			
Currency translation differences on investments in foreign subsidiaries	(209.6	99.8	
Actuarial (loss)/gain related to employee benefit plans	6.5	(1.0	)
Reclassification of amortization of prior service costs/(credit) into employee compensation	(0.5	. (0.5	`
expense	(0.5	) (0.5	)
Reclassification of amortization of actuarial (gains)/losses into employee compensation	0.7	0.4	
expense	0.7	0.4	
Share of other comprehensive income/(loss) of equity method investments	(0.3	) 2.0	
Unrealized gains on available-for-sale investments	4.3	6.5	
Reclassification of net (gains)/losses realized on available-for-sale investments included in	1 (1 4	) (1.0	`
other gains and losses, net	(1.4	) (1.0	)
Other comprehensive income/(loss), before tax	(200.3	) 106.2	
Income tax related to items of other comprehensive income/(loss):			
Tax benefit/(expense) on foreign currency translation adjustments	(0.8)	) —	
Tax on actuarial (loss)/gain related to employee benefit plans	(1.4	0.3	
Reclassification of tax on amortization of prior service costs/(credit) into income tax	0.1	0.1	
provision	0.1	0.1	
Reclassification of tax on amortization of actuarial (loss)/gain into income tax provision	(0.2	) (0.1	)
Tax on net unrealized gains on available-for-sale investments	0.2		
Reclassification of tax on net (gains)/losses realized on available-for-sale investments	(0.2	) (0.1	`
included in income tax provision	(0.3	) (0.1	)
Total income tax benefit (expense) related to items of other comprehensive income	(2.4	) 0.2	
Other comprehensive income/(loss), net of tax	(202.7	) 106.4	
Total comprehensive income/(loss)	(3.1	) 181.2	
Comprehensive loss/(income) attributable to noncontrolling interests in consolidated	29.3	120.5	
entities	29.3	120.3	
Comprehensive income attributable to common shareholders	26.2	301.7	
See accompanying notes.			

# Table of Contents

Invesco Ltd.

Condensed Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows (Unaudited)

(Onaudited)	Three mor	nths ended Marc	ch
\$ in millions	2013	2012	
Operating activities:			
Net income	199.6	74.8	
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by/(used in) operating			
activities:			
Amortization and depreciation	22.3	24.3	
Share-based compensation expense	33.5	30.0	
(Gains)/losses on disposal of property, equipment, and software, net	0.4	(0.6	)
Purchase of trading investments	(3,409.1	) (2,826.4	)
Sale of trading investments	3,395.4	2,793.3	,
Other gains and losses, net	(17.7	) (18.6	)
Other (gains)/losses of consolidated investment products, net	21.1	121.9	,
Tax benefit from share-based compensation	47.7	39.6	
Excess tax benefits from share-based compensation	(11.7	) (10.6	)
Equity in earnings of unconsolidated affiliates	(8.1	) (9.7	)
Dividends from unconsolidated affiliates	1.0	1.0	,
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:	1.0	1.0	
(Increase)/decrease in cash held by consolidated investment products	(470.2	) (129.9	)
(Increase)/decrease in receivables	(606.6	) (93.0	)
Increase/(decrease) in payables	317.8	(154.4	)
Net cash provided by/(used in) operating activities	(484.6	) (158.3	)
Investing activities:	(101.0	) (150.5	,
Purchase of property and equipment	(18.1	) (18.4	)
Disposal of property and equipment	(10.1	0.6	,
Purchase of available-for-sale investments	(0.1	) (21.4	)
Sale of available-for-sale investments	23.0	20.3	,
Purchase of investments by consolidated investment products	(965.2	) (686.9	)
Sale of investments by consolidated investment products	1,205.6	559.9	,
Purchase of other investments	(127.9	) (41.0	)
Sale of other investments	25.3	21.0	,
Returns of capital and distributions from unconsolidated partnership investments	3.8	6.3	
Acquisition earn-out payments	<i>5</i> .6	(5.1	)
Net cash provided by/(used in) investing activities	146.4	(164.7	)
Financing activities:	140.4	(104.7	,
Proceeds from exercises of share options	5.2	10.2	
Purchases of treasury shares	(45.0	) (75.0	)
Dividends paid	(77.2	) (55.7	)
Excess tax benefits from share-based compensation	11.7	10.6	,
Capital invested into consolidated investment products	3.5	5.1	
Capital distributed by consolidated investment products	(60.9	) (6.6	)
Net borrowings/(repayments) of debt of consolidated investment products	253.0	249.4	,
Net borrowings/(repayments) under credit facility	328.5	41.0	
Net cash provided by/(used in) financing activities	418.8	179.0	
(Decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents	80.6	(144.0	)
(Decrease), mercase in easii and easii equivalents	00.0	(177.0	)

Foreign exchange movement on cash and cash equivalents	(31.4	) 8.9	
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of period	835.5	727.4	
Cash and cash equivalents, end of period	884.7	592.3	
Supplemental Cash Flow Information:			
Interest paid	(2.6	) (11.6	)
Interest received	1.3	1.2	
Taxes paid	(41.3	) (34.2	)
See accompanying notes.			
6			

Invesco Ltd.
Condensed Consolidated Statements of Changes in Equity (Unaudited)

(Unaudited)	Equi	ty Attribu	tab	le to Comm	non Shareh	Retained								
\$ in millions		m&ddition esPaid-in-C		Treasury bi <b>Sth</b> ares	Retained Earnings	Earnings Appropria for Investors in Consolida Investme Products	Other Compre Income ated		Attribut	n	In Consol	ts lida	olling Total Equity ted	
January 1, 2013	98.1	6,141.0		(1,382.9)	2,801.3	128.8	530.5		8,316.8		732.2		9,049.0	)
Net income	_				222.2				222.2		(22.6	)	199.6	
Other comprehensive income (loss)	_			_	_	_	(196.0	)	(196.0	)	(6.7	)	(202.7	)
Total comprehensive income (loss)									26.2		(29.3	)	(3.1	)
Net income (loss) reclassified to appropriated retained earnings	_	_		_	_	(21.4 )	_		(21.4	)	21.4			
Currency translation differences on investments in foreign subsidiaries reclassified to appropriated retained	_	_		_	_	0.3	_		0.3		(0.3	)	_	
earnings Deconsolidation of consolidated investment products Change in noncontrolling	_	_		_	_	_	_		_		(27.7	)	(27.7	)
interests in consolidated entities,		_		_	_	_	_		_		(53.3	)	(53.3	)
net Dividends Employee share plans:		_		_	(77.2 )	_	_		(77.2	)	_		(77.2	)
Share-based compensation		33.5			_	_			33.5		_		33.5	
Vested shares		(155.4	)	155.4		_	_		_					
Exercise of options		(6.5	)	11.7	_	_			5.2				5.2	
Tax impact of share-based payment	_	11.7		_	_	_	_		11.7		_		11.7	
Purchase of shares	_	_		(98.9)	_	_	_		(98.9	)	_		(98.9	)

March 31, 2013 98.1 6,024.3 (1,314.7) 2,946.3 107.7 334.5 8,196.2 643.0 8,839.2 See accompanying notes.

Invesco Ltd.
Condensed Consolidated Statements of Changes in Equity (continued) (Unaudited)

(Unaudited)	Equit	ty Attributa	ble to Comm	non Shareh	olders Retained							
\$ in millions		m <b>&amp;d</b> ditiona ePaid-in-Ca	l Treasury api <b>Sih</b> ares	Retained Earnings	Earnings Appropri for Investors in Consolid Investme Products	Accumula Accumula Other Comprehe Income	Attribut	n	Non-Cor leInterests Consolid Entities ers	in	Total	
January 1, 2012	98.1	6,180.6	(1,280.4)	2,413.2	334.3	373.3	8,119.1		1,018.5		9,137.6	6
Net income			_	193.9			193.9		(119.1	)	74.8	
Other comprehensive income	_	_	_	_	_	107.8	107.8		(1.4	)	106.4	
Total comprehensive income							301.7		(120.5	)	181.2	
Net income (loss) reclassified to appropriated retained earnings Currency translation	_	_	_	_	(59.0 )	_	(59.0	)	59.0		_	
differences on investments in foreign subsidiaries reclassified to appropriated retained	_	_	_	_	(1.4 )	_	(1.4	)	1.4		_	
earnings Deconsolidation of consolidated investment products Change in	_	_	_	_	(47.6	_	(47.6	)	_		(47.6	)
noncontrolling interests in consolidated entities,	_	_	_	_	_	_	_		(16.6	)	(16.6	)
net Dividends Employee share plans:	_	_	_	(55.7)	_	_	(55.7	)	_		(55.7	)
Share-based compensation	_	30.0	_	_	_	_	30.0		_		30.0	
Vested shares	_	(136.9)		_	_	_	_		_		_	
Exercise of options		(10.4)	20.6	_	_	_	10.2		_		10.2	
Tax impact of share-based payment	_	10.6	_	_	_	_	10.6		_		10.6	

Purchase of shares — — (115.7) — — (115.7) — (115.7) — (115.7) — (115.7) March 31, 2012 98.1 6,073.9 (1,238.6) 2,551.4 226.3 481.1 8,192.2 941.8 9,134.0 See accompanying notes.

Invesco Ltd.

Notes to the Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements (unaudited)

#### 1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Corporate Information

Invesco Ltd. (Parent) and all of its consolidated entities (collectively, the company or Invesco) provide retail, institutional and high-net-worth clients with an array of global investment management capabilities. The company's sole business is investment management.

Basis of Accounting and Consolidation

In the opinion of management, the unaudited Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements reflect all adjustments, consisting of normal recurring accruals, which are necessary for the fair presentation of the financial condition and results of operations for the interim periods presented. All significant intercompany transactions, balances, revenues and expenses are eliminated upon consolidation.

The Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with U.S. GAAP and consolidate the financial statements of the Parent, all of its controlled subsidiaries, any variable interest entities (VIEs) required to be consolidated, and any non-VIE general partnership investments where the company is deemed to have control. A VIE is an entity that does not have sufficient equity to finance its operations without additional subordinated financial support, or an entity for which the risks and rewards of ownership are not directly linked to voting interests. Control is deemed to be present when the Parent holds a majority voting interest or otherwise has the power to govern the financial and operating policies of the subsidiary or VIE so as to obtain the benefits from its activities. The company provides investment management services to, and has transactions with, various private equity funds, real estate funds, fund-of-funds, collateralized loan obligations (CLOs), and other investment products sponsored by the company for the investment of client assets in the normal course of business. The company serves as the investment manager, making day-to-day investment decisions concerning the assets of these products. Certain of these entities are considered to be VIEs.

Certain disclosures included in the company's annual report are not required to be included on an interim basis in the company's quarterly reports on Forms 10-Q. The company has condensed or omitted these disclosures. Therefore, this Form 10-Q (Report) should be read in conjunction with the company's annual report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2012.

Use of Estimates

In preparing the financial statements, company management is required to make estimates and assumptions that affect reported revenues, expenses, assets, liabilities and disclosure of contingent liabilities. The primary estimates relate to investment valuation, goodwill and intangible impairment, and taxes. Use of available information and application of judgment are inherent in the formation of estimates. Actual results in the future could differ from such estimates and the differences may be material to the financial statements.

Accounting Pronouncements Recently Adopted and Pending Accounting Pronouncements

In February 2013, the FASB issued Accounting Standards Update No. 2013-02, "Reporting of Amounts Reclassified Out of Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income" (ASU 2013-02). ASU 2013-02 amends Topic 220 to require an entity to present current period reclassifications out of accumulated other comprehensive income and other amounts of current-period other comprehensive income, separately, for each component of other comprehensive income. ASU 2013-02 also requires an entity to provide information about the effects on net income of significant amounts reclassified out of each component of accumulated other comprehensive income, if those amounts are required under other Topics to be reclassified to net income in their entirety in the same reporting period. The amendments to Topic 220 made by ASU 2013-02 are effective for interim and annual periods beginning on or after December 15, 2012 and are reflected in these financial statements.

#### 2. FAIR VALUE OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

The carrying value and fair value of financial instruments is presented in the summary table below. The fair value of financial instruments held by consolidated investment products is presented in Note 12, "Consolidated Investment Products."

\$ in millions Footnote Carrying Fair Value Carrying F	Fair Value	
Reference Value Value Value	ran value	
Cash and cash equivalents 884.7 884.7 835.5 8	335.5	
Available-for-sale investments 3 100.7 100.7 122.1 1	122.1	
Assets held for policyholders 1,205.3 1,205.3 1,153.6 1	1,153.6	
Trading investments 3 240.7 240.7 218.7 2	218.7	
Foreign time deposits* 3 27.2 27.2 31.3 3	31.3	
Support agreements* 11 (1.0 ) (1.0 ) (1.0	(1.0)	
Policyholder payables (1,205.3) (1,205.3) (1,153.6) (1,205.3)	(1,153.6)	
Put option contracts 1.4 1.4 — —		
UIT-related financial instruments sold, not yet purchased (1.4) (1.5) (1.5)	(1.5)	
Note payable (2.4 ) (2.4 ) (3.4 ) (3.4 )	(3.4)	
Total debt* 4 (1,514.5 ) (1,522.4 ) (1,186.0 ) (1	(1,204.8)	

These financial instruments are not measured at fair value on a recurring basis. See the indicated footnotes for additional information about the carrying and fair values of these financial instruments. Foreign time deposits are measured at cost plus accrued interest, which approximates fair value, and are accordingly classified as Level 2 securities.

A three-level valuation hierarchy exists for disclosure of fair value measurements based upon the transparency of inputs to the valuation of an asset or liability as of the measurement date. The three levels are defined as follows:

Level 1 - inputs to the valuation methodology are quoted prices (unadjusted) for identical assets or liabilities in active

Level 2 - inputs to the valuation methodology include quoted prices for similar assets and liabilities in active markets, and inputs that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly, for substantially the full term of the financial instrument.

Level 3 - inputs to the valuation methodology are unobservable and significant to the fair value measurement.

An asset or liability's categorization within the valuation hierarchy is based upon the lowest level of input that is significant to the fair value measurement.

There are three types of valuation approaches: a market approach, which uses observable prices and other relevant information that is generated by market transactions involving identical or comparable assets or liabilities; an income approach, which uses valuation techniques to convert future amounts to a single, discounted present value amount; and a cost approach, which is based on the amount that currently would be required to replace the service capacity of an asset.

The following is a description of the valuation methodologies used for assets and liabilities measured at fair value, as well as the general classification of such assets and liabilities pursuant to the valuation hierarchy.

Cash equivalents

Cash equivalents include cash investments in money market funds and time deposits. Cash investments in money market funds are valued under the market approach through the use of quoted market prices in an active market, which is the net asset value of the underlying funds, and are classified within level 1 of the valuation hierarchy.

### Available-for-sale investments

Available-for-sale investments include amounts seeded into affiliated investment products, investments in affiliated CLOs, and investments in other debt securities. Seed money investments are investments held in Invesco managed funds with the purpose of providing capital to the funds during their development periods. Seed money is valued under the market approach through the use of quoted market prices available in an active market and is classified within level 1 of the valuation hierarchy; there is no modeling or additional information needed to arrive at the fair values of these investments. CLO assets are valued based on price quotations provided by an independent third-party pricing source, in which case they are classified as level 2, or

using an income approach through the use of certain observable and unobservable inputs. Due to current liquidity constraints within the market for CLO products that require the use of unobservable inputs, these investments are classified within level 3 of the valuation hierarchy. Other debt securities are valued using a cost valuation technique due to the lack of available cash flow and market data and are accordingly also classified within Level 3 of the valuation hierarchy.

Assets held for policyholders and policyholder payables

Assets held for policyholders represent investments held by one of the company's subsidiaries, which is an insurance entity that was established to facilitate retirement savings plans in the U.K. The assets held for policyholders are accounted for at fair value pursuant to ASC Topic 944, "Financial Services — Insurance," and are comprised primarily of affiliated unitized funds. The assets are measured at fair value under the market approach based on the quoted prices of the underlying funds in an active market and are classified within level 1 of the valuation hierarchy. The policyholder payables are indexed to the value of the assets held for policyholders.

### Put option contracts

The company has purchased several put option contracts to hedge economically foreign currency risk on the translation of a portion of its pound sterling-denominated earnings into U.S. dollars. The economic hedge is predominantly triggered upon the impact of a significant decline in the pound sterling/U.S. dollar foreign exchange rate, which could arise as a result of European economic uncertainty. Open put option contracts are marked-to-market through earnings, which are recorded in the company's consolidated statement of income in other gains and losses. These derivative contracts are valued using option valuation models and are included in other current assets in the company's consolidated balance sheet. The significant inputs in these models (volatility, forward points and swap curves) are readily available in public markets or can be derived from observable market transactions for substantially the full terms of the contracts and are classified within level 2 of the valuation hierarchy. During the first quarter of 2013, the company purchased new contracts for a total of \$1.8 million to extend the existing coverage through to March 25, 2014. These were the only contracts entered into during the period to hedge economically foreign currency risk. The company recognized a loss of \$0.4 million in the three months ended March 31, 2013 related to the change in market value of these put option contracts.

## Trading investments

Trading investments include investments held to hedge economically against costs the company incurs in connection with certain deferred compensation plans in which the company participates, as well as trading and investing activities in equity and debt securities entered into in its capacity as sponsor of unit investment trusts (UITs).

### Investments related to deferred compensation plans

Investments related to deferred compensation plans are primarily invested in affiliated funds that are held to hedge economically current and non-current deferred compensation liabilities. Investments related to deferred compensation plans are valued under the market approach through the use of quoted prices in an active market and are classified within level 1 of the valuation hierarchy.

Unit Investment Trust ("UIT")-related equity and debt securities

At March 31, 2013, UIT-related equity and debt securities consisted of investments in corporate stock, UITs, U.S. state and political subdivisions. Each is discussed more fully below.

### Corporate stock

The company temporarily holds investments in corporate stock for purposes of creating a UIT. Corporate stocks are valued under the market approach through use of quoted prices on an exchange. To the extent these securities are actively traded, valuation adjustments are not applied and they are categorized within level 1 of the valuation hierarchy; otherwise, they are categorized in level 2.

#### **UITs**

The company may hold units of its sponsored UITs at period-end for sale in the primary market or secondary market. Equity UITs are valued under the market approach through use of quoted prices on an exchange. Fixed income UITs are valued using recently executed transaction prices, market price quotations (where observable), bond spreads, or credit default swap spreads. The spread data used is for the same maturities as the underlying bonds. If the spread data does not reference the issuers, then data that references comparable issuers is used. When observable price quotations

are not available, fair value is determined based on cash flow models with yield curves, bond or single name credit default spreads, and recovery rates based on collateral value as key inputs. Depending on the nature of the inputs, these investments are categorized as level 1, 2, or 3.

### Municipal securities

Municipal securities are valued using recently executed transaction prices, market price quotations (where observable), bond spreads, or credit default swap spreads. The spread data used is for the same maturities as the underlying bonds. If the spread data does not reference the issuers, then data that references comparable issuers is used. When observable price quotations are not available, fair value is determined based on cash flow models with yield curves, bond or single name credit default spreads, and recovery rates based on collateral value as key inputs. Depending on the nature of the inputs, these investments are categorized as level 1, 2, or 3.

UIT-related financial instruments sold, not yet purchased, and derivative instruments

The company uses U.S. Treasury futures, which are types of derivative financial instruments, to hedge economically fixed income UIT inventory and securities in order to mitigate market risk. Open futures contracts are marked-to-market daily through earnings, which are recorded in the company's consolidated statement of income in other revenue, along with the mark-to-market on the underlying trading securities held. Fair values of derivative contracts in an asset position are included in other current assets in the company's consolidated balance sheet. Fair values of derivative contracts in a liability position are included in other liabilities in the company's consolidated balance sheet. These derivative contracts are valued under the market approach through use of quoted prices in an active market and are classified within level 1 of the valuation hierarchy. At March 31, 2013, there were 10 open futures contracts with a notional value of \$1.4 million (December 31, 2012: 10 open futures contracts with a notional value of \$1.4 million). Additionally, to hedge economically the market risk associated with equity and debt securities and UITs temporarily held as trading investments, the company will hold short corporate stock, exchange-traded fund, or U.S. treasury security positions. These transactions are recorded as financial instruments sold, not yet purchased and are included in other current liabilities in the company's consolidated balance sheet. To the extent these securities are actively traded, valuation adjustments are not applied and they are categorized within level 1 of the valuation hierarchy; otherwise, they are categorized in level 2.

### Note payable

The note payable represents a payable associated with Invesco's acquired ownership interest in two consolidated real estate funds. As the underlying investments in the funds are carried at fair value (and are disclosed as level 3 assets in the fair value hierarchy table included in Note 12, "Consolidated Investment Products"), management elected the fair value option for the note payable in order to offset the fair value movements recognized from the funds and has recorded the note payable as a level 3 liability. The fair value of the note payable is measured by reference to the value of the company's ownership interest in the equity of the funds, as this is the contractual amount payable at the reporting date. The value of the funds' equity is driven by the value of the underlying investments of the funds, as these investments make up the majority of the funds' equity. See Note 12, "Consolidated Investment Products," for additional information regarding the valuation of the underlying investments of the funds.

The following table presents, for each of the hierarchy levels described above, the carrying value of the company's assets and liabilities, including major security type for equity and debt securities, which are measured at fair value on the face of the statement of financial position as of March 31, 2013.

	As of March 31	, 2013		
\$ in millions	Fair Value Measurements	Quoted Prices in Active Markets for Identical Assets (Level 1)	Significant Other Observable Inputs (Level 2)	Significant Unobservable Inputs (Level 3)
Current assets:				
Cash equivalents:	• • • •			
Money market funds	310.4	310.4	_	_
Investments:*				
Available-for-sale:				
Seed money	92.0	92.0		_
Trading investments:				
Investments related to deferred compensation plans	235.6	235.6		_
Other equity securities	0.3	0.3		_
UIT-related equity and debt securities:				
Corporate stock	1.5	1.5		_
UITs	1.7	1.7	—	_
Municipal securities	1.6		1.6	_
Assets held for policyholders	1,205.3	1,205.3		_
Put option contracts	1.4	_	1.4	_
Total current assets	1,849.8	1,846.8	3.0	_
Non-current assets:				
Investments — available-for-sale*:				
CLOs	2.4			2.4
Other debt securities	6.3		_	6.3
Total assets at fair value	1,858.5	1,846.8	3.0	8.7
Current liabilities:				
Policyholder payables	(1,205.3)	(1,205.3)	_	_
UIT-related financial instruments sold, not yet				
purchased:				
Corporate equities	(1.4)	(1.4)	_	_
Note payable	(2.4)	_	_	(2.4)
Total liabilities at fair value	(1,209.1)	(1,206.7)	_	(2.4)

Current foreign time deposits of \$27.2 million are excluded from this table. Non-current equity method and other \*investments of \$342.8 million and \$10.2 million, respectively, are also excluded from this table. These investments are not measured at fair value, in accordance with applicable accounting standards.

### **Table of Contents**

The following table presents, for each of the hierarchy levels described above, the carrying value of the company's assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value as of December 31, 2012:

	As of December	er 31, 2012			
\$ in millions	Fair Value Measurements	Quoted Prices in Active Markets for Identical Assets (Level 1)	Significant Other Observable Inputs (Level 2)	Significant Unobservabl Inputs (Leve 3)	
Current assets:					
Cash equivalents:					
Money market funds	292.2	292.2	_	_	
Investments:*					
Available-for-sale:					
Seed money	113.4	113.4	_	_	
Trading investments:					
Investments related to deferred compensation plans	213.5	213.5		_	
Other equity securities	0.3	0.3		_	
UIT-related equity and debt securities:					
Corporate stock	1.5	1.5		_	
UITs	1.6	1.6	_		
Municipal securities	1.8		1.8	_	
Assets held for policyholders	1,153.6	1,153.6	_	_	
Total current assets	1,777.9	1,776.1	1.8		
Non-current assets:					
Investments — available-for-sale*:					
CLOs	2.4			2.4	
Other debt securities	6.3	_	_	6.3	
Total assets at fair value	1,786.6	1,776.1	1.8	8.7	
Current liabilities:					
Policyholder payables	(1,153.6)	(1,153.6)			
UIT-related financial instruments sold, not yet					
purchased:					
Corporate equities	(1.5)	(1.5)			
Non-current liabilities:					
Note payable	(3.4)		_	(3.4	)
Total liabilities at fair value	(1,158.5)	(1,155.1)		(3.4	)

Current foreign time deposits of \$31.3 million and other current investments of \$0.8 million are excluded from this \*table. Non-current equity method and other investments of \$228.2 million and \$9.9 million, respectively, are also excluded from this table. These investments are not measured at fair value, in accordance with applicable accounting standards.

The following table shows a reconciliation of the beginning and ending fair value measurements for level 3 assets and liabilities during the three months ended March 31, 2013 and March 31, 2012, which are valued using significant unobservable inputs:

•			Three mor	Three months ended March 31, 2012		
CLOs	Other Debt Securities	Note Payable	CLOs	Other Debt Securities	Note Payable	
2.4	6.3	(3.4)			(16.8	)
_	_			1.7	_	
_	_	0.7			_	
_			2.5	_		
_	_	_	0.3	_	_	
_	_	0.1	_	_	3.5	
_	_	_		4.6	_	
_	_	0.2			1.0	
2.4	6.3	(2.4)	2.8	6.3	(12.3	)
	2013 CLOs 2.4 — — — — —	2013 Other CLOs Debt Securities 2.4 6.3	Other Debt Payable         CLOs       Debt Securities       Note Payable         2.4       6.3       (3.4       )         —       —       —         —       —       0.7         —       —       —         —       —       —         —       —       —         —       —       —         —       —       —         —       —       —         —       —       —         —       —       —         —       —       —         —       —       —         —       —       —         —       —       —	CLOs       Other Debt Securities       Note Payable       CLOs         2.4       6.3       (3.4       ) —         —       —       —       —         —       —       0.7       —         —       —       2.5         —       —       0.3         —       —       —         — <td>2013       2012         Other CLOs       Other Debt Securities       Note Payable       CLOs       Debt Securities         2.4       6.3       (3.4)       )       —       —         —       —       —       1.7       —       —         —       —       0.7       —       —       —         —       —       —       2.5       —         —       —       0.3       —         —       —       0.1       —       —         —       —       —       4.6         —       —       —       —</td> <td>2013       2012         CLOs       Other Debt Securities       Note Payable Securities       CLOs Debt Securities       Note Payable Securities         2.4       6.3       (3.4)       —       —       (16.8)         —       —       —       —       —         —       —       0.7       —       —       —         —       —       —       2.5       —       —         —       —       —       0.3       —       —         —       —       —       3.5         —       —       —       4.6       —         —       —       —       —       1.0</td>	2013       2012         Other CLOs       Other Debt Securities       Note Payable       CLOs       Debt Securities         2.4       6.3       (3.4)       )       —       —         —       —       —       1.7       —       —         —       —       0.7       —       —       —         —       —       —       2.5       —         —       —       0.3       —         —       —       0.1       —       —         —       —       —       4.6         —       —       —       —	2013       2012         CLOs       Other Debt Securities       Note Payable Securities       CLOs Debt Securities       Note Payable Securities         2.4       6.3       (3.4)       —       —       (16.8)         —       —       —       —       —         —       —       0.7       —       —       —         —       —       —       2.5       —       —         —       —       —       0.3       —       —         —       —       —       3.5         —       —       —       4.6       —         —       —       —       —       1.0

Included in other gains and losses, net in the Condensed Consolidated Statement of Income for the three months ended March 31, 2013 are \$0.1 million in net unrealized gains (three months ended March 31, 2012: \$3.5 million) attributable to the note payable still held at March 31, 2013. There were no net unrealized gains or losses included in accumulated other comprehensive income/(loss) for the three months ended March 31, 2013 (three months ended March 31, 2012: \$0.3 million in gains) attributed to the change in unrealized gains and losses related to assets still held at March 31, 2013.

#### Ouantitative Information about Level 3 Fair Value Measurements

The following table shows significant unobservable inputs used in the fair value measurement of level 3 assets and liabilities:

Assets and Liabilities *	Fair Value at March 31, 2013 (\$ in millions)	Valuation Technique	Unobservable Inputs	Range
CLOs	2.4	Discounted Cash Flow- Euro	Probability of Default	3% - 5%
			Spread over Euribor	3000 - 3600 bps
		Discounted Cash Flow- USD	Probability of Default	1% - 3%
			Spread over Libor	1400 - 1700 bps
Assets and Liabilities *	Fair Value at December 31, 2012 (\$ in millions)	Valuation Technique	Unobservable Inputs	Range
CLOs	2.4	Discounted Cash Flow- Euro	Probability of Default	3% - 5%
			Spread over Euribor	2975 - 3050 bps

Discounted Cash Flow-USD

Probability of Default

1% - 3%

Spread over Libor

1350 - 1400 bps

Other debt securities of \$6.3 million (at December 31, 2012: \$6.3 million) are not included in the table above as they are valued using a cost valuation technique. The note payable of \$2.4 million (at December 31, 2012: \$3.4 million) is also not included in the table above as its value is linked to the underlying value of consolidated funds. Both items are more fully discussed in the "Available-for-sale investments" and "Note payable" disclosures above.

For CLO Notes, a change in the assumption used for spreads is generally accompanied by a directionally similar change in default rate. Significant increases in any of these inputs in isolation would result in significant decreases in fair value measurements. A directionally-opposite impact would apply for significant decreases in these inputs.

#### 3. INVESTMENTS

The disclosures below include details of the company's investments. Investments held by consolidated investment products are detailed in Note 12, "Consolidated Investment Products."

Current Investments

	As of	
	March 31,	December 31,
\$ in millions	2013	2012
Available-for-sale investments:		
Seed money	92.0	113.4
Trading investments:		
Investments related to deferred compensation plans	235.6	213.5
UIT-related equity and debt securities	4.8	4.9
Other equity securities	0.3	0.3
Foreign time deposits	27.2	31.3
Other		0.5
Total current investments	359.9	363.9
Non-current Investments		
	As of	
	March 31,	December 31,
\$ in millions	2013	2012
Available-for-sale investments:		
CLOs	2.4	2.4
Other debt securities	6.3	6.3
Equity method investments	342.8	228.2
Other	10.2	9.9
Total non-current investments	361.7	246.8

In March 2013, the company completed the purchase of a 49% equity interest in Religare Asset Management Limited, a company incorporated in India. The company has applied the equity method of accounting for its investment. The equity method investment balance above includes the difference between the carrying amount of the investment and its book value.

The portion of trading gains and losses for the three months ended March 31, 2013 that relates to trading securities still held at March 31, 2013 was a \$16.5 million net gain (three months ended March 31, 2012: \$11.5 million net gain).

Realized gains and losses recognized in the income statement during the year from investments classified as available-for-sale are as follows:

	For the three months ended March 31, 2013			For the three months ended March 31, 2012			
\$ in millions	Proceeds from Sales	Gross Realized Gains	Gross Realized Losses	Proceeds from Sales	Gross Realized Gains	Gross Realized Losses	
Current available-for-sale investments	22.9	1.7	(0.3	20.3	1.5	(0.5	)
Non-current available-for-sale investments	0.1	_	_	_	_	_	

Upon the sale of available-for-sale securities, net realized gains of \$1.4 million and \$1.0 million were transferred from accumulated other comprehensive income into the Condensed Consolidated Statements of Income during the three months ended March 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively. The specific identification method is used to determine the

realized gain or loss on securities sold or otherwise disposed.

Gross unrealized holding gains and losses recognized in other accumulated comprehensive income from available-for-sale investments are presented in the table below:

	March 31,	2013			December	31, 2012		
\$ in millions	Cost	Gross Unrealized Holding Gains	Gross Unrealized Holding Losses	Fair Value	Cost	Gross Unrealized Holding Gains	Gross Unrealized Holding Losses	l Fair Value
Current:								
Seed money	81.2	10.8		92.0	105.5	8.4	(0.5)	113.4
Current								
available-for-sale	81.2	10.8		92.0	105.5	8.4	(0.5)	113.4
investments								
Non-current:								
CLOs	2.4			2.4	2.4			2.4
Other debt securities	6.3			6.3	6.3			6.3
Non-current								
available-for-sale	8.7			8.7	8.7			8.7
investments:								
	89.9	10.8	_	100.7	114.2	8.4	(0.5)	122.1

Available-for-sale debt securities as of March 31, 2013 by maturity, are set out below:

	Available-for-Sale
\$ in millions	(Fair Value)
One to five years	1.7
Five to ten years	7.0
Total available-for-sale	8.7

The following table provides the breakdown of available-for-sale investments with unrealized losses at March 31, 2013:

	Less Than 12 Months		12 Months or Greater		Total	
		Gross		Gross		Gross
\$ in millions	Fair Value	Unrealized	Fair Value	Unrealized	Fair Value	Unrealized
		Losses		Losses		Losses
Seed money (31 funds)	6.9	_	0.2	_	7.1	_

The following table provides the breakdown of available-for-sale investments with unrealized losses at December 31, 2012:

	Less Than 1	2 Months	12 Months o	r Greater	Total	
		Gross		Gross		Gross
\$ in millions	Fair Value	Unrealized	Fair Value	Unrealized	Fair Value	Unrealized
		Losses		Losses		Losses
Seed money (52 funds)	0.2	_	11.5	(0.5)	11.7	(0.5)

The company has reviewed investment securities for other-than-temporary impairment (OTTI) in accordance with its accounting policy and has recognized no other-than-temporary impairment charges on available-for-sale investments during the three months ended March 31, 2013 (three months ended March 31, 2012: none).

The gross unrealized losses of seed money investments at March 31, 2013 were immaterial and were primarily caused by foreign exchange movements. After conducting a review of the financial condition and near-term prospects of the underlying securities in the seeded funds as well as the severity and duration of the impairment, the company does not consider any material portion of its gross unrealized losses on these securities to be other-than-temporarily impaired. The securities are expected to recover their value over time and the company has the intent and ability to hold the securities until this recovery occurs.

#### 4. DEBT

The disclosures below include details of the company's debt. Debt of consolidated investment products is detailed in Note 12, "Consolidated Investment Products."

	March 31, 2013		December 31, 2012	
\$ in millions	Carrying Value	Fair Value	Carrying Value	Fair Value
Unsecured Senior Notes*:				
3.125% - due November 30, 2022	599.5	607.4	599.5	618.3
Floating rate credit facility expiring June 3, 2016	915.0	915.0	586.5	586.5
Total debt	1,514.5	1,522.4	1,186.0	1,204.8

<sup>\*</sup>The company's Senior Note indentures contain certain restrictions on mergers or consolidations. Beyond these items, there are no other restrictive covenants in the indentures.

The fair value of the company's Senior Notes was determined by market quotes provided by Bloomberg, which is considered a Level 2 valuation input. In the absence of an active market, the company relies upon the average price quoted by brokers for determining the fair value of the debt.

Analysis of Borrowings by Maturity:

\$ in millions	March 31, 2013
2016	915.0
2022	599.5
Total debt	1,514.5

In November 2012, the company issued an initial aggregate principal amount of \$600.0 million 3.125% Senior Notes which will mature in November 2022. The issuer is a 100%-owned finance subsidiary of the Parent, and the Parent has fully and unconditionally guaranteed the securities. Certain of our subsidiaries are required to maintain minimum levels of capital. These and other similar provisions of applicable law may have the effect of limiting withdrawals of capital, repayment of intercompany loans and payment of dividends by such entities.

At March 31, 2013, the outstanding balance on the credit facility was \$915.0 million and the weighted average interest rate on the credit facility was 1.30%. Borrowings under the credit facility will bear interest at (i) LIBOR for specified interest periods or (ii) a floating base rate (based upon the highest of (a) the Bank of America prime rate, (b) the Federal Funds rate plus 0.50% and (c) LIBOR for an interest period of one month plus 1.00%), plus, in either case, an applicable margin determined with reference to the company's credit ratings and specified credit default spreads. Based on credit ratings as of March 31, 2013 of the company and such credit default spreads, the applicable margin for LIBOR-based loans was 1.10% and for base rate loans was 0.10%. In addition, the company is required to pay the lenders a facility fee on the aggregate commitments of the lenders (whether or not used) at a rate per annum which is based on the company's credit ratings. Based on credit ratings as of March 31, 2013, the annual facility fee was equal to 0.15%.

The credit agreement governing the credit facility contains customary restrictive covenants on the company and its subsidiaries. Restrictive covenants in the credit agreement include, but are not limited to: prohibitions on creating, incurring or assuming any liens; entering into certain restrictive merger arrangements; selling, leasing, transferring or otherwise disposing of assets; making a material change in the nature of the business; making material amendments to organic documents; making a significant accounting policy change in certain situations; entering into transactions with affiliates. Many of these restrictions are subject to certain minimum thresholds and exceptions. Financial covenants under the credit agreement include: (i) the quarterly maintenance of a debt/EBITDA ratio, as defined in the credit agreement, of not greater than 3.25:1.00 through June 30, 2014, and not greater than 3.00:1.00 thereafter, (ii) a coverage ratio (EBITDA, as defined in the credit agreement, divided by interest payable for the four consecutive fiscal quarters ended before the date of determination) of not less than 4.00:1.00.

The credit agreement governing the credit facility also contains customary provisions regarding events of default which could result in an acceleration or increase in amounts due, including (subject to certain materiality thresholds and grace periods) payment default, failure to comply with covenants, material inaccuracy of representation or warranty, bankruptcy or insolvency proceedings, change of control, certain judgments, ERISA matters, cross-default to other debt agreements,

governmental action prohibiting or restricting the company or its subsidiaries in a manner that has a material adverse effect and failure of certain guaranty obligations. The company is in compliance with all regulatory minimum net capital requirements.

The lenders (and their respective affiliates) may have provided, and may in the future provide, investment banking, cash

management, underwriting, lending, commercial banking, leasing, foreign exchange, trust or other advisory services to the company and its subsidiaries and affiliates. These parties may have received, and may in the future receive, customary compensation for these services.

The company maintains approximately \$32.3 million in letters of credit from a variety of banks. The letters of credit are generally one-year automatically-renewable facilities and are maintained for various commercial reasons. Approximately \$11.2 million of the letters of credit support office lease obligations.

#### 5. SHARE CAPITAL

Movements in the number of common shares issued are represented in the table below:

In millions	March 31, 2013	March 31, 2012
Common shares issued	490.4	490.4
Less: Treasury shares for which dividend and voting rights do not apply	(45.8)	(42.2)
Common shares outstanding	444.6	448.2

During the three months ended March 31, 2013, the company repurchased 1.6 million shares in the market at a cost of \$45.0 million (three months ended March 31, 2012: 3.1 million shares were repurchased at a cost of \$75.0 million). Separately, an aggregate of 2.1 million shares were withheld on vesting events during the three months ended March 31, 2013 to meet employees' withholding tax (three months ended March 31, 2012: 1.6 million). The fair value of these shares withheld at the respective withholding dates was \$53.9 million during the three months ended March 31, 2013 (three months ended March 31, 2012: \$40.7 million). As of March 31, 2013, \$422.0 million remained authorized under the company's share repurchase plan (three months ended March 31, 2012: \$657.0 million). Total treasury shares at March 31, 2013 were 56.4 million (March 31, 2012: 52.9 million), including 10.6 million unvested restricted stock awards (March 31, 2012: 10.7 million) for which dividend and voting rights apply. The closing market price of common shares at March 31, 2013 was \$28.96. The total market value of the company's 56.4 million treasury shares was \$1.6 billion on March 31, 2013.

# 6. OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/(LOSS)

The components of accumulated other comprehensive income/(loss) were as follows:

	For the three months ended March 31, 2013							
\$ in millions	Foreign currency translation	Employ benefit plans	ee	Equity method investments	Available-for investments	r-sale	<sup>e</sup> Total	
Accumulated other comprehensive income/(loss)		1						
before tax:	<b>5</b> 00.6	(100.6		2.1	<b>7</b> .0		<b>5</b> 060	
Beginning balance	598.6	(102.6	)	2.1	7.9		506.0	
Currency translation differences on investments in foreign subsidiaries *	(209.6)	_		_	_		(209.6	<b>,</b> )
Actuarial (loss)/gain related to employee benefit plans	_	6.5					6.5	
Reclassification of amortization of prior service								
costs/(credit) into employee compensation expense	_	(0.5	)	_	_		(0.5	)
Reclassification of amortization of actuarial		0.7					0.7	
(gains)/losses into employee compensation expense	_	0.7		_	_		0.7	
Share of other comprehensive income (loss) of equity method investments	_	_		(0.3)			(0.3	)
Unrealized gains on available-for-sale investments	_				4.3		4.3	
Reclassification of net (gains)/losses realized on								
available-for-sale investments included in other gains	_				(1.4	)	(1.4	)
and losses, net	•	/a = a						
Ending balance	389.0	(95.9	)	1.8	10.8		305.7	
Income tax related to accumulated other								
comprehensive income/(loss):	3.1	23.2			(1.8	`	24.5	
Beginning balance Tax benefit/(expense) on foreign currency translation		23.2		_	(1.0	)		
differences	(0.8)				_		(0.8	)
Tax on actuarial (loss)/gain related to employee benefit		/ <b>1 1</b>					/1 A	
plans	_	(1.4	)	_	_		(1.4	)
Reclassification of tax on amortization of prior service		0.1			_		0.1	
costs/(credit) into income tax provision		0.1					0.1	
Reclassification of tax on amortization of actuarial	_	(0.2	)	_	_		(0.2	)
(loss)/gain into income tax provision		(**-					(*	,
Tax on net unrealized gains on available-for-sale				_	0.2		0.2	
investments Reclassification of tax on net (gains)/losses realized on								
available-for-sale investments included in income tax					(0.3	)	(0.3	)
provision					(0.5	,	(0.5	,
Ending balance	2.3	21.7		_	(1.9	)	22.1	
Accumulated other comprehensive income/(loss), net					`			
of tax:								
Beginning balance	601.7	(79.4	)	2.1	6.1		530.5	
Other comprehensive income/(loss), net of tax	(210.4)	5.2		(0.3)	2.8		(202.7	')
Other comprehensive (income)/loss attributable to	6.7			_			6.7	
noncontrolling interest		(74.2	`	1.0	0.0			
Ending balance	398.0	(74.2	)	1.8	8.9		334.5	

\$ in millions  Accumulated other comprehensive income/(loss) before	Foreign currency	Available-for					or-sa	r-sale Total		
tax: Beginning balance	452.7	(98.2	`	(4.3	`	(2.2	`	348.0		
Currency translation differences on investments in		(98.2	)	(4.3	)	(2.2	)			
foreign subsidiaries *	99.8					_		99.8		
Actuarial (loss)/gain related to employee benefit plans		(1.0	)					(1.0	)	
Reclassification of amortization of prior service		•	,					•	,	
costs/(credit) into employee compensation expense		(0.5	)			_		(0.5)	)	
Reclassification of amortization of actuarial		0.4						0.4		
(gains)/losses into employee compensation expense		0.4				_		0.4		
Share of other comprehensive income (loss) of equity		_		2.0		_		2.0		
method investments						. <b>.</b>				
Unrealized gains on available-for-sale investments						6.5		6.5		
Reclassification of net (gains)/losses realized on available-for-sale investments included in other gains						(1.0	`	(1.0	`	
and losses, net	_	_		_		(1.0	)	(1.0	)	
Ending balance	552.5	(99.3	)	(2.3	)	3.3		454.2		
Income tax related to accumulated other comprehensive	002.0	()).5	,	(2.3	,	3.3		2		
income/(loss):										
Beginning balance	2.5	23.4				(0.6	)	25.3		
Tax on actuarial (loss)/gain related to employee benefit		0.3						0.3		
plans	_	0.3		_		_		0.3		
Reclassification of tax on amortization of prior service	_	0.1		_		_		0.1		
costs/(credit) into income tax provision		0.1						0.1		
Reclassification of tax on amortization of actuarial		(0.1	)			_		(0.1	)	
(loss)/gain into income tax provision		`								
Reclassification of tax on net (gains)/losses realized on						(0.1	`	(0.1	`	
available-for-sale investments included in income tax provision	_	_		_		(0.1	)	(0.1	)	
Ending balance	2.5	23.7		_		(0.7	)	25.5		
Accumulated other comprehensive income/(loss), net of	2.3	23.1				(0.7	,	23.3		
tax:										
Beginning balance	455.2	(74.8	)	(4.3	)	(2.8	)	373.3		
Other comprehensive income/(loss), net of tax	99.8	(0.8	-	2.0	ĺ	5.4		106.4		
Other comprehensive (income)/loss attributable to	1.4							1.4		
noncontrolling interest		_				_				
Ending balance	556.4	(75.6	)	(2.3	)	2.6		481.1		

Included in this amount are net losses of \$6.7 million for the three months ended March 31, 2013 related to foreign currency translation adjustments attributable to consolidated investment products (three months ended March 31, 2012: net losses of \$1.4 million). Of this amount, gross gains of \$0.3 million are reclassified from accumulated other comprehensive income into retained earnings appropriated for investors in consolidated investment products (three months ended March 31, 2012: losses of \$1.4 million).

### 7. SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION

The company issues equity-settled share-based awards to certain employees, which are measured at fair value at the date of grant, in accordance with ASC Topic 718, "Compensation — Stock Compensation." The fair value determined at the grant date is expensed, based on the company's estimate of shares that will eventually vest, on a straight-line or accelerated basis over the vesting period. The company recognized total expenses of \$33.5 million in the three months ended March 31, 2013 (three months ended March 31, 2012: \$30.0 million) related to equity-settled share-based payment transactions.

#### Share Awards

Share awards are broadly classified into two categories: time-vested and performance-vested. Share awards are measured at fair value at the date of grant and are expensed, based on the company's estimate of shares that will eventually vest, on a straightline or accelerated basis over the vesting period.

Time-vested awards vest ratably over or cliff-vest at the end of a period of continued employee service.

Performance-vested awards cliff-vest at the end of or vest ratably over a defined vesting period of continued employee service upon the company's attainment of certain performance criteria. Time-vested and performance-vested share awards are granted in the form of restricted share awards (RSAs) or restricted share units (RSUs). Performance-vested awards are tied to the achievement of specified levels of adjusted diluted earnings per share and adjusted operating margin. In the event that either targeted financial measure is achieved at or above a vesting threshold for a particular performance measurement period, the portion of the performance-vested award subject to targeted financial measures will vest proportionately between 0% and 100% based upon the higher achieved level for that year.

With respect to time-vested awards, dividends accrue directly to the employee holder of RSAs, and cash payments in lieu of dividends are made to employee holders of certain RSUs. With respect to performance-vested awards, dividends and cash payments in lieu of dividends are deferred and are paid at the same rate as on our shares if and to the extent the award vests.

Movements on share awards priced in U.S. dollars are detailed below:

	Three months ended March 31, 2013			Three months ended March 31, 2012						
				Weighted			Weighted			
Millions of shares, except fair				Average	Average					
values	Time-VestedPerformance-VesteGrant Date					Time-Vestelerformance-Vestelerant Date				
values				Fair Value			Fair Value			
				(\$)			(\$)			
Unvested at the beginning of period	16.5	0.3		22.36	17.3	_	20.34			
Granted during the period	5.1	0.2		26.81	5.3	0.3	24.94			
Forfeited during the period	(0.1	) —		23.56	_		_			
Vested and distributed during the period	(6.2	) (0.1	)	19.86	(5.0	) —	18.73			
Unvested at the end of the period	15.3	0.4		24.83	17.6	0.3	22.22			

On December 4, 2007, in connection with the redomicile of the company from the U.K. to Bermuda, the company's primary share listing moved from the London Stock Exchange to the New York Stock Exchange. Movements on share awards priced in Pounds Sterling, which were awarded prior to the move of the company's primary share listing to the New York Stock Exchange, are detailed below:

	Three months e 2013	nded March 31,	Three months ended March 31, 2012			
Millions of shares, except fair values	Time-Vested	Weighted Average Grant Date Fair Value (£ Sterling)	Time-Vested	Weighted Average Grant Date Fair Value (£ Sterling)		
Unvested at the beginning of period	0.3	12.90	0.6	11.25		
Vested and distributed during the period	_	_	(0.2)	6.64		
Unvested at the end of the period	0.3	12.90	0.4	12.90		

All share awards outstanding at March 31, 2013 had a weighted average remaining contractual life of 2.04 years. The total fair value of shares that vested during the three months ended March 31, 2013 was \$159.8 million (three months

ended March 31, 2012: \$127.6 million). The weighted average fair value at the date of grant of the U.S. dollar vested and distributed share awards was \$19.86.

At March 31, 2013, there was \$363.0 million of total unrecognized compensation cost related to non-vested share awards;

that cost is expected to be recognized over a weighted average period of 3.32 years years.

**Share Options** 

The company has not granted share option awards since 2005. All share option awards, therefore, were granted prior to the

December 4, 2007, redomicile from the United Kingdom to Bermuda and relisting from the London Stock Exchange (where the predecessor company's ordinary shares traded in Pounds Sterling) to the New York Stock Exchange (where the company's common shares now trade in U.S. Dollars). The company maintains its two historical share option plans which have outstanding share options: The 2000 Share Option Plan and the No. 3 Executive Share Option Scheme. All remaining outstanding share option awards were fully vested and were expensed by the company over the applicable vesting periods (the

latest of which ended prior to December 31, 2008). At the time of their grants, the exercise prices of the share options were denominated in the company's trading currency, which was the Pound Sterling. The company did not change the accounting for share options at the redomicile/relisting date, because the share options were not modified at that date. The exercise price remains in Pounds Sterling and was not changed to U.S. Dollars. Therefore, upon exercise of the share options, the Pound Sterling exercise price will be converted into U.S. Dollars using the spot foreign exchange rate in effect on the exercise date. Upon the exercise of share options, the company either issues new shares or can utilize shares held in treasury (see Note 5, "Share Capital") to satisfy the exercise.

Changes in outstanding share option awards are as follows:

	Three mont	hs ended March 31,	Three months ended March 3				
	2013		2012				
		Weighted		Weighted			
Millions of shares, except prices	Options	Average	Options	Average			
	Options	Exercise Price	Options	Exercise Price			
		(£ Sterling)		(£ Sterling)			
Outstanding at the beginning of the period	2.6	7.31	4.5	7.85			
Forfeited during the period		_	(0.1	) 15.30			
Exercised during the period	(0.4	) 7.33	(0.7	) 8.47			
Outstanding at the end of the period	2.2	7.31	3.7	7.51			
Exercisable at the end of the period	2.2	7.31	3.7	7.51			

### 8. RETIREMENT BENEFIT PLANS

### **Defined Contribution Plans**

The company operates defined contribution retirement benefit plans for all qualifying employees. The assets of the plans are held separately from those of the company in funds under the control of trustees. When employees leave the plans prior to vesting fully in the contributions, the contributions payable by the company are reduced by the amount of forfeited contributions.

The total amounts charged to the Condensed Consolidated Statements of Income for the three months ended March 31, 2013 and 2012, of \$15.7 million and \$17.0 million, respectively, represent contributions paid or payable to these plans by the company at rates specified in the rules of the plans. As of March 31, 2013, accrued contributions of \$6.5 million (December 31, 2012: \$20.5 million) for the current year will be paid to the plans.

### Defined Benefit Plans

The company maintains legacy defined benefit pension plans for qualifying employees of its subsidiaries in the U.K., Ireland, Germany, and Taiwan. All defined benefit plans are closed to new participants. The company also maintains a post-retirement medical plan in the U.S., which was closed to new participants in 2005. In 2006, the plan was amended to eliminate benefits for all participants who did not meet retirement eligibility by 2008. The assets of all defined schemes are held in separate trustee-administered funds. Under the plans, the employees are generally entitled to retirement benefits based on final salary at retirement.

The components of net periodic benefit cost in respect of these defined benefit plans are as follows:

	Three months ended March 31,						
	Retireme	ent Plans	Medical Plan	n			
\$ in millions	2013	2012	2013	2012			
Service cost	(1.1	) (1.1	) (0.1	0.1	)		
Interest cost	(4.9	) (4.8	) (0.5	0.6	)		
Expected return on plan assets	4.4	4.4	0.1	0.1			
Amortization of prior service cost			0.5	0.5			
Amortization of net actuarial (loss)/gain	(0.6	) (0.3	) (0.1	0.1	)		
Net periodic benefit cost	(2.2	) (1.8	) (0.1	) (0.2	)		

The estimated amount of contributions expected to be paid to the retirement plans during 2013 is \$15.9 million, with an additional expected contribution of \$2.3 million to the medical plan.

#### 9. TAXATION

At March 31, 2013, the total amount of gross unrecognized tax benefits was \$22.1 million as compared to the December 31, 2012, total of \$22.6 million. The company and its subsidiaries file annual income tax returns in the U.S. federal jurisdiction, various U.S. state and local jurisdictions, and in numerous foreign jurisdictions. A number of years may elapse before an uncertain tax position, for which the company has unrecognized tax benefits, is finally resolved. To the extent that the company has favorable tax settlements, or determines that accrued amounts are no longer needed due to a lapse in the applicable statute of limitations or other reasons, such liabilities, as well as the related interest and penalty, would be reversed as a reduction of income tax expense (net of federal tax effects, if applicable) in the period such determination is made.

### 10. EARNINGS PER SHARE

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing net income attributable to common shareholders by the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period, excluding treasury shares. The weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period also includes participating securities such as unvested time-based restricted stock awards and restricted stock units that pay dividend equivalents. Diluted earnings per share is computed using the treasury stock method, which requires computing share equivalents and dividing net income attributable to common shareholders by the total weighted average number of shares and share equivalents outstanding during the period. The calculation of earnings per share is as follows:

Mat Income

In millions, except per share data	Attributable to Common Shareholders	Weighted Average Number of Shares	Per Share Amount	
For the three months ended March 31, 2013:				
Basic earnings per share	\$222.2	447.8	\$0.50	
Dilutive effect of share-based awards	_	1.2	(\$0.01	)
Diluted earnings per share	\$222.2	449.0	\$0.49	
For the three months ended March 31, 2012:				
Basic earnings per share	\$193.9	454.3	\$0.43	
Dilutive effect of share-based awards	_	1.6		
Diluted earnings per share	\$193.9	455.9	\$0.43	

See Note 7, "Share-based Compensation," for a summary of share awards outstanding under the company's share-based payment programs. These programs could result in the issuance of common shares that would affect the measurement of basic and diluted earnings per share.

There were no options to purchase or options outstanding for the three months ended March 31, 2013 (three months ended March 31, 2012: none) that were not included in the computation of diluted earnings per share because the options' exercise price were greater than the average market price of the shares and therefore their inclusion would have been anti-dilutive.

#### 11. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Commitments and contingencies may arise in the ordinary course of business.

### Off Balance Sheet Commitments

The company has transactions with various private equity, real estate and other investment entities sponsored by the company for the investment of client assets in the normal course of business. Many of the company's investment products are structured as limited partnerships. The company's investment may take the form of the general partner or a limited partner, and the entities are structured such that each partner makes capital commitments that are to be drawn down over the life of the partnership as investment opportunities are identified. At March 31, 2013, the company's

undrawn capital commitments were \$134.8 million (December 31, 2012: \$209.3 million).

During 2007, Invesco elected to enter into contingent support agreements for two of its investment trusts to enable them to sustain a stable pricing structure. These two trusts are unregistered trusts that invest in fixed income securities and are available only to limited types of investors. In December 2012, the agreements were amended to extend the term through June 30, 2013; further extensions are likely. As of March 31, 2013, the total committed support under these agreements was \$21.0 million with an internal approval mechanism to increase the maximum possible support to \$66.0 million at the option of the company. The estimated value of these agreements at March 31, 2013, was \$1.0 million (December 31, 2012: \$1.0 million), which is included in other current liabilities on the Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheet and represents a Level 3 measurement due to its

determination from an expected present value technique. The estimated value of these agreements is lower than the maximum support amount, reflecting management's estimation that the likelihood of funding under the support agreements is low. Significant investor redemptions out of the trusts before the scheduled maturity of the underlying securities or significant credit default issues of the securities held within the trusts' portfolios could change the company's estimation of likelihood of funding. No payment has been made under either agreement nor has Invesco realized any loss from the support agreements through the date of this Report. These trusts were not consolidated because the company was not deemed to be the primary beneficiary.

A subsidiary of the company has received assessments related to various prior taxation periods for goods and services tax on revenue to which management fee rebates had been applied in those periods. The assessments, related interest, and penalty amounts are approximately \$20.6 million. Management believes Canada Revenue Agency's claims are unfounded and that these assessments are unlikely to stand, and accordingly no provision has been recorded in the Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements.

The Parent and various company subsidiaries have entered into agreements with financial institutions to guarantee certain obligations of other company subsidiaries. The company would be required to perform under these guarantees in the event of certain defaults. The company has not had prior claims or losses pursuant to these contracts and expects the risk of loss to be remote.

### Legal Contingencies

In July 2010, various closed-end funds formerly advised by Van Kampen Investments or Morgan Stanley Investment Management included in the acquired business had complaints filed against them in New York State Court commencing derivative lawsuits purportedly brought on behalf of the common shareholders of those funds. The funds are nominal defendants in these derivative lawsuits and the defendants also include Van Kampen Investments (acquired by Invesco on June 1, 2010), Morgan Stanley Investment Management and certain officers and trustees of the funds who are or were employees of those firms. Invesco has certain obligations under the applicable acquisition agreement regarding the defense costs and any damages associated with this litigation. The plaintiffs allege breaches of fiduciary duties owed by the non-fund defendants to the funds' common shareholders related to the funds' redemption in prior periods of Auction Rate Preferred Securities (ARPS) theretofore issued by the funds. The complaints are similar to other complaints filed against investment advisers, officers and trustees of closed-end funds in other fund complexes which issued and redeemed ARPS. The complaints allege that the advisers, distributors and certain officers and trustees of those funds breached their fiduciary duty by redeeming ARPS at their liquidation value when there was no obligation to do so and when the value of ARPS in the secondary marketplace were significantly below their liquidation value. The complaints also allege that the ARPS redemptions were principally motivated by the fund sponsors' interests to preserve distribution relationships with brokers and other financial intermediaries who held ARPS after having repurchased them from their own clients. The complaints do not specify alleged damages. Certain other funds included in the acquired business have received demand letters expressing similar allegations. Such demand letters could be precursors to additional similar lawsuits being commenced against those other funds. The Boards of Trustees of the funds established special committees of independent trustees to conduct an inquiry regarding the allegations set forth in the complaints and demand letters. Those evaluations have been completed, and the Boards of Trustees of the funds accepted the recommendation of their special litigation committees to (i) reject the demands contained in the demand letters and (ii) to seek dismissal of the related lawsuits. Motions to dismiss were filed on October 4, 2011, and remain pending.

Invesco believes the cases and other claims identified above should be dismissed or otherwise will terminate, although there can be no assurance of that result. Invesco intends to defend vigorously any cases which may survive beyond initial motions to dismiss. The company cannot predict with certainty, however, the eventual outcome of such cases and other claims, nor whether they will have a material negative impact on the company. The nature and progression of litigation can make it difficult to predict the impact a particular lawsuit will have on the company. There are many reasons that the company cannot make these assessments, including, among others, one or more of the following: the proceeding is in its early stages; the damages sought are unspecified, unsupportable, unexplained or uncertain; the claimant is seeking relief other than compensatory damages; the matter presents novel legal claims or other meaningful legal uncertainties; discovery has not started or is not complete; there are significant facts in dispute; and

there are other parties who may share in any ultimate liability.

The company is from time to time involved in litigation relating to other claims arising in the ordinary course of its business. In management's opinion, adequate accrual has been made as of March 31, 2013 to provide for any such losses that may arise from matters for which the company could reasonably estimate an amount. Management is of the opinion that the ultimate resolution of such claims will not materially affect the company's business, financial position, results of operation or liquidity. Furthermore, in management's opinion, it is not possible to estimate a range of reasonably possible losses with respect to other litigation contingencies.

The investment management industry also is subject to extensive levels of ongoing regulatory oversight and examination. In the United States and other jurisdictions in which the company operates, governmental authorities regularly make inquiries, hold investigations and administer market conduct examinations with respect to compliance with applicable laws and

regulations. Additional lawsuits or regulatory enforcement actions arising out of these inquiries may in the future be filed against the company and related entities and individuals in the U.S. and other jurisdictions in which the company and its affiliates operate. Any material loss of investor and/or client confidence as a result of such inquiries and/or litigation could result in a significant decline in assets under management, which would have an adverse effect on the company's future financial results and its ability to grow its business.

### 12. CONSOLIDATED INVESTMENT PRODUCTS

The company's risk with respect to each investment in consolidated investment products is limited to its equity ownership and any uncollected management fees. Therefore, the gains or losses of consolidated investment products have not had a significant impact on the company's net income attributable to common shareholders, liquidity or capital resources. The company has no right to the benefits from, nor does it bear the risks associated with, these investments, beyond the company's minimal direct investments in, and management fees generated from, the investment products. If the company were to liquidate, these investments would not be available to the general creditors of the company, and as a result, the company does not consider investments held by consolidated investment products to be company assets. Additionally, the collateral assets of consolidated collateralized loan obligations (CLOs) are held solely to satisfy the obligations of the CLOs, and the investors in the consolidated CLOs have no recourse to the general credit of the company for the notes issued by the CLOs.

A significant portion of consolidated investment products are CLOs. CLOs are investment vehicles created for the sole purpose of issuing collateralized loan instruments that offer investors the opportunity for returns that vary with

Collateralized Loan Obligations

the risk level of their investment. The notes issued by the CLOs are backed by diversified collateral asset portfolios consisting primarily of loans or structured debt. For managing the collateral for the CLO entities, the company earns investment management fees, including in some cases subordinated management fees, as well as contingent incentive fees. The company has invested in certain of the entities, generally taking a portion of the unrated, junior subordinated position. The company's investments in CLOs are generally subordinated to other interests in the entities and entitle the company and other subordinated tranche investors to receive the residual cash flows, if any, from the entities. The company's subordinated interest can take the form of (1) subordinated notes, (2) income notes or (3) preference/preferred shares. The company has determined that, although the junior tranches have certain characteristics of equity, they should be accounted for and disclosed as debt on the company's Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheet, as the subordinated and income notes have a stated maturity indicating a date for which they are mandatorily redeemable. The preference shares are also classified as debt, as redemption is required only upon liquidation or termination of the CLO and not of the company. The financial information of the consolidated CLOs is included in the company's consolidated financial statements on a one-month lag. The company determined that it was the primary beneficiary of certain CLOs, as it has the power to direct the activities of the CLOs that most significantly impact the CLOs' economic performance, and the obligation to absorb losses/right to receive benefits from the CLOs that could potentially be significant to the CLOs. The primary beneficiary assessment includes an analysis of the rights of the company in its capacity as investment manager. In some CLOs, the company's role as investment manager provides that the company contractually has the power, as defined in ASC Topic 810, to direct the activities of the CLOs that most significantly impact the CLOs' economic performance, such as managing the collateral portfolio and its credit risk. In other CLOs, the company determined that it does not have this power in its role as investment manager due to certain rights held by other investors in the products or restrictions that limit the company's ability to manage the collateral portfolio and the CLO's credit risk. Additionally, the primary beneficiary assessment includes an analysis of the company's rights to receive benefits and obligations to absorb losses associated with its first loss position and management/incentive fees. As part of this analysis, the company uses a quantitative model to corroborate its qualitative assessments. The quantitative model includes an analysis of the expected performance of the CLOs and a comparison of the company's absorption of this performance relative to the other investors in the CLOs. The company has determined that it could receive significant benefits and/or absorb significant losses from certain CLOs in which it holds a first loss position and has the right to significant fees. It was determined that the company's benefits and losses from certain other CLOs could not be

significant, particularly in situations where the company does not hold a first loss position and where the fee interests are based upon a fixed percentage of collateral asset value.

Private equity, real estate and fund-of-funds (partnerships)

For investment products that are structured as partnerships and are determined to be VIEs, including private equity funds, real estate funds and fund-of-funds products, the company evaluates the structure of the partnership to determine if it is the primary beneficiary of the investment product. This evaluation includes assessing the rights of the limited partners to transfer their economic interests in the investment product. If the limited partners' lack rights to manage their economic interests, they are considered to be de facto agents of the company, resulting in the company determining that it is the primary beneficiary of the investment product. The company generally takes less than a 1% investment in these entities as the general partner. Non-VIE general partnership investments are deemed to be controlled by the company and are consolidated under a voting interest

entity (VOE) model, unless the limited partners have the substantive ability to remove the general partner without cause based upon a simple majority vote or can otherwise dissolve the partnership, or unless the limited partners have substantive participating rights over decision making. Interests in unconsolidated private equity funds, real estate funds and fund-of-funds products are classified as equity method investments in the company's Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheets (see Note 3, "Investments.") The financial information of the consolidated private equity and real estate funds are included in the company's consolidated financial statements on a one-quarter lag. Other investment products

As discussed in Note 11, "Commitments and Contingencies," the company has entered into contingent support agreements for two of its investment trusts to enable them to sustain a stable pricing structure, creating variable interests in these VIEs. The company earns management fees from the trusts and has a small investment in one of these trusts. The company was not deemed to be the primary beneficiary of these trusts after considering any explicit and implicit variable interests in relation to the total expected gains and losses of the trusts.

At March 31, 2013, the company's maximum risk of loss in significant VIEs in which the company is not the primary beneficiary is presented in the table below.

\$ in millions	Footnote Reference	Carrying Value	Maximum Risk of Loss
CLO investments	3	2.4	2.4
Partnership and trust investments	_	39.6	39.6
Investments in Invesco Mortgage Capital Inc.	_	32.4	32.4
Support agreements*	11	(1.0	) 21.0
Total			95.4

<sup>\*</sup>As of March 31, 2013, the committed support under these agreements was \$21.0 million with an internal approval mechanism to increase the maximum possible support to \$66.0 million at the option of the company.

During the three months ended March 31, 2013, the company invested in and consolidated one newly managed CLO. The table below illustrates the summary balance sheet amounts related to this CLO at the date of consolidation into the company.

Datance Sheet	
\$ in millions	CLO - VIE
Current assets	345.7
Non-current assets	353.3
Total assets	699.0
Current liabilities	290.0
Non-current liabilities	409.4
Total liabilities	699.4
Total equity	(0.4)
Total liabilities and equity	699.0

27

**Balance Sheet** 

During the three months ended March 31, 2013, the company determined it was no longer the primary beneficiary of a private equity fund due to a change in the ownership of the parent of the general partner of the fund. The amounts deconsolidated from the Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheet are illustrated in the table below. There was no net impact to the Condensed Consolidated Statement of Income for the three months ended March 31, 2013 from the deconsolidation of this investment product.

t
t

\$ in millions	Other
Current assets	9.6
Non-current assets	23.8
Total assets	33.4
Current liabilities	
Non-current liabilities	_
Total liabilities	_
Total equity	33.4
Total liabilities and equity	33.4

The following tables reflect the impact of consolidation of investment products into the Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheets as of March 31, 2013 and December 31, 2012, and the Condensed Consolidated Statements of Income for the three months ended March 31, 2013 and 2012.

Summary of Balance Sheet Impact of Consolidated Investment Products

\$ in millions	CLOs-VIEs	Other VIEs	VOEs	Adjustments <sup>(1)</sup>	Subtotal - Impact of Consolidated Investment Products	Invesco Ltd. Consolidated
As of March 31, 2013						
Current assets	735.0	2.5	89.5	(5.5	) 821.5	4,903.5
Non-current assets	4,128.2	30.3	542.3	(107.0	) 4,593.8	13,631.0
Total assets	4,863.2	32.8	631.8	(112.5	) 5,415.3	18,534.5
Current liabilities	447.8	0.5	1.8	(4.8	) 445.3	3,287.6
Long-term debt of consolidated investment products	4,307.8	_	_	(86.4	) 4,221.4	4,221.4
Other non-current liabilities	_	_	_	_		2,186.3
Total liabilities	4,755.6	0.5	1.8	(91.2	) 4,666.7	9,695.3
Retained earnings appropriated for						
investors in consolidated	107.7	_	_		107.7	107.7
investment products						
Other equity attributable to common shareholders	(0.1)	0.2	21.3	(21.3	) 0.1	8,088.5
Equity attributable to						
noncontrolling interests in		32.1	608.7		640.8	643.0
consolidated entities						
Total liabilities and equity	4,863.2	32.8	631.8	(112.5	) 5,415.3	18,534.5

Summary of Balance Sheet Impact of Consolidated Investment Products (continued)

\$ in millions	CLOs-VIEs	Other VIEs	VOEs	Adjustments <sup>(1</sup>	Subtotal - Impact of Consolidated Investment Products	Invesco Ltd. Consolidated
As of December 31, 2012 Current assets	266.4	0.4	120.9	(20.2	367.5	3,907.6
Non-current assets	3,948.0	35.9	607.9	(107.9	) 4,483.9	13,584.8
Total assets	4,214.4	36.3	728.8	(128.1	) 4,851.4	17,492.4
Current liabilities	105.3	0.5	2.9	(13.3	) 95.4	2,713.0
Long-term debt of consolidated investment products	3,980.7	_	_	(81.3	3,899.4	3,899.4
Other non-current liabilities			_		_	1,831.0
Total liabilities	4,086.0	0.5	2.9	(94.6	3,994.8	8,443.4
Retained earnings appropriated for investors in consolidated investment products	128.8	_	_	_	128.8	128.8
Other equity attributable to common shareholders	(0.4)	(0.1	34.0	(33.5	) —	8,188.0
Equity attributable to noncontrolling interests in consolidated entities	_	35.9	691.9	_	727.8	732.2
Total liabilities and equity	4,214.4	36.3	728.8	(128.1	4,851.4	17,492.4

Adjustments include the elimination of intercompany transactions between the company and its consolidated investment products, primarily the elimination of the company's equity at risk recorded as investments by the company (before consolidation) against either the equity (private equity and real estate partnership funds) or subordinated debt (CLOs) of the funds.

Summary of Income Statement Impact of Consolidated Investment Products

\$ in millions	CLOs-V		Other	e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e	VOEs	, and	Adjustmer	nts <sup>(1)</sup>	Subtotal - Impact of Consolidate Investment Products		Invesco L Consolida	
Three months ended March 31, 2013												
Total operating revenues	_						(8.8)	)	(8.8)	)	1,141.8	
Total operating expenses	8.5		0.3		2.5		(8.8)	)	2.5		868.4	
Operating income	(8.5	)	(0.3)	)	(2.5	)			(11.3	)	273.4	
Equity in earnings of unconsolidated affiliates			_				(0.4	)	(0.4	)	8.1	
Interest and dividend income	53.6				_		(5.2	)	48.4		52.5	
Other investment income/(losses)	(28.5	)	(0.3)	)	4.7		3.0		(21.1	)	(3.4	)
Interest expense	(37.9	)	_		_		5.2		(32.7	)	(42.4	)
Income before income taxes	(21.3	)	(0.6)	)	2.2		2.6		(17.1	)	288.2	
Income tax provision							_				(88.6)	)
Net income	(21.3	)	(0.6)	)	2.2		2.6		(17.1	)	199.6	
	21.4		0.6		(1.8	)	_		20.2		22.6	

Net (income)/loss attributable to noncontrolling interests in consolidated entities, net Net income attributable to common shareholders

0.1 — 0.4 2.6 3.1

3.1 222.2

Summary of Income Statement Impact of Consolidated Investment Products (continued)

\$ in millions	CLOs-V	/IEs	Other VIEs	•	VOEs	3	Adjustments	(1)	Subtotal - Impact of Consolidate Investment Products	ed	Invesco Ltd. Consolidated	l
Three months ended March 31, 2012												
Total operating revenues			—				(10.4	)	(10.4	)	1,033.7	
Total operating expenses	10.2		0.3		5.9		(10.4	)	6.0		803.9	
Operating income	(10.2)	)	(0.3)	)	(5.9	)			(16.4	)	229.8	
Equity in earnings of unconsolidated affiliates	_		_		_		3.4		3.4		9.7	
Interest and dividend income	69.0						(3.4	)	65.6		71.4	
Other investment income/(losses)	(68.8)	)	(0.9)	)	(56.4	)	4.2		(121.9	)	(103.3	)
Interest expense	(49.0	)	_				3.4		(45.6	)	(59.2	)
Income before income taxes	(59.0	)	(1.2	)	(62.3	)	7.6		(114.9	)	148.4	
Income tax provision											(73.6	)
Net income	(59.0	)	(1.2	)	(62.3	)	7.6		(114.9	)	74.8	
Net (income)/loss attributable to noncontrolling interests in consolidated entities, net	59.0		1.2		58.9		_		119.1		119.1	
Net income attributable to common shareholders	_		_		(3.4	)	7.6		4.2		193.9	

Adjustments include the elimination of intercompany transactions between the company and its consolidated (1) investment products, primarily the elimination of management fees expensed by the funds and recorded as operating revenues (before consolidation) by the company.

The carrying value of investments held and notes issued by consolidated investment products is also their fair value. The following table presents the fair value hierarchy levels of investments held and notes issued by consolidated investment products, which are measured at fair value as of March 31, 2013 and December 31, 2012:

1	As of March 3	1, 2013	,	
\$ in millions	Fair Value Measurements	Quoted Prices in Active Markets for Identical Assets (Level 1)	Significant Other Observable Inputs (Level 2)	Significant Unobservable Inputs (Level 3)
Assets:				
CLO collateral assets:				
Bank loans	3,860.1		3,860.1	_
Bonds	208.8		208.8	_
Equity securities	19.5		19.5	_
Private equity fund assets:				
Equity securities	94.9	10.9	17.8	66.2
Investments in other private equity funds	466.7		_	466.7
Debt securities issued by the U.S. Treasury	9.0	9.0	_	_

Real estate investments Total assets at fair value	2.2 4,661.2	— 19.9	<del></del>	2.2 535.1
Liabilities: CLO notes Total liabilities at fair value	(4,221.4 (4,221.4	) — ) —	_	(4,221.4 ) (4,221.4 )

	As of December	er 31, 2012		
\$ in millions	Fair Value Measurements	Quoted Prices in Active Markets for Identical Assets (Level 1)	Significant Other Observable Inputs (Level 2)	Significant Unobservable Inputs (Level 3)
Assets:				
CLO collateral assets:				
Bank loans	3,709.3	_	3,709.3	_
Bonds	185.4		185.4	
Equity securities	12.1		12.1	
Private equity fund assets:				
Equity securities	124.4	20.4	9.9	94.1
Debt securities				
Investments in other private equity funds	503.5			503.5
Debt securities issued by the U.S. Treasury	10.0	10.0		
Real estate investments	5.3			5.3
Total assets at fair value	4,550.0	30.4	3,916.7	602.9
Liabilities:				
CLO notes	(3,899.4)			(3,899.4)
Total liabilities at fair value	(3,899.4)	_	_	(3,899.4)

The following table shows a reconciliation of the beginning and ending fair value measurements for level 3 assets and liabilities using significant unobservable inputs:

	Three mon	ths ended	Three months ended				
	March 31,	2013	March 31, 2	012			
\$ in millions	Level 3	Level 3	Level 3	Level 3			
\$ III IIIIIIOIIS	Assets	Liabilities	Assets	Liabilities			
Beginning balance	602.9	(3,899.4)	929.1	(5,512.9)			
Purchases	11.8	_	0.5	_			
Sales	(62.0	) —	(30.8)				
Issuances		(405.0)		(325.2)			
Settlements		152.8		90.7			
Deconsolidation of consolidated investment products	(18.4	) —		573.4			
Gains and losses included in the Condensed Consolidated	1.2	(69.0)	(61.0)	(182.4)			
Statements of Income*	1.2	(09.0	(01.0	(102.4)			
Foreign exchange	(0.4	) (0.8		11.4			
Ending balance	535.1	(4,221.4)	837.8	(5,345.0)			

Included in gains and losses of consolidated investment products in the Condensed Consolidated Statement of \*Income for the three months ended March 31, 2013 are \$17.0 million in net unrealized losses attributable to investments still held at March 31, 2013 by consolidated investment products (three months ended March 31, 2012: \$58.6 million in net unrealized losses attributable to investments still held at March 31, 2012).

Fair value of consolidated CLOs

The company elected the fair value option for collateral assets held and notes issued by its consolidated CLOs to eliminate the measurement and recognition inconsistency that would otherwise arise from measuring assets and

liabilities and recognizing the related gains and losses on different accounting bases.

The collateral assets held by consolidated CLOs are primarily invested in senior secured bank loans, bonds, and equity securities. Bank loan investments, which comprise the majority of consolidated CLO portfolio collateral, are senior secured corporate loans from a variety of industries, including but not limited to the aerospace and defense, broadcasting, technology, utilities, household products, healthcare, oil and gas, and finance industries. Bank loan investments mature at various dates between 2013 and 2020, pay interest at Libor or Euribor plus a spread of up to 14.0%, and typically range in S&P credit rating

categories from BBB down to unrated. Interest income on bank loans and bonds is recognized based on the unpaid principal balance and stated interest rate of these investments on an accrual basis. At March 31, 2013 the unpaid principal balance exceeded the fair value of the senior secured bank loans and bonds by approximately \$75.3 million (December 31, 2012: \$121.6 million excess). Approximately 2.1% of the collateral assets are in default as of March 31, 2013 (December 31, 2012: less than 1.8% of the collateral assets were in default). CLO investments are valued based on price quotations provided by an independent third-party pricing source. These third party sources aggregate indicative price quotations daily to provide the company with a price for the CLO investments. The company has developed internal controls to review the reasonableness and completeness of theses price quotations on a daily basis. If necessary, price quotations are challenged through the third-party pricing source challenge process. For the three months ended March 31, 2013, there were no price quotation challenges by the company. In addition, the company's valuation committee conducts an annual due diligence review of all independent third-party pricing sources to review the provider's valuation methodology as well as ensure internal controls exist over the valuation of the CLO investments. In the event that the third-party pricing source is unable to price an investment, other relevant factors, data and information are considered, including: i) information relating to the market for the investment, including price quotations for and trading in the investment, interest in similar investments, the market environment, investor attitudes towards the investment and interests in similar investments; ii) the characteristics of and fundamental analytical data relating to the investment, including, for senior secured corporate loans, the cost, current interest rate, period until next interest rate reset, maturity and base lending rate, the terms and conditions of the senior secured corporate loan and any related agreements, and the position of the senior secured corporate loan in the borrower's debt structure; iii) the nature, adequacy and value of the senior secured corporate loan's collateral, including the CLO's rights, remedies and interests with respect to the collateral; iv) for senior secured corporate loans, the creditworthiness of the borrower, based on an evaluation of its financial condition, financial statements and information about the business, cash flows, capital structure and future prospects; v) the reputation and financial condition of the agent and any intermediate participants in the senior secured corporate loan; and vi) general economic and market conditions affecting the fair value of the senior secured corporate loan.

Notes issued by consolidated CLOs mature at various dates between 2015 and 2025 and have a weighted average maturity of 8.8 years. The notes are issued in various tranches with different risk profiles. The interest rates are generally variable rates based on Libor or Euribor plus a pre-defined spread, which varies from 0.21% for the more senior tranches to 7.10% for the more subordinated tranches. Interest expense on notes issued by consolidated investment products is accrued based on the stated rate and outstanding par of the issued notes. At March 31, 2013, the outstanding balance on the notes issued by consolidated CLOs exceeds their fair value by approximately \$0.3 billion (December 31, 2012: \$0.3 billion excess). The investors in this debt are not affiliated with the company and have no recourse to the general credit of the company. Notes issued by CLOs are recorded at fair value using an income approach. Fair value is determined using current information, notably market yields and projected cash flows of collateral assets, which are impacted by forecasted default and recovery rates. Market yields, default rates and recovery rates used in the company's estimate of fair value vary based on the nature of the investments in the underlying collateral pools. In periods of rising market yields, default rates and lower debt recovery rates, the fair value, and therefore the carrying value, of the notes may be adversely affected. The current liquidity constraints within the market for CLO products require the use of certain unobservable inputs for CLO valuation. Once the undiscounted cash flows of the collateral assets have been determined, the company applies appropriate discount rates that a market participant would use to determine the discounted cash flow valuation of the notes.

The significant inputs used in the valuation of the notes issued by consolidated CLOs include a cumulative average default rate between 1% and 5% and discount rates derived by utilizing the applicable forward rate curves and appropriate spreads.

Certain CLOs with Euro-denominated debt that were deconsolidated as of August 30, 2012 entered into swap agreements with various counterparties to hedge economically interest rate and foreign exchange risk related to CLO collateral assets with non-Euro interest rates and currencies. These swap agreements were not designated as qualifying as hedging instruments. These derivative contracts were valued under an income approach using forecasted interest rates and were classified within level 2 of the valuation hierarchy. There were no changes in fair value reflected as

losses in gains/(losses) of consolidated investment products, net on the company's Condensed Consolidated Statement of Income for the three months ended March 31, 2013 (three months ended March 31, 2012: \$3.7 million reflected as losses in gains/ (losses) of consolidated investment products). As of March 31, 2013, there were no open swap agreements (December 31, 2012: there were no open swap agreements).

Fair value of consolidated private equity funds

Consolidated private equity funds are generally structured as partnerships. Generally, the investment strategy of underlying holdings in these partnerships is to seek capital appreciation through direct investments in public or private companies with compelling business models or ideas or through investments in partnership investments that also invest in similar private or public companies. Various strategies may be used. Companies targeted could be distressed organizations, targets of leveraged buyouts or fledgling companies in need of venture capital. Investees of these consolidated investment products may not redeem

their investment until the partnership liquidates. Generally, the partnerships have a life that range from seven to twelve years unless dissolved earlier. The general partner may extend the partnership term up to a specified period of time as stated in the Partnership Agreement. Some partnerships allow the limited partners to cause an earlier termination upon the occurrence of certain events as specified in the Partnership Agreement.

For private equity partnerships, fair value is determined by reviewing each investment for the sale of additional securities of an issuer to sophisticated investors or for investee financial conditions and fundamentals. Publicly traded portfolio investments are carried at market value as determined by their most recent quoted sale, or if there is no recent sale, at their most recent bid price. For these investments held by consolidated investment products, level 1 classification indicates that fair values have been determined using unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets that the partnership has the ability to access. Level 2 classification may indicate that fair values have been determined using quoted prices in active markets but give effect to certain lock-up restrictions surrounding the holding period of the underlying investments.

The fair value of level 3 investments held by consolidated investment products are derived from inputs that are unobservable and which reflect the limited partnerships' own determinations about the assumptions that market participants would use in pricing the investments, including assumptions about risk. These inputs are developed based on the partnership's own data, which is adjusted if information indicates that market participants would use different assumptions. The partnerships which invest directly into private equity portfolio companies (direct private equity funds) take into account various market conditions, subsequent rounds of financing, liquidity, financial condition, purchase multiples paid in other comparable third-party transactions, the price of securities of other companies comparable to the portfolio company, and operating results and other financial data of the portfolio company, as applicable.

The partnerships which invest into other private equity funds (funds-of-funds) take into account information received from those underlying funds, including their reported net asset values and evidence as to their fair value approach, including consistency of their fair value application. These investments do not trade in active markets and represent illiquid long-term investments that generally require future capital commitments. The partnerships' reported share of the underlying net asset values of the underlying funds is used as a practical expedient, as allowed by ASC Topic 820, in arriving at fair value.

Unforeseen events might occur that would subsequently change the fair values of these investments, but such changes would

be inconsequential to the company due to its minimal investments in these products (and the large offsetting noncontrolling interests resulting from their consolidation). Any gains or losses resulting from valuation changes in these investments are substantially offset by resulting changes in gains and losses attributable to noncontrolling interests in consolidated entities and therefore do not have a material effect on the financial condition, operating results (including earnings per share), liquidity or capital resources of the company's common shareholders. Fair value of consolidated real estate funds

Consolidated real estate funds are structured as limited liability companies. These limited liability companies invest in other real estate funds, and these investments are carried at fair value and presented as investments in consolidated investment products. The net asset value of the underlying funds, which primarily consists of the real estate investment value and mortgage loans, is adjusted to fair value. Fair value is defined as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. Real estate fund assets are classified within the fair value hierarchy based on the lowest level of input that is significant to the fair value measurement. Due to the illiquid nature of investments made in real estate companies, all of the real estate assets are classified as level 3. The real estate investment vehicles use one or more valuation techniques (e.g., the market approach, the income approach, or the cost approach) for which sufficient and reliable data is available to value investments classified within level 3. The income approach generally consists of the net present value of estimated future cash flows, adjusted as appropriate for liquidity, credit, market and/or other risk factors.

The inputs used by the real estate funds in estimating the value of level 3 investments include the original transaction price, recent transactions in the same or similar instruments, as well as completed or pending third-party transactions

in the underlying investment or comparable investments. Level 3 investments may also be adjusted to reflect illiquidity and/or non-transferability. Other inputs used include discount rates, cap rates and income and expense assumptions. The fair value measurement of level 3 investments does not include transaction costs and acquisition fees that may have been capitalized as part of the investment's cost basis. Due to the lack of observable inputs, the assumptions used may significantly impact the resulting fair value and therefore the real estate funds' results of operations.

# Quantitative Information about Level 3 Fair Value Measurements

The following table shows significant unobservable inputs used in the fair value measurement of level 3 assets and liabilities:

naomaes.				
Assets and Liabilities *	Fair Value at March 31, 2013 (\$ in millions)	Valuation Technique	Unobservable Inputs	Range
Private Equity FundsEquity Securities	66.2	Market Comparable	EBITDA Multiple	30 - 40x
Real Estate Investments	2.2	Discounted Cash Flow	Revenue Multiple Discount In-Place & Market Rent Rates Revenue Growth Rate Discount Rate Exit Capitalization Rate Stabilized Occupancy Rate	5 - 15x 20% - 50% JPY 250 - JPY 700 per sq ft 0.0% - 2.0% 5.75% - 8.00% 6.00% - 8.25% 92.0% - 96.0%
		Market Comparable	Expense Growth Rate In-Place & Market Rent Rates Exit Capitalization Rate	1.00% JPY 250 - JPY 700 per sq ft 6.00% - 8.25%
CLO Notes	(4,221.4)	Discounted Cash Flow- Euro	Probability of Default	3% - 5%
			Spread over Euribor **	130 - 3000 bps
	Discounted Cash Flow- USD		Probability of Default	1% - 3%
			Spread over Libor **	110 - 1450 bps
Assets and Liabilities *	Fair Value at December 31, 2012 (\$ in millions)	Valuation Technique	e Unobservable Inputs	Range
Private Equity FundsEquity Securities	94.1	Market Comparable	EBITDA Multiple	30 - 40x
Real Estate Investments	5.3	Discounted Cash Flo	Rates Revenue Growth Rate Discount Rate Exit Capitalization Rate	700 per sq ft 0.0% - 2.0% 5.75% - 8.00%
CLO Notes	(3,899.4)	Market Comparable	Stabilized Occupancy Rate Expense Growth Rate In-Place & Market Rent Rates Exit Capitalization Rate Probability of Default	700 per sq ft

Discounted Cash Flow- Euro

Spread over Euribor \*\* 300 - 3050 bps

Discounted Cash Flow- USD

Probability of Default 1% - 3%

Spread over Libor \*\* 120 - 1400 bps

### **Table of Contents**

Certain equity securities held by consolidated private equity funds are valued using third-party pricing information and/or recent private market transactions. Quantitative unobservable inputs for such valuations were not developed \*or adjusted by the company. Investments in other private equity funds as of March 31, 2013 of \$466.7 million (as of December 31, 2012: \$503.5 million) are also excluded from the table above as they are valued using the NAV practical expedient.

\*\*Lower spreads relate to the more senior tranches in the CLO note structure; higher spreads relate to the less senior tranches.

The following narrative will indicate the sensitivity of inputs illustrating the impact of significant increases to the inputs. A directionally-opposite impact would apply for significant decreases in these inputs:

For investments held by consolidated private equity funds, significant increases in discounts in isolation would result in significantly lower fair value measurements, while significant increases in EBITDA and revenue multiple assumptions in isolation would result in significantly higher fair value measurements. An increase in discount assumptions would result in a directionally opposite change in the assumptions for EBITDA and revenue multiple resulting in lower fair value measurements.

For real estate investments, a change in the revenue growth rate generally would be accompanied by a directionally-similar change in the assumptions for in-place and market rent rates and stabilized occupancy rates. Significant increases in any of the unobservable inputs for in-place and market rent rates and stabilized occupancy rates in isolation would result in significantly higher fair values. An increase in these assumptions would result in a directionally-opposite change in the assumptions for discount rate, exit capitalization rate, and expense growth rate. Significant increases in the assumptions for discount rate, exit capitalization rate, and expense growth rate in isolation would result in significantly lower fair value measurements.

For CLO Notes, a change in the assumption used for spreads is generally accompanied by a directionally similar change in default rate. Significant increases in any of these inputs in isolation would result in a significantly lower fair value measurements.

#### 13. RELATED PARTIES

Certain managed funds are deemed to be affiliated entities under the related party definition in ASC 850, "Related Party Disclosures."

		onths ended		,
φ· '11'	2013		2012	
\$ in millions				
Affiliated operating revenues:	750.1		672.0	
Investment management fees			673.9	
Service and distribution fees	201.7		188.8	
Performance fees	31.5		19.7	
Other Tatal of Gilioted angusting recovers	25.1		30.7	
Total affiliated operating revenues	1,008.4		913.1	
		As of		
	•	March 31, 2	013	December 31, 2012
Affiliated asset balances:		,		,
Cash equivalents		248.9		223.2
Unsettled fund receivables		301.9		131.5
Accounts receivable		305.5		258.3
Current investments		328.9		328.2
Assets held for policyholders		1,204.9		1,153.2
Other current assets		15.0		30.5
Non-current investments		342.7		234.6
Other non-current assets	(	0.5		2.2
Affiliated asset balances		2,748.3		2,361.7
Affiliated liability balances:				
Unsettled fund payables		439.6		266.0
Other current liabilities		439.0 21.2		66.1
Other non-current liabilities		142.4		189.7
		603.2		521.8
Affiliated liability balances		003.2		J21.0

### 14. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

On April 30, 2013, the company announced a first quarter 2013 dividend of \$0.225 per share, payable on June 7, 2013, to shareholders of record at the close of business on May 17, 2013.

The company announced on April 11, 2013 that it has entered into a definitive agreement to sell Atlantic Trust Private Wealth Management to CIBC. Under the terms of the transaction, CIBC will acquire Atlantic Trust for \$210 million in an all-cash transaction that is expected to close, subject to regulatory approval, in the second half of 2013.

Item 2. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

### Forward-Looking Statements

The following Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations should be read in conjunction with the Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements and related Notes thereto, which appear elsewhere in this Report. Except for the historical financial information, this Report may include statements that constitute "forward-looking statements" under the United States securities laws. Forward-looking statements include information concerning future results of our operations, expenses, earnings, liquidity, cash flow and capital

expenditures, industry or market conditions, AUM, acquisitions and divestitures, debt and our ability to obtain additional financing or make payments, regulatory developments,

demand for and pricing of our products and other aspects of our business or general economic conditions. In addition, words such as "believes," "expects," "anticipates," "intends," "plans," "estimates," "projects," "forecasts," and future or condit verbs such as "will," "may," "could," "should," and "would" as well as any other statement that necessarily depends on future events, are intended to identify forward-looking statements.

Forward-looking statements are not guarantees, and they involve risks, uncertainties and assumptions. There can be no assurance that actual results will not differ materially from our expectations. We caution investors not to rely unduly on any forward-looking statements and urge you to carefully consider the risks described in our most recent Form 10-K and subsequent Forms 10-Q, filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission.

You may obtain these reports from the SEC's website at www.sec.gov. We expressly disclaim any obligation to update the information in any public disclosure if any forward-looking statement later turns out to be inaccurate.

Forward-looking statements are not guarantees of performance. They involve risks, uncertainties and assumptions. Although we make such statements based on assumptions that we believe to be reasonable, there can be no assurance that actual results will not differ materially from our expectations. We caution investors not to rely unduly on any forward-looking statements and urge you to carefully consider the risks described in Part II, "Other Information," Item 1A., "Risk Factors."

### References

In this Report, unless otherwise specified, the terms "we," "our," "us," "company," "Invesco," and "Invesco Ltd." refer to Inve Ltd., a company incorporated in Bermuda, and its subsidiaries.

### **Executive Overview**

The following executive overview summarizes the significant trends affecting our results of operations and financial condition for the periods presented. This overview and the remainder of this management's discussion and analysis supplements, and should be read in conjunction with the Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements of Invesco Ltd. and its subsidiaries and the notes thereto contained elsewhere in this Report.

Invesco is a leading independent global investment manager with offices in more than 20 countries. As of March 31, 2013, we managed \$729.3 billion in assets for retail, institutional and high-net-worth investors around the world. By delivering the combined power of our distinctive worldwide investment management capabilities, Invesco provides a comprehensive array of enduring solutions for our clients. We have a significant presence in the institutional and retail segments of the investment management industry in North America, U.K., Europe and Asia-Pacific, serving clients in more than 100 countries.

During the first quarter, the move into riskier assets strengthened as most equity markets around the globe rallied. The influence of major central banks increased as the Bank of Japan announced unprecedented monetary stimulus measures while the Federal Reserve in the U.S. continued its government bond purchases at \$85 billion per month. Yields on government bonds remain depressed due to central bank intervention, causing investors to shift into higher yielding fixed income and equities. Most equity market participants reacted positively to these policy actions as evidenced by the S&P 500, which returned 10% during the quarter and reached an all-time high. Further, the Nikkei 225 index in Japan increased over 19% while the FTSE 100 index in the U.K. was up 8.7% . The U.S. treasury 10-year bond returns decreased 0.3% during the quarter, while the 30-year treasury bond declined 3.1%. The table below summarizes the returns of several major market indices for the three months ended March 31, 2013 and 2012:

	Three mont	Three months ended March 31,					
Index	2013	2012					
S&P 500	10.0	% 12.0	%				
FTSE 100	8.7	% 3.5	%				
Nikkei 225	19.3	% 19.3	%				
MSCI Emerging Markets	(1.9	)% 13.7	%				

A significant portion of our business and AUM is based outside of the U.S. The strengthening or weakening of the U.S. dollar against other currencies, primarily the Pound Sterling, Canadian dollar, Yen and Euro, will impact our reported revenues and expenses from period to period. Additionally, our revenues are directly influenced by the level and composition of our AUM. Therefore, movements in global capital market levels, net new business inflows (or

outflows) and changes in the mix of investment products between asset classes and geographies may materially affect our revenues from period to period.

Over the past seven years, we have focused on our multi-year strategy to grow and strengthen our business. Our commitment to investment excellence enables us to deliver strong, long-term investment performance to our clients. We have worked to enhance the depth and breadth of our investment capabilities and made successful strategic acquisitions that further expanded our capabilities. We also worked to further enhance the effectiveness of our global platform. The depth, breadth and

discussion:

strength of our business have put us in a position to evolve our capital management priorities, as further discussed in the "Liquidity and Capital Resources" and "Dividends" sections of this Management's Discussion and Analysis. As it has been in the past, a key priority is to reinvest in our business in ways that enhance our ability to deliver strong investment performance to our clients. In addition, dividends are now featured more prominently among our priorities, which will provide a more committed level of return to our shareholders. We will also continue our program of repurchasing shares. Furthermore, as we have said in the past, our goal is to achieve a cash buffer of approximately \$1 billion in excess of regulatory requirements. These priorities reflect our confidence in our ability to grow our business organically by meeting client needs and to further strengthen our capital position over time.

During the first quarter, the company completed the purchase of a 49.0% interest in Religare Asset Management Limited ("Religare"), a company incorporated in India.

The company announced on April 11, 2013 that it has entered into a definitive agreement to sell Atlantic Trust Private Wealth Management to CIBC. As discussed above, our strategic focus continues to be to meet our clients' needs across the globe by delivering investment capabilities managed by our own investment teams and leveraging a common platform. This pending transaction offers compelling advantages for the clients of Atlantic Trust and ultimately to the shareholders of Invesco, including improved allocation of capital, resources to support future growth of our core investment management business, and immediate expansion of the company's net operating margin. We anticipate the disposition will result in the reduction of approximately \$115 million of annualized net revenue, \$85 million of annualized adjusted operating expenses, and 5 cents of adjusted diluted EPS. Under the terms of the transaction, CIBC will acquire Atlantic Trust for \$210 million in an all-cash transaction that is expected to close, subject to regulatory approval, in the second half of 2013. It is our intention to use the proceeds to repurchase outstanding shares which will offset the adjusted EPS dilution by approximately 3 cents per share.

The buyback will offset the adjusted EPS dilution by approximately 3 cents per share. As of the second quarter 2013, Atlantic Trust will be classified as held for sale on the balance sheet and will be reflected as discontinued operations in the income statement. Its operations will be excluded from the continuing operations of Invesco.

Presentation of Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations
The company provides investment management services to, and has transactions with, various private equity, real
estate, fund-of-funds, collateralized loan obligation products (CLOs), and other investment entities sponsored by the
company for the investment of client assets in the normal course of business. The company serves as the investment
manager, making day-to-day investment decisions concerning the assets of the products. Certain of these entities are
consolidated under variable interest or voting interest entity consolidation guidance and are referred to as "consolidated
investment products." See Part I, Item 1, Financial Statements — Note 12, "Consolidated Investment Products," for
additional details.

The majority of the company's consolidated investment products balances are CLO-related. The collateral assets of the CLOs are held solely to satisfy the obligations of the CLOs. The company has no right to the benefits from, nor does it bear the risks associated with, the collateral assets held by the CLOs, beyond the company's minimal direct investments in, and management fees generated from, the CLOs. If the company were to liquidate, the collateral assets would not be available to the general creditors of the company, and as a result, the company does not consider them to be company assets. Conversely, if the CLOs were to liquidate, their investors would have no recourse to the general credit of the company. The company therefore does not consider this debt to be a company liability. The impact of consolidation of investment products is so significant to the presentation of the company's financial statements (but not to the company's underlying financial condition or net income attributable to common shareholders) that the company has elected to deconsolidate these products in its non-GAAP disclosures. The following discussion therefore combines the results presented under U.S. generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) with the company's non-GAAP presentation. There are four distinct sections within this Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations after the Assets Under Management

Results of Operations (for the three months ended March 31, 2013 compared with the three months ended March 31, 2012);

Schedule of Non-GAAP Information;

Balance Sheet Discussion; and

Liquidity and Capital Resources.

Each of the financial statement summary sections (Results of Operations, Balance Sheet Discussion, and Liquidity and Capital Resources) begins with a table illustrating the impact of the consolidation of investment products relative to the company's consolidated totals. The impact is illustrated by a column which shows the dollar-value change in the consolidated figures, as caused by the consolidation of investment products. For example, the impact of consolidated investment products on operating revenues for the three months ended March 31, 2013 was \$(8.8) million. This indicates that the consolidation of investment products reduced consolidated revenues by this amount, reflecting the elimination upon their consolidation of the operating revenues earned by Invesco for managing these investment products.

The narrative that follows each of these sections separately provides discussion of the underlying financial statement activity for the company, before consolidation of investment products, as well as of the financial statement activity of consolidated investment products. Additionally, wherever a non-GAAP measure is referenced, a disclosure will follow in the narrative or in the note referring the reader to the Schedule of Non-GAAP Information, where additional details regarding the use of the non-GAAP measure by the company are disclosed, along with reconciliations of the most directly comparable U.S. GAAP measures to the non-GAAP measures. To further enhance the readability of the Results of Operations section, separate tables for each of the revenue, expense, and non-operating income/expense sections of the income statement introduce the narrative that follows, providing a section-by-section review of the company's income statements for the periods presented.

**Summary Operating Information** 

Summary operating information is presented in the table below:

	Three months ended March								
	31,								
\$ in millions, other than per share amounts, operating margins, ratios and AUM	2013	2012							
U.S. GAAP Financial Measures Summary									
Operating revenues	\$1,141.8	\$1,033.7	,						
Operating income	\$273.4	\$229.8							
Operating margin	23.9	% 22.2	%						
Net income attributable to common shareholders	\$222.2	\$193.9							
Diluted EPS	\$0.49	\$0.43							
Debt/equity ratio including consolidated investment products (%)	64.9	% 73.0	%						
Non-GAAP Financial Measures Summary									
Net revenues <sup>(1)</sup>	\$816.5	\$736.3							
Adjusted operating income <sup>(2)</sup>	\$313.6	\$269.2							
Adjusted operating margin <sup>(2)</sup>	38.4	% 36.6	%						
Adjusted net income attributable to common shareholders <sup>(3)</sup>	\$232.0	\$201.0							
Adjusted diluted EPS <sup>(3)</sup>	\$0.52	\$0.44							
Debt/equity ratio excluding consolidated investment products(%) <sup>(4)</sup>	18.7	% 16.6	%						
Assets Under Management									
Ending AUM (billions)	\$729.3	\$672.8							
Average AUM (billions)	\$712.7	\$658.2							

Net revenues are operating revenues less third-party distribution, service and advisory expenses (adjusted for third party distribution expense related to the European infrastructure initiative), plus our proportional share of the net

- (1) revenues of our joint venture investments, plus management and performance fees earned from consolidated investment products. See "Schedule of Non-GAAP Information" for the reconciliation of operating revenues to net revenues.
- Adjusted operating margin is adjusted operating income divided by net revenues. Adjusted operating income includes operating income plus our proportional share of the operating income of our joint venture investments, transaction and integration charges, acquisition-related items, amortization of intangibles, compensation expense
- related to market valuation changes in deferred compensation plans, the operating income impact of the consolidation of investment products, European infrastructure expenses and other reconciling items. See "Schedule of Non-GAAP Information" for the reconciliation of operating income to adjusted operating income.
- (3) Adjusted net income attributable to common shareholders is net income attributable to common shareholders adjusted to add back transaction and integration charges, acquisition-related items, amortization of intangibles, and the tax cash flow benefits resulting from tax amortization of goodwill and indefinite-lived intangible assets.

  Adjusted net income attributable to common shareholders excludes the net income of consolidated investment

Three menths anded March

products, and the net income impact of deferred compensation plans, European infrastructure expenses and other reconciling items. By calculation, adjusted diluted EPS is adjusted net income attributable to common shareholders divided by the weighted average number of diluted shares outstanding. See "Schedule of Non-GAAP Information" for the reconciliation of net income to adjusted net income.

(4) The debt-to-equity ratio excluding consolidated investment products is a non-GAAP financial measure. See the "Liquidity and Capital Resources" section for a recalculation of this ratio and other important disclosures.

Investment Capabilities Performance Overview

Invesco's first strategic priority is to achieve strong investment performance over the long-term for our clients. Long-term

performance in our equities capabilities, as measured by the percentage of AUM ahead of benchmark and ahead of peer median, is generally strong with some pockets of outstanding performance. Within our equity asset class, U.K. and Global Ex U.S. and Emerging Markets have had strong relative performance, with 89% or more of assets beating their peer group and benchmark over three- and five-year periods. U.S. Value funds reflect strong performance with 99% and 93%, respectively, of assets beating benchmarks and peers on a five-year basis. Within our fixed income asset class, Stable Value products have continued to achieve excellent long-term performance with 100% of AUM ahead of benchmarks and peers on a one-, three-, and five-year basis for the third consecutive quarter.

		*					Peer Group Comparison							
							% of AUM In Top Half of							
		Benchma	rk					Peer Gro		•				
		1yr		3yr		5yr		1yr	-	3yr		5yr		
Equities	U.S. Core	22	%		%	83	%	47	%	34	%	62	%	
-	U.S. Growth	28	%	26	%	26	%	29	%	24	%	61	%	
	U.S. Value	25	%	55	%	99	%	92	%	71	%	93	%	
	Sector	43	%	62	%	60	%	48	%	63	%	62	%	
	U.K.	100	%	100	%	99	%	98	%	98	%	98	%	
	Canadian	100	%	76	%	100	%	92	%	54	%	82	%	
	Asian	63	%	51	%	59	%	43	%	44	%	52	%	
	Continental	73	%	73	%	97	%	39	%	62	%	60	%	
	European		, -				,0		, c	02				
	Global	57	%	89	%	89	%	66	%	74	%	62	%	
	Global Ex U.S. and Emerging Markets	26	%	90	%	99	%	20	%	89	%	99	%	
Other	Alternatives	23	%	63	%	49	%	42	%	58	%	22	%	
	Balanced	44	%	43	%	75	%	98	%	96	%	94	%	
Money Market	Money Market	58	%	30	%	72	%	97	%	97	%	94	%	
Fixed Income	U.S. Fixed Income	69	%	88	%	86	%	93	%	86	%	87	%	
	Global Fixed Income	e87	%	58	%	88	%	93	%	46	%	86	%	
	Stable Value	100	%	100	%	100	%	100	%	100	%	100	%	

AUM measured in the one-, three-, and five-year peer group rankings represents 59%, 59%, and 55% of total Invesco AUM, respectively, and AUM measured versus benchmark on a one-, three-, and five-year basis represents 72%, 71%, and 67% of total Invesco AUM, respectively, as of March 31, 2013. Peer group rankings are sourced from a widely-used third party ranking agency in each fund's market (Lipper, Morningstar, IMA, Russell, Mercer, eVestment Alliance, SITCA) and are asset-weighted in USD. Rankings are as of prior quarter-end for most institutional products and preceding month-end for Australian retail funds due to their late Note: release by third parties. Rankings for the most representative fund in each GIPS composite are applied to all products within each GIPS composite. Excludes passive products, closed-end funds, private equity limited partnerships, non-discretionary direct real estate, unit investment trusts, CLOs, alternative and stable value products. Certain funds and products were excluded from the analysis because of limited benchmark or peer group data. Had these been available, results may have been different. These results are preliminary and subject to revision. Performance assumes the reinvestment of dividends. Past performance is not indicative of future results and may not reflect an investor's experience.

Assets Under Management

The discussion below includes presentation of AUM as Passive and Active. Passive AUM includes ETFs, UITs, non-fee earning leverage, foreign exchange overlays and other passive mandates. Active AUM is total AUM less Passive AUM. The AUM tables and the discussion below refer to AUM as long-term and short-term. Short-term AUM includes institutional money market and Invesco PowerShares QQQ AUM. Long-term AUM is total AUM less short-term AUM.

AUM at March 31, 2013, were \$729.3 billion (December 31, 2012: \$687.7 billion; March 31, 2012: \$672.8 billion). During the three months ended March 31, 2013, we experienced total net inflows of \$19.2 billion, of which \$14.8 billion was from long-term net inflows and \$4.8 billion was from net inflows in institutional money market funds, offset by net outflows from the Invesco PowerShares QQQ fund of \$0.4 billion. Market movements increased AUM by \$31.4 billion, while AUM decreased \$9.0 billion due to changes in foreign exchange rates during the three months ended March 31, 2013. During the three months ended March 31, 2012, we experienced total net inflows of \$8.1 billion, of which \$2.8 billion was from long-term net inflows, \$1.1 billion was from net inflows in institutional money market funds and \$4.2 billion was from net inflows from

the Invesco PowerShares QQQ fund. Market movements increased AUM by \$37.3 billion, while AUM increased \$2.1 billion due to changes in foreign exchange rates during the three months ended March 31, 2012. Average AUM during the three months ended March 31, 2013, were \$712.7 billion compared to \$658.2 billion for the three months ended March 31, 2012.

Long-term net inflows during the three months ended March 31, 2013 were \$14.8 billion and included net long-term inflows of active AUM of \$8.4 billion. Total net long-term flows include inflows from our retail distribution channel of \$10.3 billion , inflows from our institutional channel of \$4.0 billion, and inflows from our private wealth management business of \$0.5 billion. We experienced net long-term inflows in our balanced asset class of \$5.5 billion, fixed income of \$5.0 billion, equity of \$2.4 billion and alternatives of \$2.1 billion. These inflows were partially offset by net long-term outflows of \$0.2 billion in our money market funds.

Of the \$31.4 billion increase in AUM resulting from market gains during the three months ended March 31, 2013, \$25.9 billion of this increase was due to the change in value of our equity asset class, with balanced, fixed income and alternative asset classes also experiencing gains. Of the \$37.3 billion increase in AUM resulting from market gains during the three months ended March 31, 2012, \$29.3 billion of this increase was due to the change in value of our equity asset class.

The impact of the change in foreign exchange rates in the three months ended March 31, 2013, was driven primarily by the weakening of the Pound Sterling, the Euro, the Canadian Dollar and the Japanese Yen relative to the U.S. Dollar, which was reflected in the translation of our Sterling-based, Euro-based, Canadian Dollar-based and Japanese Yen-based AUM into U.S. Dollars. The impact of the change in foreign exchange rates in the three months ended March 31, 2012, was driven by the strengthening of the Pound Sterling, Euro, and Canadian Dollar relative to the U.S. Dollar, partially offset by weakening of the Japanese Yen relative to the U.S. Dollar.

The table below illustrates the spot foreign exchange rates for translation into the U.S. Dollar, the reporting currency of the company, at March 31, 2013 and 2012, as compared with the rates that existed at December 31, 2012 and 2011:

	March 31, 2013	December 31, 2012	March 31, 2012	December 31,		
	Wiaich 31, 2013		Wiaicii 31, 2012	2011		
Pound Sterling (\$ per £)	1.520	1.625	1.600	1.555		
Canadian Dollar (CAD per \$)	1.018	0.996	1.000	1.018		
Japan (¥ per \$)	94.160	86.520	82.330	76.950		
Euro (\$ per €)	1.282	1.319	1.330	1.299		

Net revenue yield increased 1.1 basis points to 45.8 basis points in the three months ended March 31, 2013, from the three months ended March 31, 2012 level of 44.7 basis points. The increase in net revenue yield was largely driven by higher performance fees in the three months ended March 31, 2013, from the three months ended March 31, 2012. Net revenue yield before performance fees increased to 43.7 in the three months ended March 31, 2013, from the three months ended March 31, 2012 level of 43.5 basis points.

Gross revenue yield on AUM increased 1.3 basis points to 64.4 basis points in the three months ended March 31, 2013, from the three months ended March 31, 2012, level of 63.1 basis points. Management does not consider gross revenue yield, the most comparable U.S. GAAP-based measure to net revenue yield, to be a meaningful effective fee rate measure. See footnote 1 to the table below for additional information.

Changes in AUM were as follows:

\$ in billions	2013 Total AUM		Active		Passive		2012 Total AUM		Active	Passivo	e
December 31	687.7		573.7		114.0		625.3		529.0	96.3	
Long-term inflows	48.6		35.1		13.5		35.2		26.6	8.6	
Long-term outflows	(33.8	)	(26.7	)	(7.1	)	(32.4	)	(27.5)	(4.9	)
Long-term net flows	14.8		8.4		6.4		2.8		(0.9)	3.7	
Net flows in Invesco PowerShares QQQ fund	(0.4	)			(0.4	)	4.2		_	4.2	
Net flows in institutional money market funds	4.8		4.8				1.1		1.1		
Total net flows	19.2		13.2		6.0		8.1		0.2	7.9	
Market gains and (losses)/reinvestment	31.4		28.0		3.4		37.3		28.7	8.6	
Foreign currency translation	(9.0	)	(8.7	)	(0.3	)	2.1		2.3	(0.2)	)
March 31	729.3		606.2		123.1		672.8		560.2	112.6	
Average long-term AUM	607.1		519.5		87.6		555.6		482.2	73.4	
Average short-term AUM	105.6		73.1		32.5		102.6		70.2	32.4	
Average AUM	712.7		592.6		120.1		658.2		552.4	105.8	
Tivolugo Tioni	/12./		372.0		120.1		030.2		332.4	105.0	
Gross revenue yield on AUM <sup>(1)</sup>	64.4bps		75.3bps	S	10.7bps		63.1bps		73.5bps	8.9bps	
Gross revenue yield on AUM before performance fees <sup>(1)</sup>	62.3bps		72.7bps	8	10.7bps		61.9bps		72.0bps	8.9bps	
Net revenue yield on AUM <sup>(2)</sup>	45.8bps		52.9bps	S	10.7bps		44.7bps		51.6bps	8.9bps	
Net revenue yield on AUM before performance fees <sup>(2)</sup>	43.7bps		50.3bps	S	10.7bps		43.5bps		50.1bps	8.9bps	

Gross revenue yield on AUM is equal to annualized U.S. GAAP total operating revenues divided by average AUM, excluding joint venture (JV) AUM. Management does not consider gross revenue yield, the most comparable U.S. GAAP-based measure to net revenue yield, to be a meaningful effective fee rate measure. The (1) differences between the numerators of the gross and net revenue yield calculations are due to the reconciling items between the U.S. GAAP operating revenue (gross revenue) amount and the non-GAAP measure of net revenue

between the U.S. GAAP operating revenue (gross revenue) amount and the non-GAAP measure of net revenue. See "Schedule of Non-GAAP Information" for a reconciliation of operating revenues (gross revenues) to net revenues.

The difference in the denominators of the gross and net revenue yield calculations is due to the JV average AUM, which is excluded in the calculation of gross revenue yield. It is appropriate to exclude the average AUM of our JVs for purposes of computing gross revenue yield on AUM, because the revenues resulting from these AUM are not presented in our operating revenues. Under U.S. GAAP, our share of the pre-tax earnings of the JVs is recorded as equity in earnings of unconsolidated affiliates on our Condensed Consolidated Statements of Income. Our share of the average AUM in the three months ended March 31, 2013, for our JVs in China was \$3.3 billion (three months ended March 31, 2012: \$3.0 billion).

(2) Net revenue yield on AUM is equal to annualized net revenues divided by average AUM. See "Schedule of Non-GAAP Information" for a reconciliation of operating revenues to net revenues.

Our AUM by channel, by asset class, and by client domicile were as follows: Total AUM by  $Channel^{(1)}$ 

Total AUM by Channel				D : .
\$ in billions	Total	Retail	Institutional	Private Wealth Management
December 31, 2012 AUM	687.7	425.8	242.0	19.9
Long-term inflows	48.6	36.2	11.4	1.0
Long-term outflows	(33.8		) (7.4	
Long-term net flows	14.8	10.3	4.0	0.5
Net flows in Invesco PowerShares QQQ fund	(0.4	) (0.4	) —	<del></del>
Net flows in institutional money market funds	4.8	—	4.8	_
Total net flows	19.2	9.9	8.8	0.5
Market gains and (losses)/reinvestment	31.4	26.1	4.5	0.8
Foreign currency translation	(9.0		) (2.0	<del></del>
March 31, 2013 AUM	729.3	454.8	253.3	21.2
1,141011 31, 2013 110111	727.3	15 1.0	255.5	21.2
December 31, 2011 AUM	625.3	373.9	233.5	17.9
Long-term inflows	35.2	27.4	6.8	1.0
Long-term outflows	(32.4			(0.4)
Long-term net flows	2.8	3.3	(1.1)	
Net flows in Invesco PowerShares QQQ fund	4.2	4.2	—	<del></del>
Net flows in institutional money market funds	1.1		1.1	_
Total net flows	8.1	7.5	_	0.6
Market gains and (losses)/reinvestment	37.3	30.8	5.6	0.9
Foreign currency translation	2.1	2.6	(0.5)	<del>-</del>
March 31, 2012 AUM	672.8	414.8	238.6	19.4
Passive AUM by Channel <sup>(1)</sup>	072.0	11 1.0	250.0	17.1
Tussive fresh by Chamber				Private
\$ in billions	Total	Retail	Institutional	Wealth
				Management
December 31, 2012 AUM	114.0	91.2	22.8	_
Long-term inflows	13.5	10.3	3.2	_
Long-term outflows	(7.1	) (5.7	) (1.4	
Long-term net flows	6.4	4.6	1.8	_
Net flows in Invesco PowerShares QQQ fund	(0.4	) (0.4	) —	
Net flows in institutional money market funds		_	_	_
Total net flows	6.0	4.2	1.8	_
Market gains and (losses)/reinvestment	3.4	3.1	0.3	_
Foreign currency translation	(0.3	) —	(0.3)	_
March 31, 2013 AUM	123.1	98.5	24.6	
December 31, 2011 AUM	96.3	76.9	19.4	
Long-term inflows	8.6	7.3	1.3	
Long-term outflows	(4.9	) (4.5	) (0.4	
Long-term net flows	(			
Not flowed in Lorenza Description of OOO for 1	3.7	2.8	0.9	
Net flows in Invesco PowerShares QQQ fund	`	2.8 4.2	0.9 —	_
Net flows in institutional money market funds	3.7		0.9 — —	_ _ _
	3.7		0.9 — — 0.9	_ _ _
Net flows in institutional money market funds	3.7 4.2	4.2	_	

Foreign currency translation	(0.2	) —	(0.2	) —
March 31, 2012 AUM	112.6	92.2	20.4	

See accompanying notes immediately following these tables.

Total AUM by Asset Class<sup>(2)</sup>

Total Acivi by Asset Class												
\$ in billions	Total		Equity		Fixed Income		Balanced		Money Market		Alternatives(	3)
December 31, 2012 AUM	687.7		297.4		171.9		62.1		73.3		83.0	
Long-term inflows	48.6		18.6		14.1		8.0		0.6		7.3	
Long-term outflows	•	)	(16.2	)	(9.1	)	(2.5	)	(0.8	)	(5.2)	)
Long-term net flows	14.8		2.4		5.0		5.5		(0.2	)	2.1	
Net flows in Invesco PowerShares	(0.4	)	(0.4	)	_				_		_	
QQQ fund Net flows in institutional money												
market funds	4.8		_		_		_		4.8		_	
Total net flows	19.2		2.0		5.0		5.5		4.6		2.1	
Market gains and	31.4		25.9		0.3		4.1		(0.1	)	1.2	
(losses)/reinvestment										,		
Foreign currency translation		)	(5.8	)	(1.3	)	(1.2	)		(4)	(0.7	)
March 31, 2013 AUM	729.3		319.5		175.9		70.5		77.8	(4)	85.6	
December 31, 2011 AUM	625.3		271.0		149.0		44.6		74.0		86.7	
Long-term inflows	35.2		15.0		9.6		4.9		0.3		5.4	
Long-term outflows	(32.4	)	(15.9	)	(7.2	)	(1.8	)	(0.9)	)	(6.6	)
Long-term net flows	2.8		(0.9	)	2.4		3.1		(0.6	)	(1.2	)
Net flows in Invesco PowerShares	4.2		1.2									
QQQ fund	4.2		4.2								<del></del>	
Net flows in institutional money	1.1								1.1			
market funds			_		_		_				_	
Total net flows	8.1		3.3		2.4		3.1		0.5		(1.2	)
Market gains and (losses)/reinvestment	37.3		29.3		3.3		2.3		_		2.4	
Foreign currency translation	2.1		1.6		0.3		0.5		_		(0.3	)
March 31, 2012 AUM	672.8		305.2		155.0		50.5		74.5		87.6	
Passive AUM by Asset Class <sup>(2)</sup>												
\$ in billions	Total		Equity		Fixed Income		Balanced		Money Market		Alternatives(	3)
December 31, 2012 AUM	114.0		55.5		39.0		_		_		19.5	
Long-term inflows	13.5		6.3		5.7				_		1.5	
Long-term outflows	(7.1	)	(3.2	)	(2.4	)					(1.5	)
Long-term net flows	6.4		3.1		3.3							
Net flows in Invesco PowerShares QQQ fund	(0.4	)	(0.4	)	_		_		_		_	
Net flows in institutional money	_		_		_						_	
market funds												
Total net flows	6.0		2.7		3.3		_				_	
Market gains and (losses)/reinvestment	3.4		3.8		(0.4	)			_		_	
Foreign currency translation	(0.3	)	_		_		_				(0.3	)
March 31, 2013 AUM	123.1		62.0		41.9						19.2	
December 31, 2011 AUM	96.3		45.6		30.0						20.7	
Long-term inflows	8.6		4.1		2.8						1.7	
Long will illiows	0.0		1.1		2.0						1.1	

Long-term outflows	(4.9	) (2.6	) (0.4	) —		(1.9	)
Long-term net flows	3.7	1.5	2.4	_		(0.2	)
Net flows in Invesco PowerShares QQQ fund	4.2	4.2	_		_	_	
Net flows in institutional money market funds	_	_	_		_	_	
Total net flows	7.9	5.7	2.4	_		(0.2	)
Market gains and (losses)/reinvestment	8.6	7.7	0.1	_	_	0.8	
Foreign currency translation	(0.2	) —		_		(0.2	)
March 31, 2012 AUM	112.6	59.0	32.5			21.1	

See accompanying notes immediately following these tables.

Total AUM by	Client Domicile <sup>(5)</sup>
--------------	--------------------------------

\$ in billions	Total	U.S.		Canada		U.K.		Continental Europe		Asia	
December 31, 2012 AUM	687.7	472.8		25.2		101.9		38.8		49.0	
Long-term inflows	48.6	31.1		1.2		3.7		8.9		3.7	
Long-term outflows	(33.8	) (20.6	)	(1.3	)	(4.3	)	(3.9	)	(3.7	)
Long-term net flows	14.8	10.5		(0.1	)	(0.6	)	5.0		_	
Net flows in Invesco PowerShare QQQ fund	es <sub>(0.4)</sub>	) (0.4	)			_		_		_	
Net flows in institutional money market funds	4.8	4.6				0.2		_		_	
Total net flows	19.2	14.7		(0.1	)	(0.4	)	5.0			
Market gains and (losses)/reinvestment	31.4	16.5		1.5		9.5		0.9		3.0	
Foreign currency translation	(9.0	) —		(0.6	)	(6.4	)	(0.4	)	(1.6	)
March 31, 2013 AUM	729.3	504.0		26.0		104.6		44.3		50.4	
December 31, 2011 AUM	625.3	430.0		23.4		89.8		32.0		50.1	
Long-term inflows	35.2	21.4		0.9		3.7		5.5		3.7	
Long-term outflows	(32.4	) (19.2	)	(1.4	)	(3.7	)	(3.9	)	(4.2	)
Long-term net flows	2.8	2.2		(0.5	)	_		1.6		(0.5	)
Net flows in Invesco PowerShare QQQ fund	es <sub>4.2</sub>	4.2		_		_		_		_	
Net flows in institutional money market funds	1.1	1.0		0.1		0.3		_		(0.3	)
Total net flows	8.1	7.4		(0.4	)	0.3		1.6		(0.8	)
Market gains and (losses)/reinvestment	37.3	25.5		1.3		5.6		1.7		3.2	
Foreign currency translation	2.1 672.8	— 462.9		0.5 24.8		2.3 98.0		0.4 35.7		(1.1 51.4	)
March 31, 2012 AUM	072.0	402.9		2 <del>1</del> .0		70.0		55.1		J1. <del>4</del>	
45											

Cantinantal

#### **Table of Contents**

Passive AUM by Client Domicile(5)

\$ in billions	Total	U.S.	Canada	U.K.	Continental Europe	Asia	
December 31, 2012 AUM	114.0	107.8	0.1	_	1.1	5.0	
Long-term inflows	13.5	13.3		_	0.2		
Long-term outflows	(7.1)	(6.9)	· —		(0.1)	(0.1	)
Long-term net flows	6.4	6.4			0.1	(0.1	)
Net flows in Invesco PowerShare QQQ fund	<sup>es</sup> (0.4)	(0.4)	_	_	_	_	
Net flows in institutional money market funds		_	_	_	_	_	
Total net flows	6.0	6.0			0.1	(0.1	)
Market gains and (losses)/reinvestment	3.4	3.1		_	_	0.3	
Foreign currency translation	(0.3)			_	_	(0.3	)
March 31, 2013 AUM	123.1	116.9	0.1		1.2	4.9	
December 31, 2011 AUM	96.3	89.6	_	_	1.3	5.4	
Long-term inflows	8.6	8.5	_	_	0.1	_	
Long-term outflows	(4.9)	(4.8)	· —		(0.1   )	_	
Long-term net flows	3.7	3.7					
Net flows in Invesco PowerShare QQQ fund	es <sub>4.2</sub>	4.2	_	_		_	
Net flows in institutional money market funds		_	_	_	_	_	
Total net flows	7.9	7.9				_	
Market gains and (losses)/reinvestment	8.6	8.2	_	_	0.2	0.2	
Foreign currency translation	(0.2)		_			(0.2	)
March 31, 2012 AUM	112.6	105.7	_	_	1.5	5.4	
C	ATTM toleles	41. a £a11 a					

See accompanying notes to these AUM tables on the following page.

Channel refers to the distribution channel from which the AUM originated. Retail AUM arose from client investments into funds available to the public with shares or units. Institutional AUM originated from individual corporate clients, endowments, foundations, government authorities, universities, or charities. Private Wealth Management AUM arose from high net worth client investments.

- (2) Asset classes are descriptive groupings of AUM by common type of underlying investments.
- The alternatives asset class includes absolute return, real estate, commodities, currencies, financial structures, Global Macro, REITS, private capital, and Risk Premia Capture.
- Ending money market AUM includes \$74.2 billion in institutional money market AUM and \$3.6 billion in retail money market AUM.
- (5) Client domicile disclosure groups AUM by the domicile of the underlying clients.

Results of Operations for the three months ended March 31, 2013 compared with the three months ended March 31, 2012

The company provides investment management services to, and has transactions with, various private equity, real estate, fund-of-funds, collateralized loan obligation products (CLOs), and other investment entities sponsored by the

company for the investment of client assets in the normal course of business. The company serves as the investment manager, making day-to-day investment decisions concerning the assets of the products. Certain of these entities are consolidated under variable interest or voting interest entity consolidation guidance. See Part I, Item 1, Financial Statements — Note 12, "Consolidated Investment Products," for additional details.

The majority of the company's consolidated investment products balances are CLO-related. The collateral assets of the CLOs are held solely to satisfy the obligations of the CLOs. The company has no right to the benefits from, nor does it bear the risks associated with, the collateral assets held by the CLOs, beyond the company's minimal direct investments in, and management fees generated from, the CLOs. If the company were to liquidate, the collateral assets would not be available to the general creditors of the company, and as a result, the company does not consider them to be company assets. Additionally, the investors

### **Table of Contents**

in the CLOs have no recourse to the general credit of the company for the notes issued by the CLOs. The company therefore does not consider this debt to be a company liability. To assist in the comparisons, the discussion that follows will separate the impact of consolidated investment products from the overall consolidated results of operations. The discussion includes the use of non-GAAP financial measures. See "Schedule of Non-GAAP Information" for additional details and reconciliations of the most directly comparable U.S. GAAP measures to the non-GAAP measures.

Summary of Income Statement Impact of Consolidated Investment Products

7	Three months ended March 31,								
	2013				2012				
	Impact of	Impact of				Impact of			
¢ in millions	Consolidated Invesco Ltd. (			Consolidat	Consolidated Invesco Ltd.				
\$ in millions	Investment	t	Consolidat	ed	Investmen	t Consolid	ated		
	Products				Products				
Total operating revenues	(8.8)	)	1,141.8		(10.4	) 1,033.7			
Total operating expenses	2.5		868.4		6.0	803.9			
Operating income	(11.3	)	273.4		(16.4	) 229.8			
Equity in earnings of unconsolidated affiliates	(0.4	)	8.1		3.4	9.7			
Interest and dividend income	48.4		52.5		65.6	71.4			
Other investment income/(losses)	(21.1	)	(3.4	)	(121.9	) (103.3	)		
Interest expense	(32.7	)	(42.4	)	(45.6	) (59.2	)		
Income before income taxes	(17.1	)	288.2		(114.9	) 148.4			
Income tax provision			(88.6)	)	_	(73.6	)		
Net income	(17.1	)	199.6		(114.9	) 74.8			
(Gains)/losses attributable to noncontrolling interests in consolidated entities, net	20.2		22.6		119.1	119.1			
Net income attributable to common shareholders	3.1		222.2		4.2	193.9			
Operating Revenues and Net Revenues									

The main categories of revenues, and the dollar and percentage change between the periods, were as follows:

	Three months ended March 31,									
\$ in millions	2013	2012	\$ Chang	ge % Cha	inge					
Investment management fees	874.2	791.4	82.8	10.5	%					
Service and distribution fees	206.3	189.0	17.3	9.2	%					
Performance fees	36.1	20.5	15.6	76.1	%					
Other	25.2	32.8	(7.6	) (23.2	)%					
Total operating revenues	1,141.8	1,033.7	108.1	10.5	%					
Third-party distribution, service and advisory expenses	(347.2)	(317.1)	30.1	9.5	%					
Third party distribution expense related to European infrastructure initiative	2.7			N/A						
Proportional share of revenues, net of third-party distribution expenses, from joint venture investments	10.4	9.3	1.1	11.8	%					
Management fees earned from consolidated investment products	6.3	9.7	(3.4	) (35.1	)%					
Performance fees earned from consolidated investment products	2.5	0.7	1.8	N/A						
Net revenues	816.5	736.3	80.2	10.9	%					

A significant portion of our business and AUM is based outside of the U.S. The strengthening or weakening of the U.S. dollar against other currencies, primarily the Pound Sterling, Canadian Dollar, Euro and Japanese Yen will impact our reported revenues and expenses from period to period. The income statements of foreign currency subsidiaries are translated into U.S. dollars, the reporting currency of the company, using average foreign exchange rates. The impact of foreign exchange rate movements decreased operating revenues by \$14.9 million, equivalent to 1.3% of total operating revenue, during the three months ended March 31, 2013 when compared to the three months ended March 31, 2012. Additionally, our revenues are directly influenced by the level and composition of our AUM. Therefore, movements in global capital market levels, net new business inflows (or outflows) and changes in the mix of investment products between asset classes and geographies may materially affect our revenues from period to period. The returns from most global capital markets increased in the three

months ended March 31, 2013. These market value increases, combined with net new business inflows, contributed to a net increase in AUM of \$41.6 billion during the three months ended March 31, 2013. Net revenue yield, as discussed in the "Assets Under Management" section, increased during the first three months of 2013 to 45.8 basis points, as compared to 44.7 basis points in the first three months of 2012. The increase in 2013 was largely driven by increased performance fees. Excluding performance fees, net revenue yield increased slightly in the first quarter of 2013 from 43.5 basis points to 43.7 basis points compared to first quarter 2012.

Operating revenues increased by \$108.1 million (10.5%) in the three months ended March 31, 2013 to \$1,141.8 million (three months ended March 31, 2012: \$1,033.7 million). Net revenues increased by \$80.2 million (10.9%) in the three months ended March 31, 2013 to \$816.5 million (three months ended March 31, 2012: \$736.3 million). Net revenues are operating revenues less third-party distribution, service and advisory expenses (adjusted for third party distribution expense related to the European infrastructure initiative), plus our proportional share of net revenues from joint venture arrangements, plus management and performance fees earned from consolidated investment products. See "Schedule of Non-GAAP Information" for additional important disclosures regarding the use of net revenues. Investment management fees

Investment management fees increased by \$82.8 million (10.5%) in the three months ended March 31, 2013 to \$874.2 million (three months ended March 31, 2012: \$791.4 million). This compares to a 8.3% increase in average AUM and a 9.3% increase in average long-term AUM. See the company's disclosures regarding the changes in AUM and revenue during the three months ended March 31, 2013 in the "Assets Under Management" section above for additional information regarding the movements in AUM. Management fee yield (annualized management fee revenues divided by average AUM, excluding joint venture AUM) increased in the first quarter of 2013 from 48.3 basis points to 49.3 basis points as compared to the first quarter of 2012. As discussed in previous quarters, management fees were reduced commencing in June 2011 due to acquisition integration-related U.S. mutual fund mergers, and these waivers negatively impacted the first quarter of 2012. The waivers began to lapse in mid-2012, which increased revenue in the first quarter of 2013 as compared to the first quarter of 2012. The impact of foreign exchange rate movements decreased investment management fees by \$12.1 million (14.6% of the increase) during the three months ended March 31, 2013, compared to the three months ended March 31, 2012.

#### Service and distribution fees

In the three months ended March 31, 2013, service and distribution fees increased by \$17.3 million (9.2%) to \$206.3 million, (three months ended March 31, 2012: \$189.0 million). The increase in service and distribution fees reflects the overall increase in AUM during the period, and is made up of increases in distribution and redemption fees of \$8.4 million, administration fees of \$6.9 million, transfer agent fees of \$2.6 million and custodial fess of \$0.4 million, offset by a decrease in foreign exchange rate movements of \$1.0 million.

#### Performance fees

Of our \$729.3 billion in AUM at March 31, 2013, approximately \$47.4 billion, or 6.5%, have the potential to earn performance fees. In the three months ended March 31, 2013 recognized performance fees were \$36.1 million, an increase of \$15.6 million from the comparative period (three months ended March 31, 2012: \$20.5 million). The performance fees generated in the three months ended March 31, 2013 were principally generated by the U.K. (\$29.5 million) and the U.S. (\$4.0 million). The performance fees generated in the three months ended March 31, 2012 arose primarily from certain investment trusts in the U.K. (\$8.9 million), real estate portfolios (\$7.7 million) and bank loan products (\$2.6 million). Foreign exchange rate movements decreased performance fees by \$1.7 million during the three months ended March 31, 2013, compared to the three months ended March 31, 2012.

#### Other revenues

In the three months ended March 31, 2013, other revenues decreased by \$7.6 million (23.2%) to \$25.2 million (three months ended March 31, 2012: \$32.8 million). The decrease in other revenues was driven by decreases in real estate acquisition and disposition fees of \$8.7 million, due to lower levels of activity, and UIT revenues of \$0.6 million. These decreases were offset by increases in mutual fund front end fees of \$0.9 million and other revenues of \$0.8 million during the period.

Third-party distribution, service and advisory expenses

Third-party distribution, service and advisory expenses increased by \$30.1 million (9.5%) in the three months ended March 31, 2013 to \$347.2 million (three months ended March 31, 2012: \$317.1 million). The increase in third-party distribution, service and advisory expenses is closely linked to the increase in investment management fees and service and distribution fees over this period. The increased expenses include increases in renewal and external commissions of \$23.1 million, distribution fees of \$9.0 million, external transfer agency fees of \$2.3 million and administration fees of \$0.3 million. The increases in third-party distribution, service and advisory expenses were offset by a decrease due to foreign exchange rate

movements of \$4.6 million during the three months ended March 31, 2013, compared to the three months ended March 31, 2012.

Proportional share of revenues, net of third-party distribution expenses, from joint venture investments Management believes that our proportional share of revenues, net of third-party distribution expenses, from joint venture arrangements should be added to operating revenues to arrive at net revenues, as it is important to evaluate the contribution to the business that our joint venture arrangements are making. See "Schedule of Non-GAAP Information" for additional disclosures regarding the use of net revenues.

Our proportional share of revenues, net of third-party distribution expenses increased by \$1.1 million (11.8%) to \$10.4 million in the three months ended March 31, 2013 (three months ended March 31, 2012: \$9.3 million). Our share of the Invesco Great Wall joint venture's average AUM in the three months ended March 31, 2013 was \$3.3 billion (three months ended March 31, 2012: \$3.0 billion).

Management and performance fees earned from consolidated investment products

Management believes that the consolidation of investment products may impact a reader's analysis of our underlying results of operations and could result in investor confusion or the production of information about the company by analysts or external credit rating agencies that is not reflective of the underlying results of operations and financial condition of the company. Accordingly, management believes that it is appropriate to adjust operating revenues for the impact of consolidated investment products in calculating net revenues. As management and performance fees earned by Invesco from the consolidated products are eliminated upon consolidation of the investment products, management believes that it is appropriate to add these operating revenues back in the calculation of net revenues. Such fees were \$8.8 million in the three months ended March 31, 2013 (three months ended March 31, 2012: \$10.4 million). See "Schedule of Non-GAAP Information" for additional disclosures regarding the use of net revenues. Operating Expenses

The main categories of operating expenses, and the dollar and percentage changes between periods, are as follows:

I nree montr	is enaea				
March 31,					
2013	2012	\$ Change		% Change	
358.0	318.5	39.5		12.4	%
347.2	317.1	30.1		9.5	%
22.4	26.7	(4.3	)	(16.1	)%
69.8	66.8	3.0		4.5	%
69.6	73.3	(3.7	)	(5.0	)%
1.4	1.5	(0.1	)	(6.7	)%
868.4	803.9	64.5		8.0	%
	March 31, 2013 358.0 347.2 22.4 69.8 69.6 1.4	2013       2012         358.0       318.5         347.2       317.1         22.4       26.7         69.8       66.8         69.6       73.3         1.4       1.5	March 31, 2013 2012 \$ Change 358.0 318.5 39.5 347.2 317.1 30.1 22.4 26.7 (4.3 69.8 66.8 3.0 69.6 73.3 (3.7 1.4 1.5 (0.1	March 31, 2013 2012 \$ Change 358.0 318.5 39.5 347.2 317.1 30.1 22.4 26.7 (4.3 ) 69.8 66.8 3.0 69.6 73.3 (3.7 ) 1.4 1.5 (0.1 )	March 31, 2013 2012 \$ Change % Change 358.0 318.5 39.5 12.4 347.2 317.1 30.1 9.5 22.4 26.7 (4.3 ) (16.1 69.8 66.8 3.0 4.5 69.6 73.3 (3.7 ) (5.0 1.4 1.5 (0.1 ) (6.7

The table below sets forth these cost categories as a percentage of total operating expenses and operating revenues, which we believe provides useful information as to the relative significance of each type of expense:

				_		~ I				
		% of Total		% of			% of Total		% of	
Three months ended:	March 31,	Operating		Operating		March 31,	Operating		Operating	
\$ in millions	2013	Expenses		Revenues		2012	Expenses		Revenues	
Employee compensation	358.0	41.2	%	31.4	%	318.5	39.6	%	30.8	%
Third-party distribution, service	247.2	40.0	0%	30.4	0%	317.1	39.4	0%	30.7	%
and advisory	347.2	40.0	70	30.4	70	317.1	39.4	70	30.7	70
Marketing	22.4	2.6	%	2.0	%	26.7	3.3	%	2.6	%
Property, office and technology	69.8	8.0	%	6.1	%	66.8	8.3	%	6.5	%
General and administrative	69.6	8.0	%	6.1	%	73.3	9.1	%	7.1	%
Transaction and integration	1.4	0.2	%	0.1	%	1.5	0.3	%	0.1	%
Total operating expenses	868.4	100.0	%	76.1	%	803.9	100.0	%	77.8	%

During the three months ended March 31, 2013, operating expenses increased by \$64.5 million (8.0%) to \$868.4 million (three months ended March 31, 2012 \$803.9 million). The impact of foreign exchange rate movements offset the increase in

operating expenses by \$11.9 million equivalent to 1.4% of total operating expenses, during the three months ended March 31, 2013 as compared to the three months ended March 31, 2012.

**Employee Compensation** 

Employee compensation increased \$39.5 million (12.4%) to \$358.0 million in the three months ended March 31, 2013 (three months ended March 31, 2012: \$318.5 million). The impact of foreign exchange rate movements decreased employee compensation expense by \$4.9 million during the three months ended March 31, 2013 compared to the three months ended March 31, 2012. After allowing for foreign exchange rate changes, the increase in employee compensation was \$44.4 million.

Direct compensation increased \$38.2 million and includes increases in base salaries and variable costs of \$29.0 million, including bonuses linked to performance fee revenues, share-based costs of \$4.1 million and other deferred compensation costs of \$0.9 million during the three months ended March 31, 2013 compared to the three months ended March 31, 2012. Direct compensation was also increased by \$4.2 million due to higher sales commissions during the three months ended March 31, 2013 compared to the three months ended March 31, 2012. Staff related costs increased \$6.2 million due to higher payroll taxes of \$2.4 million and termination costs of \$3.7 million, which includes costs associated with the cessation of activities related to a previous acquisition during the three months ended March 31, 2013 compared to the three months ended March 31, 2012.

Headcount at March 31, 2013 was 6,132 (March 31, 2012: 6,153).

Third-Party Distribution, Service and Advisory Expenses

Third-party distribution, service and advisory expenses are discussed above in the operating and net revenues section. Marketing

Marketing expenses decreased by \$4.3 million (16.1%) in the three months ended March 31, 2013 to \$22.4 million (three months ended March 31, 2012: \$26.7 million). The impact of foreign exchange rate movements decreased marketing expense by \$0.3 million during the three months ended March 31, 2013 compared to the three months ended March 31, 2012. After allowing for foreign exchange rate changes, the decrease in marketing expenses was \$4.0 million.

The decreases in marketing expenses includes decreases in advertising expense of \$1.1 million related to lower retail advertising activity, other marketing expenses of \$1.1 million related to fund launch marketing costs in the comparative period, travel expenses of \$0.7 million, client events of \$0.6 million and sales literature and research of \$0.5 million compared to the comparative period.

Property, Office and Technology

Property, office and technology expenses increased by \$3.0 million (4.5%) to \$69.8 million in the three months ended March 31, 2013 (three months ended March 31, 2012: \$66.8 million). The impact of foreign exchange rate movements offset the increase in property, office and technology expenses by \$1.0 million during the three months ended March 31, 2013 as compared to the three months ended March 31, 2012. After allowing for foreign exchange rate movements, the increase was \$4.0 million.

Property and office expenses increased \$0.4 million over the comparable 2012 period, due primarily to an increase of \$2.0 million in depreciation and improvements, offset by a decrease of \$1.4 million in operating expenses and service charges, driven by an adjustment on an onerous lease accrual. Technology and communications expenses increased \$3.6 million compared to the three months ended March 31, 2012, primarily due to increases in technology expenses associated with continued investment in fixed income trading, portfolio management and risk reporting systems, together with increased outsourced administration expenses.

General and Administrative

General and administrative expenses decreased by \$3.7 million (5.0%) to \$69.6 million in the three months ended March 31, 2013 (three months ended March 31, 2012: \$73.3 million). The impact of foreign exchange rate movements decreased general and administrative expenses by \$1.1 million during the three months ended March 31, 2013. After allowing for foreign exchange rate changes, the decrease in general and administrative expenses was \$2.6 million. The decrease in general administration expenses includes decreased mutual fund costs, partly resulting from a legal settlement credit of \$2.5 million in the first quarter of 2013, as well as a decrease related to \$2.7 million in dead deal and related costs that occurred in the first quarter of 2012. Intangible amortization expense decreased \$3.5 million due

to write-offs of certain management contract intangibles in the first quarter of 2012. Lower foreign exchange settlement charges of \$1.2 million also contributed to the decrease during the first quarter of 2013 as compared to the first quarter of 2012. These decreases are offset by higher professional services costs of \$3.4 million, mainly driven by increased regulatory activity in the U.K., non-marketing travel and entertainment costs of \$2.2 million and irrecoverable tax expense, including U.K. value added

tax (VAT) of \$1.1 million. Other general and administrative costs increased \$0.6 million during the three months ended March 31, 2013 as compared to the three months ended March 31, 2012.

Transaction and integration

Transaction and integration charges were \$1.4 million in the three months ended March 31, 2013 (three months ended March 31, 2012: \$1.5 million). Transaction and integration expenses during the three months ended March 31, 2013 and March 31, 2012 relate to fund mergers and include professional services and shareholder communications costs. Operating Income, Adjusted Operating Income, Operating Margin and Adjusted Operating Margin Operating income increased by \$43.6 million (19.0%) to \$273.4 million in the three months ended March 31, 2013 (three months ended March 31, 2012: \$229.8 million). Operating margin (operating income divided by operating revenues), increased from 22.2% in the three months ended March 31, 2012 to 23.9% in the three months ended March 31, 2013. The increase in operating income and margin resulted from a higher relative increase in operating revenues (10.5%) than in operating expenses (8.0%). Adjusted operating income increased by \$44.4 million (16.5%) to \$313.6 million in the three months ended March 31, 2013 from \$269.2 million in the three months ended March 31, 2012. Adjusted operating margin increased to 38.4% in the three months ended March 31, 2013 from 36.6% in the three months ended March 31, 2012. See "Schedule of Non-GAAP Information" for definitions of these measures and a reconciliation of operating revenues to net revenues, a reconciliation of operating income and adjusted operating income and adjusted operating margin.

### Other Income and Expenses

The main categories of other income and expenses, and the dollar and percentage changes between periods are as follows:

	Three months ended							
	March 31,							
\$ in millions	2013		2012		\$ Change		% Change	
Equity in earnings of unconsolidated affiliates	8.1		9.7		(1.6	)	(16.5	)%
Interest and dividend income	2.2		2.4		(0.2	)	(8.3)	)%
Interest income of consolidated investment products	50.3		69.0		(18.7)	)	(27.1	)%
Other gains/(losses) of consolidated investment products, net	(21.1	)	(121.9	)	100.8		82.7	%
Interest expense	(9.7	)	(13.6	)	(3.9	)	(28.7	)%
Interest expense of consolidated investment products	(32.7	)	(45.6	)	(12.9	)	(28.3	)%
Other gains and losses, net	17.7		18.6		(0.9	)	(4.8	)%
Total other income and expenses	14.8		(81.4	)	96.2		N/A	

### Equity in earnings of unconsolidated affiliates

Equity in earnings of unconsolidated affiliates decreased by \$1.6 million (16.5%) to \$8.1 million in the three months ended March 31, 2013 (three months ended March 31, 2012: \$9.7 million). The decrease in equity in earnings is impacted by a decrease of \$1.1 million in our share of the market-driven valuation changes in the underlying holdings of certain partnership investments, including our investment in Invesco Mortgage Capital Inc., and a net decrease of \$0.5 million in the joint venture investments in China from the comparative period.

Interest and dividend income and interest expense

Interest and dividend income decreased by \$0.2 million (8.3%) to \$2.2 million in the three months ended March 31, 2013 (three months ended March 31, 2012: \$2.4 million).

Interest expense decreased by \$3.9 million (28.7%) to \$9.7 million in the three months ended March 31, 2013 (three months ended March 31, 2012: \$13.6 million) reflecting the changes made in the fourth quarter of 2012 to long-term financing arrangements. See Part I, Item 1, "Financial Statements — Note 4, "Debt," for additional details. Other gains and losses, net

Other gains and losses, net were a net gain of \$17.7 million in the three months ended March 31, 2013 as compared to a net gain of \$18.6 million in the three months ended March 31, 2012. Included in other gains and losses for the first quarter of 2013 is a net gain of \$18.0 million resulting from the appreciation of investments held for our deferred

compensation plans (three months ended March 31, 2012: \$12.7 million net gain) and net gains from seed and other investments of \$1.7 million (three months ended March 31, 2012: \$1.0 million net realized gains). These gains are offset by a net loss of \$0.4 million related to the mark-to-market foreign exchange put option contracts intended to provide protection against the impact of a significant

decline in the pound sterling/U.S dollar foreign exchange rate (three months ended March 31, 2012: none). Included in other gains and losses, net in the three months ended March 31, 2012, was a \$3.5 million gain on an acquisition-related loan note held to hedge the company's net interest in certain consolidated investment products. In the three months ended March 31, 2013, we incurred \$1.6 million in net foreign exchange losses on inter-group loans (three months ended March 31, 2012: \$1.4 million in net foreign exchange gains).

Non-operating income and expense of consolidated investment products

In the three months ended March 31, 2013, interest income of consolidated investment products decreased by \$18.7 million (27.1%) to \$50.3 million (three months ended March 31, 2012: \$69.0 million) primarily due to the impact of deconsolidated CLOs. Interest expense of consolidated investment products decreased by \$12.9 million (28.3%) to \$32.7 million (three months ended March 31, 2012: \$45.6 million) primarily due to the impact of deconsolidated CLOs. See Part I, Item 1, Financial Statements - Note 12, "Consolidated Investment Products," for additional information regarding the impact of the CLO deconsolidation during the period.

Included in other gains/(losses) of consolidated investment products, net, are realized and unrealized gains and losses on the underlying investments and debt of consolidated investment products. In the three months ended March 31, 2013, other gains/(losses) of consolidated investment products were a net loss of \$21.1 million, as compared to a net loss of \$121.9 million in the three months ended March 31, 2012. The net loss in the 2013 period is primarily due to losses associated with the increase in market value of the long-term debt of CLOs exceeding gains associated with private equity and CLO investments. In the three months ended March 31, 2012, other gains and losses of consolidated investment products were a net loss of \$121.9 million. The net loss in the period was primarily due to losses associated with real estate investments and long-term debt of CLOs that more than offset gains in the market value of investments held by CLOs.

Net impact of consolidated investment products and related noncontrolling interests in noncontrolling entities As illustrated in the Summary of Income Statement Impact of Consolidated Investment Products for the three months ended March 31, 2013 and 2012 at the beginning of this Results of Operations section, the consolidation of investment products during the three months ended March 31, 2013 resulted in a decrease to net income of \$17.1 million before attribution to noncontrolling interests (three months ended March 31, 2012: \$114.9 million decrease to net income). Invesco invests in only a portion of these products, and as a result this net loss is offset by noncontrolling interests of \$20.2 million (three months ended March 31, 2012: \$119.1 million), resulting in a net increase in net income of the company of \$3.1 million (three months ended March 31, 2012: \$4.2 million net increase).

Consolidated investment products are taxed at the investor level and not at the product entity level; therefore, there is no tax provision reflected in the net impact of consolidated investment products.

Noncontrolling interests in consolidated entities represent the profit or loss amounts attributed to third party investors in consolidated investment products. Movements in amounts attributable to noncontrolling interests in consolidated entities on the company's Consolidated Statements of Income generally offset the gains and losses, interest income and interest expense of consolidated investment products.

Additionally, consolidated investment products represent approximately 1% of the company's AUM. Therefore, the net gains or losses of consolidated investment products is not indicative of the performance of the company's aggregate assets under management.

Income Tax Expense

The company's subsidiaries operate in several taxing jurisdictions around the world, each with its own statutory income tax rate. As a result, the blended average statutory tax rate will vary from year to year depending on the mix of the profits and losses of the company's subsidiaries. The majority of our profits are earned in the U.S., the U.K., and Canada

The enacted U.K. statutory tax rate, for U.S. GAAP purposes, was 24% as of March 31, 2013 and 23% effective April 1, 2013. The 2013 U.K. Budget proposed to further reduce the rate to 21% (previously 22%) from April 1, 2014 and 20% (previously 21%) from April 1, 2015. However, the measures are not enacted for U.S. GAAP purposes (and cannot be accounted for) until they receive Royal Assent, which is not expected to occur before the third quarter of 2013. As of March 31, 2013, the Canadian federal and provincial statutory tax rate was 26.5%. The U.S. federal statutory tax rate was 35%.

Our effective tax rate decreased to 30.7% for the three months ended March 31, 2013 (three months ended March 31, 2012: 49.6%) due to smaller impact from losses in non-controlling interests in consolidated entities in the period. The inclusion of losses from non-controlling interests in consolidated entities increased our effective tax rate by 2.2% in 2013 and 22.1% in 2012. The remainder of the rate movement was primarily due to changes in the mix of pre-tax income.

#### Schedule of Non-GAAP Information

We are presenting the following non-GAAP performance measures: net revenue (and by calculation, net revenue yield on AUM), adjusted operating income (and by calculation, adjusted operating margin), adjusted net income attributable to common shareholders (and by calculation, adjusted diluted earnings per share (EPS)). We believe these non-GAAP measures provide greater transparency into our business and allow more appropriate comparisons with industry peers. Management uses these performance measures to evaluate the business, and they are consistent with internal management reporting. The most directly comparable U.S. GAAP measures are operating revenues (and by calculation, gross revenue yield on AUM), operating income (and by calculation, operating margin), net income (and by calculation, diluted EPS). Each of these measures is discussed more fully below.

These non-GAAP measures should not be considered as substitutes for any measures derived in accordance with U.S. GAAP and may not be comparable to other similarly titled measures of other companies. Additional reconciling items may be added in the future to these non-GAAP measures if deemed appropriate. The Schedule of Non-GAAP Information contained in the company's most recent annual report on Form 10-K contains expanded definitions of reconciling items from U.S. GAAP to non-GAAP information, including the reasons why management believes that the presentation of our non-GAAP measures provides useful information to investors.

The following are reconciliations of operating revenues, operating income (and by calculation, operating margin), and net income (and by calculation, diluted EPS) on a U.S. GAAP basis to net revenues, adjusted operating income (and by calculation, adjusted operating margin), and adjusted net income attributable to common shareholders (and by calculation, adjusted diluted EPS):

calculation, adjusted diluted EPS):				
	Three mor	iths	ended Ma	rch
Ф 'm m '11' m m m m d m m d m m d m m	31,		2012	
\$ in millions, except per share data	2013		2012	
Operating revenues, U.S. GAAP basis Third party distribution, complete and advisory express(1)	1,141.8	\	1,033.7	`
Third-party distribution, service and advisory expenses <sup>(1)</sup>	(347.2 2.7	)	(317.1	)
Third-party distribution expense related to the European infrastructure initiative <sup>(6)</sup> Proportional share of net revenues from joint venture arrangements <sup>(2)</sup>	10.4		9.3	
Management fees earned from consolidated investment products eliminated upon	10.4		9.3	
consolidation <sup>(3)</sup>	6.3		9.7	
Performance fees earned from consolidated investment products eliminated upon consolidation <sup>(3)</sup>	2.5		0.7	
Net revenues	816.5		736.3	
Operating income, U.S. GAAP basis	273.4		229.8	
Proportional share of operating income from joint venture investments <sup>(2)</sup>	3.9		4.5	
Transaction and integration charges <sup>(4)</sup>	1.4		1.5	
Other acquisition related items <sup>(4)</sup>	2.4			
Amortization of other intangibles <sup>(4)</sup>	5.0		8.5	
Change in contingent consideration estimates <sup>(4)</sup>	_		(2.1	)
Compensation expense related to market valuation changes in deferred compensation	7.5		6.5	
plans <sup>(5)</sup>	7.5		6.5	
Consolidation of investment products <sup>(3)</sup>	11.3		16.4	
Third-party distribution expense related to the European infrastructure initiative (6)	2.7		_	
Other reconciling items <sup>(7)</sup>	6.0		4.1	
Adjusted operating income	313.6		269.2	
Operating margin*	23.9	%	22.2	%
Adjusted operating margin**	38.4	%	36.6	%
Net income attributable to common shareholders, U.S. GAAP basis	222.2		193.9	
Transaction and integration charges, net of tax <sup>(4)</sup>	0.9		0.9	
Other acquisition related items <sup>(4)</sup>	2.4		_	
Amortization of other intangibles, net of tax <sup>(4)</sup>	4.6		7.5	
Change in contingent consideration estimates <sup>(4)</sup>			(2.1	)
Deferred compensation plan market valuation changes and dividend income less compensation expense, net of tax <sup>(5)</sup>	(8.5	)	(5.1	)
Deferred income taxes on intangible assets <sup>(4)</sup>	6.8		6.5	
Consolidation of investment products <sup>(3)</sup>	(3.1	)	(4.2	)
Third-party distribution expense related to the European infrastructure initiative, net of tax <sup>(6)</sup>	2.1			,
Other reconciling items <sup>(7)</sup>	4.6		3.6	
Adjusted net income attributable to common shareholders	232.0		201.0	
Average shares outstanding — diluted	448.9		455.9	
Diluted EPS	\$0.49		\$0.43	
Adjusted diluted EPS***	\$0.52		\$0.44	
Alajastea dilatea Li O	Ψ0.52		φυίπτ	

<sup>\*</sup>Operating margin is equal to operating income divided by operating revenues.

<sup>\*\*</sup> Adjusted operating margin is equal to adjusted operating income divided by net revenues.

\*\*\* Adjusted diluted EPS is equal to adjusted net income attributable to common shareholders divided by the weighted average shares outstanding amount used in the calculation of diluted EPS.

#### (1) Third-party distribution, service and advisory expenses

Third-party distribution, service and advisory expenses include renewal commissions, management fee rebates and distribution costs (12b-1 and marketing support) paid to brokers and independent financial advisors. While the terms used for these types of expense vary by geography, they are all expense items that are closely linked to the value of AUM and the revenue earned by Invesco from AUM. Since the company has been deemed to be the principal in the third-party arrangements, the company must reflect these expenses gross of operating revenues under U.S. GAAP. Management believes that the deduction of third-party distribution, service and advisory expenses from operating revenues in the computation of net revenues (and by calculation, net revenue yield on AUM) and the related computation of adjusted operating income (and by calculation, adjusted operating margin) appropriately reflects the nature of these expenses as revenue-sharing activities, as these costs are passed through to external parties who perform functions on behalf of, and distribute, the company's managed funds. Further, these expenses vary extensively by geography due to the differences in distribution channels. The net presentation assists in identifying the revenue contribution generated by the business, removing distortions caused by the differing distribution channel fees and allowing for a fair comparison with U.S. peer investment managers and within Invesco's own investment units. Additionally, management evaluates net revenue yield on AUM, which is equal to net revenues divided by average AUM during the reporting period. This financial measure is an indicator of the basis point net revenues we receive for each dollar of AUM we manage and is useful when evaluating the company's performance relative to industry competitors and within the company for capital allocation purposes.

(2) Proportional share of net revenues and operating income from joint venture investments
The company's two China joint venture investments are proportionally consolidated in the company's non-GAAP
measures. Enhancing our operations in China is one effort that we believe could improve our competitive position
over time. Accordingly, we believe that it is appropriate to evaluate the contribution of our joint venture investments
to the operations of the business.

## (3) Consolidated investment products

See Part I, Item 1, Financial Statements, Note 12, "Consolidated Investment Products" for a detailed analysis of the impact to the company's Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements from the consolidation of investment products. The reconciling items add back the management and performance fees earned by Invesco from the consolidated products and remove the revenues and expenses recorded by the consolidated products that have been included in the U.S. GAAP Condensed Consolidated Statements of Income. Additionally, before the consolidation of investment products, the company's interest is accounted for as equity method (private equity and real estate partnership funds) available-for-sale (CLOs) investments.

#### (4) Acquisition-related reconciling items

Acquisition-related adjustments include transaction and integration expenses and intangible asset amortization related to acquired assets, and tax cash flow benefits resulting from tax amortization of goodwill and indefinite-lived intangible assets. They also include employee severance expense associated with the cessation of activities related to a previous acquisition. These charges reflect the legal, regulatory, advisory, valuation, integration-related employee incentive awards and other professional or consulting fees, general and administrative costs, including travel costs related to the transaction and the costs of temporary staff involved in executing business combinations, and the post closing costs of integrating acquired businesses into the company's existing operations including incremental costs associated with achieving synergy savings. See Part I, Item 1, Financial Statements, Note 11, "Commitments and Contingencies" for additional information. Additionally, acquisition-related reconciling items include changes in estimates of acquisition earn-out liabilities booked from prior acquisitions, which is offset in the period by increased amortization related to the write-off of related management contract intangible assets.

(5) Market movement on deferred compensation plan liabilities

Certain deferred compensation plan awards involve a return to the employee linked to the appreciation (depreciation) of specified investments, typically the funds managed by the employee. Invesco hedges economically the exposure to market movements by holding these investments on its balance sheet. U.S. GAAP requires the appreciation (depreciation) in the compensation liability to be expensed over the award vesting period in proportion to the vested amount of the award as part of compensation expense. The full value of the investment appreciation

(depreciation) is immediately recorded below operating income in other gains and losses. This creates a timing difference between the recognition of the compensation expense and the investment gain or loss impacting net income attributable to common shareholders and diluted EPS which will reverse over the life of the award and net to zero at the end of the multi-year vesting period. During periods of high market volatility these timing differences impact compensation expense, operating income and operating margin in a manner which, over the life of the award, will

ultimately be offset by gains and losses recorded below operating income on the Condensed Consolidated Statements of Income. The non-GAAP measures exclude the mismatch created by differing U.S. GAAP treatments of the market movement on the liability and the investments.

Additionally, dividend income from investments held to hedge economically deferred compensation plans is recorded as dividend income and as compensation expense on the company's Condensed Consolidated Statements of Income on the record dates. This dividend income is passed through to the employee participants in the plan and is not retained by the company. The non-GAAP measures exclude this dividend income and related compensation expense.

(6) Third party distribution expense related to the European infrastructure initiative

As part of the outsourcing of the U.K. transfer agency, as discussed below in footnote 7, "Other reconciling items," operational process changes resulted in an accounting adjustment recognizing additional distribution expense of \$2.7 million (\$2.1 million, net of tax) in the three months ended March 31, 2013. This additional expense is attributable to periods prior to 2013. For the reasons outlined below, this expense has been excluded in arriving at our non-GAAP results.

#### (7) Other reconciling items

European infrastructure transformational initiative: As announced in 2011, the company is outsourcing its European transfer agency and is making certain structural changes to product and distribution platforms. Expenses incurred related to the European infrastructure activities are excluded in arriving at the non-GAAP financial information. For the three months ended March 31, 2013, this adjustment includes \$0.4 million in compensation expenses (three months ended March 31, 2012: \$1.2 million); \$1.6 million in general and administrative costs, primarily related to professional contractor services and mutual fund costs (three months ended March 31, 2012: \$1.3 million); \$0.1 million in marketing costs (three months ended March 31, 2012: \$0.3 million); and \$0.9 million of property, office and technology costs (three months ended March 31, 2012: \$1.3 million). The company's income tax provision included tax benefits of \$0.5 million in the first quarter 2013 relating to this charge (three months ended March 31, 2012: \$0.5 million).

Included within other gains and losses, net is a loss of \$0.4 million for the three months ended March 31, 2013 (three months ended March 31, 2012: none), related to the mark-to-market of four foreign exchange put option contracts intended to provide protection against the impact of a significant decline in the pound sterling/U.S dollar foreign exchange rate. During the first quarter of 2013, the company purchased new contracts for a total of \$1.8 million to extend the existing coverage through to March 25, 2014. The adjustment from U.S. GAAP to non-GAAP earnings removes the impact of market volatility; therefore, the company's non-GAAP results include only the amortization of the cost of the contracts during the contract period. The company' recorded no significant tax benefit for the three months ended March 31, 2013, relating to this loss.

Included within general and administrative expenses for the three months ended March 31, 2013 was an additional charge of \$3.0 million (three months ended March 31, 2012: none) relating to prior year levy from the U.K. Financial Services Compensation Scheme. Assessments were levied upon all Financial Services Authority (FSA)-registered investment management companies in proportion to their "eligible income" (as defined by the FSA) to cover claims resulting from failures of non-affiliated investment firms. The company's income tax provision included tax benefits of \$0.7 million in the first quarter of 2012 relating to this charge.

Management believes that the exclusion of these items, due to their unique character and magnitude, from net income provides useful information to investors, as this view is consistent with how management evaluates the performance of the business. Exclusion of these items will aid in comparability of our results from period to period and the comparability of our results with those of peer investment managers.

Total assets

#### **Balance Sheet Discussion**

A summary of the balance sheet impact of consolidated investment products is presented below. The majority of the company's consolidated investment products ("CIP") are CLO-related. The collateral assets of the CLOs are held solely to satisfy the obligations of the CLOs. The company has no right to the benefits from, nor does it bear the risks associated with, the collateral assets held by the CLOs, beyond the company's minimal direct investments in, and management fees generated from, CLOs. If the company were to liquidate, the collateral assets would not be available to the general creditors of the company, and as a result, the company does not consider them to be company assets. Conversely, if the CLOs were to liquidate, their investors would have no recourse to the general credit of the company. The company therefore does not consider this debt to be a company liability.

Summary of Balance Sheet Impact of Consolidated Investment Products								
	March 31, 20	013	December 31, 2012		March 31, 2012			
	Impact of		Impact of		Impact of			
\$ in millions	Consolidated Con							
\$ III IIIIIIOIIS	investment Total		investment Total		investment Total			
	products		products		products			
ASSETS								
Current assets:								
Cash and cash equivalents		884.7		835.5		592.3		
Cash and cash equivalents of CIP	764.3	764.3	287.8	287.8	476.7	476.7		
Unsettled fund receivables		941.8		550.1		719.3		
Accounts receivable	(4.3)	517.1	(4.4)	449.4	(7.9)	446.4		
Accounts receivable of CIP	61.5	61.5	84.1	84.1	112.2	112.2		
Investments		359.9		363.9	(14.0)	337.7		
Prepaid assets		55.6		50.3		56.8		
Other current assets		78.7		94.5	8.7	109.5		
Deferred tax asset, net		34.6		38.4		27.9		
Assets held for policyholders		1,205.3		1,153.6		1,135.6		
Total current assets	821.5	4,903.5	367.5	3,907.6	575.7	4,014.4		
Non-current assets:								
Investments	(67.4)	361.7	(66.6)	246.8	(90.3)	220.3		
Investments of CIP	4,661.2	4,661.2	4,550.6	4,550.6	6,338.9	6,338.9		
Security deposit assets and receivables		22.8		27.4		71.9		
Other non-current assets		27.8		26.8		17.8		
Deferred sales commissions		50.1		47.7		43.9		
Property and equipment, net		337.2		349.6		312.1		
Intangible assets, net		1,278.5		1,287.7		1,313.0		
Goodwill		6,891.7		7,048.2		6,997.1		
Total non-current assets	4,593.8	13,631.0	4,484.0	13,584.8	6,248.6	15,315.0		
TD + 1	5 415 0	10.534.5	4.051.5	17 100 1	6.004.0	10 220 4		

18,534.5

4,851.5

17,492.4

6,824.3

5,415.3

19,329.4

Summary of Balance Sheet Impact of C	Consolidated Investment Products (continued)
--------------------------------------	--

Summary of Balance Sneet Impact of	March 31, 2		December 3	•	Morob 21 20	112	
	-	013	Impact of	01, 2012	March 31, 2012		
		Impact of Impact of Impact of Consolidated					
\$ in millions	investment		investment		investment		
	products	Total	products	. Total	products	Total	
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY	products		products		products		
Current liabilities:							
Current maturities of total debt		_				548.6	
Unsettled fund payables		941.7	_	552.5		720.7	
Income taxes payable		68.1	_	77.9		55.0	
Other current liabilities	(0.5)	626.7	(8.9	824.7	(15.9)	583.9	
Other current liabilities of CIP	445.8	445.8	104.3	104.3	330.7	330.7	
Policyholder payables		1,205.3	_	1,153.6		1,135.6	
Total current liabilities	445.3	3,287.6	95.4	2,713.0	314.8	3,374.5	
Non-current liabilities:							
Long-term debt		1,514.5	_	1,186.0	<del></del>	777.1	
Long-term debt of CIP	4,221.4	4,221.4	3,899.4	3,899.4	5,345.0	5,345.0	
Deferred tax liabilities, net		346.8		311.4		311.8	
Security deposits payable	_	22.8		27.4	_	71.9	
Other non-current liabilities		302.2	_	306.2	_	315.1	
Total non-current liabilities	4,221.4	6,407.7	3,899.4	5,730.4	5,345.0	6,820.9	
Total liabilities	4,666.7	9,695.3	3,994.8	8,443.4	5,659.8	10,195.4	
Equity							
Equity: Equity attributable to common							
shareholders							
Common shares		98.1		98.1		98.1	
Additional paid-in-capital	<u></u>	6,024.3		6,141.0	<u></u>	6,073.9	
Treasury shares		(1,314.7)	_	(1,382.9 )		(1,238.6)	
Retained earnings	24.3	2,946.3	21.2	2,801.3	36.2	2,551.4	
Retained earnings appropriated for		•					
investors in CIP	107.7	107.7	128.8	128.8	226.3	226.3	
Accumulated other comprehensive	(24.2	2245	(20.0	520.5	(25.2	401.1	
income, net of tax	(24.2)	334.5	(20.9	530.5	(35.3)	481.1	
Total equity attributable to common	107.0	0.106.2	120.1	0.216.0	227.2	0.102.2	
shareholders	107.8	8,196.2	129.1	8,316.8	227.2	8,192.2	
Equity attributable to noncontrolling	640.8	643.0	727.6	732.2	027.2	941.8	
interests in consolidated entities		043.0	121.0		937.3	741.0	
Total equity	748.6	8,839.2	856.7	9,049.0	1,164.5	9,134.0	
Total liabilities and equity	5,415.3	18,534.5	4,851.5	17,492.4	6,824.3	19,329.4	

The company's Condensed Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity in Part I, Item 1, "Financial Statements," contains a detailed analysis of the changes in balance sheet equity line items. The following discussion presents a comparative analysis of significant balance sheet assets and liabilities.

Cash and cash equivalents

See "Liquidity and Capital Resources — Cash Flows Discussion" for details of the movements in the company's cash and cash equivalents balances in the periods presented.

Unsettled fund receivables and payables

Unsettled fund receivables increased by \$391.7 million from \$550.1 million at December 31, 2012 to \$941.8 million at March 31, 2013, due primarily to higher transaction activity between funds and investors when compared to December 2012 in our U.K. and offshore funds. In the company's capacity as sponsor of UITs, the company records receivables from brokers, dealers, and clearing organizations for unsettled sell trades of securities and UITs in addition to receivables from customers for unsettled sell trades of UITs. In our U.K. and offshore activities, unsettled fund receivables are created by the normal settlement

periods on transactions initiated by certain clients. The presentation of the unsettled fund receivables and substantially offsetting payables (\$941.7 million at March 31, 2013 up from \$552.5 million at December 31, 2012) at trade date reflects the legal relationship between the underlying investor and the company.

Investments (current and non-current)

As of March 31, 2013, we had \$721.6 million in investments, of which \$359.9 million were current investments and \$361.7 million were non-current investments. Included in current investments are \$92.0 million of seed money investments in affiliated funds used to seed funds as we launch new products, and \$235.6 million of investments related to assets held for deferred compensation plans, which are also held primarily in affiliated funds. Seed investments decreased by \$21.4 million during the three months to March 31, 2013, due primarily to seed money redemptions and foreign exchange movement, offset by market improvement increases. Investments held to hedge deferred compensation awards increased by \$22.1 million during the three month period, primarily attributable to additional investments in affiliated funds to hedge economically new employee plan awards. Included in non-current investments are \$342.8 million in equity method investments in our Chinese and Indian joint ventures and in certain of the company's private equity partnerships, real estate partnerships and other co-investments (December 31, 2012: \$228.2 million). The increase of \$114.6 million in equity method investments is primarily driven by a\$102.3 million increase in our joint venture investments during the period as a result of the first quarter purchase of a 49% interest in Religare Asset Management Company Limited, additional capital contributed to one of our China joint ventures, current year earnings of \$3.6 million and \$0.2 million in positive impact of foreign exchange rate movements. Equity method investments also increased \$7.3 million due to capital calls in co-investments, including \$5.4 million into Asian real estate funds, \$3.9 million due to earnings and valuation adjustments and \$5.4 million due to the de-consolidation of a fund previously consolidated under ASC 810, triggered by the loss of control of the fund. The increases in partnership investments were offset by distributions and capital returns of \$4.3 million during the period.

Assets held for policyholders and policyholder payables

The increase in the balance of assets held for policyholders and the offsetting policyholder payables from \$1,153.6 million at December 31, 2012, to \$1,205.3 million at March 31, 2013 was driven by an increase in the market values of these assets and liabilities partly offset by a decrease due to foreign exchange movement.

Intangible assets, net

Intangible assets reflect a net decrease of \$9.2 million from \$1,287.7 million at December 31, 2012, to \$1,278.5 million at March 31, 2013. The decrease in intangible assets, net is due to amortization of \$5.0 million and foreign currency translation of \$4.2 million.

Goodwill

Goodwill decreased by \$156.5 million from \$7,048.2 million at December 31, 2012, to \$6,891.7 million at March 31, 2013. The decrease is due to the impact of foreign currency translation.

Total debt

The non-current portion of our total debt was \$1,514.5 million at March 31, 2013 (December 31, 2012: \$1,186.0 million). The increase during the three months ended March 31, 2013 is due to the net draw on the credit facility of \$328.5 million used to fund annual bonus payments, related employer payroll taxes, payroll taxes on annual share award vestings, annual pension contributions together with open market treasury share purchases and the purchase of a 49% interest in Religare Asset Management Company Limited.

#### Liquidity and Capital Resources

Our capital structure, together with available cash balances, cash flows generated from operations, existing capacity under our credit facility, proceeds from public offering of our shares and further capital market activities, if necessary, should provide us with sufficient resources to meet present and future cash needs, including operating, debt and other obligations as they come due and anticipated future capital requirements. The company's 3.125% senior notes, which have a carrying value of \$599.5 million at March 31, 2013, mature on November 30, 2022.

As discussed in the "Executive Overview" of this Management's Discussion and Analysis, our capital management priorities have evolved with the growth and success of our business and include:

- reinvestment in the business;

- moderate annual growth of dividends (as illustrated and further discussed in the "Dividends" section below);
- share repurchase; and
- establishment of an approximate \$1 billion cash buffer in excess of regulatory requirements.

These priorities are executed in a manner consistent with our desire to maintain a strong, investment-grade credit rating.

During the three months ended March 31, 2013 there were 1.6 million common shares purchased in the market at a cost of \$45.0 million.

Our ability to continue to access the capital markets in a timely manner depends on a number of factors, including our Moody's and Standard & Poor's credit ratings of A3/Stable and A-/Stable, respectively, the condition of the global economy, investors' willingness to purchase our securities, interest rates, credit spreads and the valuation levels of equity markets. If we are unable to access capital markets in a timely manner, our business could be adversely impacted.

Certain of our subsidiaries are required to maintain minimum levels of capital. These and other similar provisions of applicable law may have the effect of limiting withdrawals of capital, repayment of intercompany loans and payment of dividends by such entities. A sub-group of Invesco subsidiaries, including all of our regulated EU subsidiaries, is subject to consolidated capital requirements under applicable European Union (EU) directives, and capital is maintained within this sub-group to satisfy these regulations. These requirements mandate the retention of liquid resources in those jurisdictions, which we meet in part by holding cash and cash equivalents. This retained cash can be used for general business purposes in the European sub-group or in the countries where it is located. Due to the capital restrictions, the ability to transfer cash between certain jurisdictions may be limited. In addition, transfers of cash between international jurisdictions may have adverse tax consequences that may substantially limit such activity. At March 31, 2013, the European sub-group had cash and cash equivalent balances of \$575.3 million (December 31, 2012: \$528.3 million), much of which is used to satisfy these regulatory requirements. We are in compliance with all regulatory minimum net capital requirements. The total amount of non-U.S. cash and cash equivalents was \$681.6 million at March 31, 2013 (December 31, 2012: \$662.9 million).

In addition, the company is required to hold cash deposits with clearing organizations or to otherwise segregate cash to maintain compliance with federal and other regulations in connection with its UIT broker dealer entity, which was included in the acquired business. At March 31, 2013, these cash deposits totaled \$11.3 million (December 31, 2012: \$11.3 million).

The consolidation of \$4.9 billion and \$4.3 billion of total assets and long-term debt of certain CLO products as of March 31, 2013, respectively, did not impact the company's liquidity and capital resources. The collateral assets of the CLOs are held solely to satisfy the obligations of the CLOs. The company has no right to the benefits from, nor does it bear the risks associated with, the collateral assets held by the CLOs, beyond the company's minimal direct investments in, and management fees generated from, these products, which are eliminated upon consolidation. If the company were to liquidate, the collateral assets would not be available to the general creditors of the company, and as a result, the company does not consider them to be company assets. Conversely, if the CLOs were to liquidate, their investors would have no recourse to the general credit of the company. The company therefore does not consider this debt to be an obligation of the company. See Part I, Item 1, "Financial Statements — Note 12, "Consolidated Investment Products," for additional details.

Selected balance sheet information is reflected in the table below:

	Excluding C	onsolidated I	nvestment	Including Consolidated Investment				
	Products (CI	P)(Non-GAA	$(P)^{(1)}$	Products (CIP)(U.S. GAAP)				
	March 31,	March 31, December 31, March 31,			December 3	1, March 31,		
	2013	2012	2012	2013	2012	2012		
\$ in millions								
Cash and cash equivalents	884.7	835.5	592.3	884.7	835.5	592.3		
Investments of CIP	_	_		4,661.2	4,550.6	6,338.9		
Total assets <sup>(1)</sup>	13,119.2	12,640.9	12,505.1	18,534.5	17,492.4	19,329.4		
Current maturities of total debt	_	_	548.6	_	_	548.6		
Long-term debt	1,514.5	1,186.0	777.1	1,514.5	1,186.0	777.1		
Long-term debt of CIP				4,221.4	3,899.4	5,345.0		
Total debt / Total debt plus CIP	15145	1 106 0	1 225 7	5 725 0	5 005 A	( (70 7		
debt	1,514.5	1,186.0	1,325.7	5,735.9	5,085.4	6,670.7		
Total liabilities <sup>(1)</sup>	5,028.6	4,448.6	4,535.6	9,695.3	8,443.4	10,195.4		
Total equity <sup>(1)</sup>	8,090.6	8,192.3	7,969.5	8,839.2	9,049.0	9,134.0		
. ·								
Debt/Equity % (1)(2)	18.7	5 14.5	% 16.6 %	6 64.9 °	% 56.2	% 73.0 %		

The balance sheet line items excluding consolidated investment products are non-GAAP financial measures. To calculate total assets excluding CIP at March 31, 2013, use U.S. GAAP total assets of \$18,534.5 million (December 31, 2012: \$17,492.4 million, March 31, 2012: \$19,329.4 million) and subtract total assets of CIP of \$5,415.3 million (December 31, 2012: \$4,851.5 million, March 31, 2012: \$6,824.3 million). To calculate total liabilities excluding CIP at March 31, 2013, use U.S. GAAP total liabilities of \$9,695.3 million (December 31, 2012: \$8,443.4 million, March 31, 2012: \$10,195.4 million) and subtract total liabilities of CIP of \$4,666.7 million (December 31, 2012: \$10,195.4 million) and subtract total liabilities of CIP of \$4,666.7 million (December 31, 2012: \$10,195.4 million) and subtract total liabilities of CIP of \$4,666.7 million (December 31, 2012: \$10,195.4 million) and subtract total liabilities of CIP of \$4,666.7 million (December 31, 2012: \$10,195.4 million) and subtract total liabilities of CIP of \$4,666.7 million (December 31, 2012: \$10,195.4 million) and subtract total liabilities of CIP of \$4,666.7 million (December 31, 2012: \$10,195.4 million) and subtract total liabilities of CIP of \$4,666.7 million (December 31, 2012: \$10,195.4 million) and subtract total liabilities of CIP of \$4,666.7 million (December 31, 2012: \$10,195.4 million) and subtract total liabilities of CIP of \$4,666.7 million (December 31, 2012: \$10,195.4 million) and subtract total liabilities of CIP of \$4,666.7 million (December 31, 2012: \$10,195.4 million) and subtract total liabilities of CIP of \$4,666.7 million (December 31, 2012: \$10,195.4 million) and subtract total liabilities of CIP of \$4,666.7 million (December 31, 2012: \$10,195.4 million) and subtract total liabilities of CIP of \$4,666.7 million (December 31, 2012: \$10,195.4 million) and subtract total liabilities of CIP of \$4,666.7 million (December 31, 2012: \$10,195.4 million) and subtract total liabilities of CIP of \$1,000.1 million (December 31, 2012: \$10,195.4

- (1) (December 31, 2012: \$3,994.8 million, March 31, 2012: \$5,659.8 million). To calculate total equity excluding CIP at March 31, 2013, use U.S. GAAP total equity of \$8,839.2 million (December 31, 2012: \$9,049.0 million, March 31, 2012: \$9,134.0 million) and subtract total equity of CIP of \$748.6 million (December 31, 2012: \$856.7 million, March 31, 2012: \$1,164.5 million). See the "Balance Sheet Discussion" section for a fully expanded balance sheet illustrating the impact of consolidation of investment products for March 31, 2013, December 31, 2012 and March 31, 2012.
  - The debt-to-equity ratio excluding CIP is a non-GAAP financial measure. The debt-to-equity ratio is calculated as total debt divided by total equity for the balance sheet excluding CIP and total debt plus long-term debt of CIP divided by total equity for the balance sheet including CIP. Management believes that it is important to illustrate
- (2) for users of our financial statements that calculating a balance sheet measure, such as the debt-to-equity ratio, including the impact of CIP causes the company to appear far more indebted than is the case. As disclosed above, the debt of CIP is not the company's debt, nor do the noteholders of the CIP debt have any recourse to the company.

#### Cash Flows Discussion

The ability to consistently generate cash from operations in excess of capital expenditures and dividend payments is one of our company's fundamental financial strengths. Operations continue to be financed from current earnings and borrowings. Our principal uses of cash, other than for operating expenses, include dividend payments, capital expenditures, acquisitions, purchase of our shares in the open market and investments in certain new investment products.

Cash flows of consolidated investment products (CIPs, which are discussed in Part I, Item 1, Financial Statements — Note 12, "Consolidated Investment Products") are reflected in Invesco's cash used in operating activities, provided by investing activities and provided by financing activities. Cash held by consolidated investment products is not available for general use by Invesco, nor is Invesco cash available for general use by its consolidated investment products. Accordingly, the table below presents the consolidated total cash flows of the company and separately presents the impact to the cash flows from the consolidation of investment products. The cash flows of consolidated investment products do not form part of the company's cash flow management processes, nor do they form part of the company's significant liquidity evaluations and decisions for the reasons noted. The discussion that follows the table will focus on the company's cash flows.

Summary of Cash Flow Statement Impact of Consolidated Investment Products

\$ in millions		2013 ted Invesco Ltd.	Three Months Ended March 31, 2012 Impact of Consolidated Invesco Ltd. Investment Consolidated Products		
Operating activities:	(17.1	\ 100.6	(1140	740	
Net income	(17.1	) 199.6	(114.9	) 74.8	
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided					
by/(used in) operating activities:		22.2		24.2	
Amortization and depreciation		22.3 33.5		24.3	
Share-based compensation expense (Gains)/losses on disposals of property, equipment, and	_	33.3	_	30.0	
software, net	_	0.4	_	(0.6	)
Purchase of trading investments		(3,409.1	) —	(2,826.4	)
Sale of trading investments	<del></del>	3,395.4	· —	2,793.3	)
Other gains and losses, net		.i	_	(18.6	`
Losses/(gains) of consolidated investment products, net	21.1	21.1	) — 121.9	121.9	)
-	21.1	47.7	121.9	39.6	
Tax benefit from share-based compensation			_		`
Excess tax benefits from share-based compensation	<u> </u>	` '	) —	(10.6	)
Equity in earnings of unconsolidated affiliates	0.4		(3.4	) (9.7	)
Dividends from unconsolidated affiliates	_	1.0		1.0	
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:	(470.2	(470.2	(120.0	(120.0	`
Decrease/(increase) in cash held by CIP	(470.2	, ,	(129.9	) (129.9	)
Decrease/(increase) in receivables	(1.4	, ,	7.4	(93.0	)
(Decrease)/increase in payables	28.1	317.8	(1.4	) (154.4	)
Net cash provided by/(used in) operating activities	(439.1	) (484.6	(120.3	) (158.3	)
Investing activities:					
Purchase of property and equipment		(18.1	) —	(18.4	)
Disposal of property and equipment				0.6	,
Purchase of available-for-sale investments	5.6	(0.1	6.0	(21.4	)
Sale of available-for-sale investments	(1.8	) 23.0	(0.9	) 20.3	,
Purchase of investments by CIP	(965.2		(686.9	) (686.9	)
Sale of investments by CIP	1,205.6	1,205.6	559.9	559.9	,
Purchase of other investments			) —	(41.0	)
Sale of other investments		25.3	<u> </u>	21.0	,
Returns of capital and distributions from equity method					
investments	(0.7)	) 3.8	(5.7	) 6.3	
Acquisition earn-out payments				(5.1	)
Net cash provided by/(used in) investing activities	243.5	146.4	(127.6	) (164.7	)
The cash provided by/(asea in) investing activities	213.3	110.1	(127.0	) (101.7	,
Financing activities:					
Proceeds from exercises of share options	_	5.2		10.2	
Purchases of treasury shares	_	(45.0	<b>—</b>	(75.0	)
Dividends paid	_	(77.2	<b>—</b>	(55.7	)
Excess tax benefits from share-based compensation	_	11.7	_	10.6	
Capital invested into CIP	3.5	3.5	5.1	5.1	

Capital distributed by CIP	(60.9	) (60.9	) (6.6	) (6.6	)
Net borrowings/(repayments) of debt of CIP	253.0	253.0	249.4	249.4	
Net borrowings/(repayments) under credit facility	_	328.5	_	41.0	
Net cash provided by/(used in) financing activities	195.6	418.8	247.9	179.0	
(Decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents	_	80.6		(144.0	)
Foreign exchange movement on cash and cash equivalents	_	(31.4	) —	8.9	
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of period	_	835.5	_	727.4	
Cash and cash equivalents, end of period		884.7		592.3	

#### **Operating Activities**

During the three months ended March 31, 2013, cash used in operating activities increased \$326.3 million to \$484.6 million from \$158.3 million during the three months ended March 31, 2012. As shown in the table above, the impact of consolidated investment products to cash used in operating activities was \$439.1 million of cash used during the three months ended March 31, 2013 compared to \$120.3 million of cash used in the three months ended March 31, 2012. The sum of the operating, investing and financing cash flows of consolidated investment products offsets to a zero impact to the company's change in cash and cash equivalent balances from period to period. Excluding the impact of consolidated investment products, cash used in operations was \$45.5 million in the three months ended March 31, 2013 compared to cash used in operations of \$38.0 million in the three months ended March 31, 2012. The \$45.5 million of cash used in operations during the three months ended March 31, 2013 included net purchases of trading investments of \$13.7 million and the use of \$334.0 million of cash to pay the annual staff bonuses, related payroll taxes, payroll taxes on annual share award vesting, and annual retirement plan contributions. Similarly, the \$38.0 million of cash used in operations in the three months ended March 31, 2012 included net purchases of trading investments of \$33.1 million and the use of \$309.9 million of cash to pay the annual staff bonuses, related payroll taxes, payroll taxes on annual share award vesting, and annual retirement plan contributions. Excluding the net purchases of trading investments, cash to pay annual staff bonus and impact of consolidated investment products, net cash provided by other operating activities of \$302.2 million (three months ended March 31, 2012: \$305.0 million net cash provided by) represents net income, as adjusted for other non-cash items, and the changes in operating assets and liabilities.

#### **Investing Activities**

Net cash provided by investing activities totaled \$146.4 million for the three months ended March 31, 2013 (three months ended March 31, 2012: net cash used in of \$164.7 million). As shown in the table above, the impact of consolidated investment products on investing activities, including investment purchases, sales and returns of capital, was \$243.5 million contributed (three months ended March 31, 2012: \$127.6 million used). Excluding the impact of these consolidated investment product cash flows, net cash used in investing activities was \$97.1 million (three months ended March 31, 2012: net cash used in investing activities of \$37.1 million).

During the three months ended March 31, 2013, excluding the impact of consolidated investment products, the company purchased available-for-sale investments and other investments of \$133.6 million (three months ended March 31, 2012: \$68.4 million) and had capital expenditures of \$18.1 million (three months ended March 31, 2012: \$18.4 million). These cash outflows were partly offset from collected proceeds of \$54.6 million from sales and returns of capital of investments in the three months ended March 31, 2013 (three months ended March 31, 2012: \$54.2 million).

Our capital expenditures related principally in each year to technology initiatives, including enhancements to platforms from which we maintain our portfolio management systems and fund accounting systems, improvements in computer hardware and software desktop products for employees, new telecommunications products to enhance our internal information flow, and back-up disaster recovery systems. Also, in each year, a portion of these costs relate to leasehold improvements made to the various buildings and workspaces used by our offices.

## Financing Activities

Net cash provided by financing activities totaled \$418.8 million for the three months ended March 31, 2013 (three months ended March 31, 2012: \$179.0 million net cash provided). As shown in the table above, the impact of consolidated investment products on financing activities provided cash of \$195.6 million (three months ended March 31, 2012: \$247.9 million provided). Excluding the impact of consolidated investment products, financing activities provided cash of \$223.2 million in the three months ended March 31, 2013 (three months ended March 31, 2012:\$68.9 million net cash used).

Other financing cash flows during the three months ended March 31, 2013 included \$328.5 million net borrowings from the credit facility (three months ended March 31, 2012: \$41.0 million borrowed), \$77.2 million of dividend payments for the dividends declared in January (three months ended March 31, 2012: dividends paid of \$55.7 million), the purchase of treasury shares through market transactions totaling \$45.0 million (three months ended March 31, 2012: \$75.0 million), cash inflows from the exercise of options of \$5.2 million (three months ended

March 31, 2012: \$10.2 million) and excess tax benefits cash inflows from share-based compensation of \$11.7 million (three months ended March 31, 2012: \$10.6 million).

#### Dividends

Invesco declares and pays dividends on a quarterly basis in arrears. On January 31, 2013, the company's Board of Directors declared a fourth quarter 2012 cash dividend of 17.25 cents per share, which was paid on March 8, 2013, to shareholders of record as of February 21, 2013. On April 30, 2013, the company announced a first quarter 2013 cash dividend of 22.5 cents per share, a 30% increase over the prior quarterly dividend, which will be paid on June 7, 2013 to shareholders of record at the close of business on May 17, 2013.

### Share Repurchase Plan

During the three months ended March 31, 2013, the company repurchased 1.6 million common shares in the market at a cost of \$45.0 million (three months ended March 31, 2012: 3.1 million shares were repurchased at a cost of \$75.0 million), leaving \$422.0 million authorized at March 31, 2013 (March 31, 2012: \$657.0 million). Separately, an aggregate of 2.1 million shares were withheld on vesting events during the three months ended March 31, 2013, to meet employees' tax obligations (three months ended March 31, 2012: 1.6 million). The fair value of these shares withheld at the respective withholding dates was \$53.9 million (three months ended March 31, 2012: \$40.7 million).

#### Debt

Our total indebtedness at March 31, 2013 was \$1,514.5 million (December 31, 2012 is \$1,186.0 million) and was comprised of the following:

\$ in millions	March 31, 2013	December 31, 2012
Unsecured Senior Notes:		
3.125% — due November 30, 2022	599.5	599.5
Floating rate credit facility expiring June 3, 2016	915.0	586.5
Total debt	1,514.5	1,186.0

For the three months ended March 31, 2013, the company's weighted average cost of debt was 2.11% (three months ended March 31, 2012: 3.64%). Total debt increased from \$1,186.0 million at December 31, 2012, to \$1,514.5 million at March 31, 2013, as the credit facility borrowings increased during the quarter. The increase in the credit facility balance during the quarter reflects the funding of the annual cash bonus payments, related employer payroll taxes, payroll taxes on annual share award vestings, annual retirement plan contributions, share repurchases, and the completion of the purchase of a 49% equity interest in Religare Asset Management Limited, a company incorporated in India.

Financial covenants under the credit agreement include: (i) the quarterly maintenance of a debt/EBITDA ratio, as defined in the credit agreement, of not greater than 3.25:1.00 through June 30, 2014, and not greater than 3.00:1.00 thereafter, (ii) a coverage ratio (EBITDA, as defined in the credit agreement, divided by interest payable for the four consecutive fiscal quarters ended before the date of determination) of not less than 4.00:1.00. As of March 31, 2013, we were in compliance with our financial covenants. At March 31, 2013 our leverage ratio was 1.22:1.00 (December 31, 2012: 0.99:1.00), and our interest coverage ratio was 26.29:1.00 (December 31, 2012: 23.61:1.00).

The March 31, 2013 coverage ratio calculations are as follows:

The March 51, 2015 coverage rand carculations are a	o romo mo.							
\$ millions	Total	Q1 2013		Q4 2012		Q3 2012	(	Q2 2012
Net income attributable to common shareholders	705.4	222.2		158.7		170.6	1	153.9
Net (income)/loss attributable to consolidated	11.8	(2.1	`	(2.4	`	11.1	6	5.2
investment products	11.0	(3.1	)	(2.4	)	11.1	C	). <i>L</i>
Tax expense	287.2	88.6		62.1		74.2	6	52.3
Amortization/depreciation	93.0	22.3		22.5		21.6	2	26.6
Interest expense	48.4	9.7		12.7		12.6	1	13.4
Share-based compensation expense	139.9	33.5		33.5		35.9	3	37.0
Unrealized (gains) and losses from investments, net*	(13.4)	(11.4	)	(0.2	)	(6.3	) 4	1.5
EBITDA**	1,272.3	361.8		286.9		319.7	3	303.9
Adjusted debt**	\$1,546.8							

Leverage ratio (Debt/EBITDA — maximum 3.25:1.00).22

Interest coverage (EBITDA/Interest Expense — 26.29

minimum 4.00:1.00)

Adjustments for unrealized gains and losses from investments, as defined in our credit facility, include non-cash gains and losses on investments to the extent that they do not represent anticipated future cash receipts or expenditures.

EBITDA and Adjusted debt are non-GAAP financial measures; however management does not use these measures \*\* for anything other than these debt covenant calculations. The calculation of EBITDA above (a reconciliation from net income attributable to common shareholders) is defined by our credit agreement, and therefore net income attributable to common

shareholders is the most appropriate GAAP measure from which to reconcile to EBITDA. The calculation of adjusted debt is defined in our credit facility and equals total long-term debt of \$1,514.5 million plus \$32.3 million in letters of credit.

#### Off Balance Sheet Commitments

See Part I, Item 1, Financial Statements - Note 11, "Commitments and Contingencies - Off Balance Sheet Commitments," for more information regarding undrawn capital commitments and support agreements. Contractual Obligations

We have future obligations under various contracts relating to debt and interest payments, financing and operating leases, long-term defined benefit pension and post-retirement medical plans, and acquisition contracts. During the three months ended March 31, 2013, there were no significant changes to these obligations reported in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2012.

#### Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

There have been no significant changes to the accounting policies that we believe are the most critical to an understanding of our results of operations and financial condition, which are disclosed in our most recent Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2012.

Recent Accounting Standards

See Part I, Item 1, "Financial Statements — Note 1, Accounting Policies — Accounting Pronouncements Recently Adopted and Pending Accounting Pronouncements."

#### Item 3. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk

In the normal course of its business, the company is primarily exposed to market risk in the form of securities market risk, interest rate risk, and foreign exchange rate risk.

#### **AUM Market Price Risk**

The company's investment management revenues are comprised of fees based on a percentage of the value of AUM. Declines in equity or fixed income security market prices could cause revenues to decline because of lower investment management fees by:

Causing the value of AUM to decrease,

Causing the returns realized on AUM to decrease (impacting performance fees).

Causing clients to withdraw funds in favor of investments in markets that they perceive to offer greater opportunity and that the company does not serve,

Causing clients to rebalance assets away from investments that the company manages into investments that the company does not manage, and/or

Causing clients to reallocate assets away from products that earn higher revenues into products that earn lower revenues.

Underperformance of client accounts relative to competing products could exacerbate these factors.

## Securities Market Risk

The company has investments in sponsored investment products that invest in a variety of asset classes. Investments are generally made to establish a track record or to hedge exposure to certain deferred compensation plans. The company's exposure to market risk arises from its investments. A 20% increase or decrease in the fair value of investments exposed to market risk is not material to the operating results of the company.

#### Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk relates to the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The company is exposed to interest rate risk primarily through its external debt and cash and cash equivalent investments. On March 31, 2013, the interest rates on 40% of the company's borrowings were fixed for a weighted average period of 9.7 years. Borrowings under the credit facility, which represent 60% of the company's borrowings, have floating interest rates. A 1% change in the level of interest rates on current debt levels would change annualized interest expense by \$9.2 million but would not have a material impact on

the ability of the company to continue to service its indebtedness.

#### Foreign Exchange Rate Risk

The company has transactional currency exposures that occur when any of the company's subsidiaries receives or pays cash in a currency different from its functional currency. Such exposure arises from sales or purchases by operating subsidiaries in currencies other than the subsidiaries' functional currencies. These exposures are not actively managed. The company also has certain investments in foreign operations, whose net assets and results of operations are exposed to foreign currency translation risk when translated into U.S. dollars upon consolidation into Invesco Ltd. The company generally does not hedge these exposures; however, during 2012, the company purchased put option contracts to hedge economically foreign currency risk on the translation of its pound sterling-denominated earnings into U.S. dollars. The economic hedge is predominantly triggered upon the impact of a significant decline in the pound sterling/U.S. dollar foreign exchange rate, which could arise as a result of European economic uncertainty. During the first quarter of 2013, the company purchased new contracts to extend coverage through March 2014. See Note 2, "Fair Value of Assets and Liabilities," for additional details.

The company is exposed to foreign exchange revaluation into the income statement on monetary assets and liabilities that are held by subsidiaries in different functional currencies than the subsidiaries' functional currencies. Net foreign exchange revaluation losses were \$0.9 million for three months ended March 31, 2013 and \$0.8 million gains for the comparable prior year period, and are included in general and administrative and other gains and losses, net on the Condensed Consolidated Statements of Income. We continue to monitor our exposure to foreign exchange revaluation.

#### Item 4. Controls and Procedures

Our management is responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures that are designed to ensure that information the company is required to disclose in the reports that it files or submits under the Exchange Act is recorded, processed, summarized and reported, within the time periods specified in the Securities and Exchange Commission's rules and forms. Disclosure controls and procedures include controls and procedures designed to ensure that information required to be disclosed in the reports that the company files or submits under the Exchange Act is accumulated and communicated to the company's management, including its principal executive and principal financial officers, as appropriate, to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure.

We have evaluated, with the participation of our chief executive officer and chief financial officer, the effectiveness of our disclosure controls and procedures as of March 31, 2013. There are inherent limitations to the effectiveness of any system of disclosure controls and procedures, including the possibility of human error and the circumvention or overriding of the controls and procedures. Accordingly, even effective disclosure controls and procedures can only provide reasonable assurance of achieving their control objectives. Based upon our evaluation, our chief executive officer and chief financial officer concluded that our disclosure controls and procedures were effective to provide reasonable assurance that information required to be disclosed by us in the reports that we file or submit under the Exchange Act is recorded, processed, summarized and reported, within the time periods specified in the applicable rules and forms, and that it is accumulated and communicated to our management, including our chief executive officer and chief financial officer, as appropriate to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure. We have evaluated any change in our internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the three months ended March 31, 2013 and have concluded that there was no change that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting.

## PART II. OTHER INFORMATION

#### Item 1. Legal Proceedings

See Part I, Item 1, Note 11, "Commitments and Contingencies," for information regarding legal proceedings.

#### Item 1A. Risk Factors

The company has had no significant changes in its risk factors from those previously disclosed in its Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2012.

Item 2. Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities and Use of Proceeds Repurchases of Equity Securities

The following table sets forth information regarding purchases of our common shares by us and any affiliated purchases during the three months ended March 31, 2013:

Month	Total Number of Shares Purchased <sup>(1)</sup>	Average Price Paid Per Share	Total Number of Shares Purchased as Part of Publicly Announced Plans or Programs <sup>(2)</sup>	Maximum Number at end of period (or Approximate Dollar Value) of Shares that May Yet Be Purchased Under the Plans or Programs <sup>(2)</sup> (millions)
January 1-31, 2013	879,546	27.53	865,347	\$443.1
February 1-28, 2013	2,643,138	26.77	769,800	\$422.0
March 1-31, 2013	174,581	28.36	_	\$422.0
Total	3,697,265		1,635,147	

Item 4. Mine Safety Disclosures Not applicable.

Item 5. Other Information Not applicable.

<sup>(1)</sup> An aggregate of 2,062,118 shares were surrendered to us by Invesco employees to satisfy tax withholding obligations or loan repayments in connection with the vesting of equity awards.

(2) On April 23, 2008, our board of directors authorized a share repurchase authorization of up to \$1.5 billion of our common shares with no stated expiration date.

## Table of Contents

101.PRE XBRL Presentation Linkbase Document

101.DEF XBRL Definition Linkbase Document

Item 6. Ex	
Exhibit In 3.1	Memorandum of Association of Invesco Ltd., incorporating amendments up to and including December 4, 2007, incorporated by reference to exhibit 3.1 to Invesco's Current Report on Form 8-K, filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on December 12, 2007
3.2	Amended and Restated Bye-Laws of Invesco Ltd., incorporating amendments up to and including December 4, 2007, incorporated by reference to exhibit 3.2 to Invesco's Current Report on Form 8-K, filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on December 12, 2007
10.1	Letter of Assignment - Secondment to Invesco Perpetual with respect to Mark Armour
31.1	Certification of Martin L. Flanagan pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a), as adopted pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002
31.2	Certification of Loren M. Starr pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a), as adopted pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002
32.1	Certification of Martin L. Flanagan pursuant to Rule 13a-14(b) and 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002
32.2	Certification of Loren M. Starr pursuant to Rule 13a-14(b) and 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002
101.INS	XBRL Instance Document
101.SCH	XBRL Schema Document
101.CAL	XBRL Calculation Linkbase Document
101.LAB	XBRL Labels Linkbase Document

### **Table of Contents**

#### **SIGNATURES**

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized.

INVESCO LTD.

April 30, 2013 /s/ MARTIN L. FLANAGAN

Martin L. Flanagan

President and Chief Executive Officer

April 30, 2013 /s/ LOREN M. STARR

Loren M. Starr

Senior Managing Director and Chief Financial Officer